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SECTION I - GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Red Herring Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise
indicates or implies, or unless otherwise specified, shall have the meaning as assigned below. References to any
legislation, statute, rules, regulations, guidelines, policies, circular, direction, notification, or clarification will,
unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed to include all amendments, modifications, supplements, re-
enactments and replacements notified thereto, as of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, and any reference
to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this Red Herring Prospectus but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent
applicable, the meanings ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA,
the SEBI Act, the Depositories Act or the rules and regulations made thereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms not defined herein but used in “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”,
“Objects of the Issue”, “Basis of Issue Price”, “Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits, “History and
Certain Corporate Matters”, “Financial Indebtedness”, “Key Regulations and Policies”, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, “Financial Information”,
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments”, “Issue Procedure” and “Description of Equity Shares
and Terms of Articles of Association”, on pages 181, 272, 148, 178, 317, 490, 310, 453, 351, 493, 526 and 549,
respectively, will have the meaning ascribed to such terms in those respective sections.

General Terms

Term
“our Company” or “the Company”
or “the Issuer”

Description

Globe Civil Projects Limited, a company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 having its Registered and Corporate Office at D-
40, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020, India

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company
together with our Associate and Joint Ventures, on a consolidated basis

113 CLINT3

we”, “us” or “our”

Company Related Terms

Term Description
Articles of Association/ | The articles of association of our Company, as amended
Articles/ AoA
Associate Southern Globe Hotels and Resorts Limited

Audit Committee

The audit committee of our Board constituted in accordance with the Companies
Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations and as described in “Our Management-
Board Committees- Audit Committee” on page 332

Auditors/ Statutory | The statutory auditors of our Company, currently being Jagdish Chand & Co.,
Auditors Chartered Accountants

Board/ Board of | The board of directors of our Company or any duly constituted committee thereof.
Directors For details, please see “QOur Management- Board of Directors” on page 325

Chairman and Whole-
time Director

The chairman and whole-time director of our Company, namely Ved Prakash
Khurana.

Chief Financial Officer /
CFO

The chief financial officer of our Company, namely Raghav Aggarwal

Committee(s)

Duly constituted committee(s) of our Board

Companies Act/ Act

The Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time

Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

The company secretary and compliance officer of our Company, namely Vineet
Rattan.

Corporate Social | The corporate social responsibility committee of our Board, constituted in
Responsibility accordance with the Companies Act and as described in “Our Management- Board
Committee Committees- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee” on page 338

Director(s) The director(s) on the Board of our Company, as appointed from time to time. For

further details, please see “QOur Management- Board of Directors” on page 325

Equity Shares

The equity shares of our Company of face value of 10/- each




Term

Description

Executive Director(s)

The executive directors on our Board namely, Ved Prakash Khurana, Nipun
Khurana and Vipul Khurana. For further details, please see “Our Management-
Board of Directors” on page 325

Group Company

The group company of our Company being Earthcon Systems India Private Limited

Independent Director(s)

The independent Director(s) on our Board appointed as per the Companies Act and
the SEBI Listing Regulations. For details of our Independent Directors, please see
“Our Management- Board of Directors”’ on page 325

IPO Committee

The IPO committee of our Board constituted to facilitate the process of the Issue

Joint Venture(s) Arvind Techno Globe JV, GCPPL SCIPL Consortium, Globe Civil Premier Infra
JV, KSIB GCPPL JV, SCL - GCPL JV and KSMB Globe Projects JV

Key Managerial | Key managerial personnel of our Company in accordance with regulation 2(1)(bb)

Personnel / KMP of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and section 2(51) of the Companies Act, and as

disclosed in “Our Management — Key Managerial Personnel” on page 341

Managing Director

The managing directors of our Company, namely Vipul Khurana and Nipun
Khurana. For further details, please see “Our Management” on page 325

Materiality Policy The materiality policy adopted by our Board pursuant to its resolution dated
September 24, 2024 for identification of (a) material group companies; (b) material
outstanding litigation proceedings; and (c) material creditors, in accordance with
the disclosure requirements under the SEBI ICDR Regulations for the purpose of
disclosure in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, this Red Herring Prospectus and
the Prospectus

Memorandum of | The memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to time

Association /

Memorandum/ MoA

Nomination and | The nomination and remuneration committee of our Board, constituted in

Remuneration accordance with the Companies Act and SEBI Listing Regulations and as described

Committee in “Our Management- Board Committees- Nomination and Remuneration
Committee’ on page 335

Non-Executive A Director, not being an Executive Director. For further details, please see “Our

Director(s) Management” on page 325

Promoter(s) The promoters of our Company namely, Ved Prakash Khurana, Nipun Khurana,
and Vipul Khurana. For further details, please see “QOur Promoters and Promoter
Group” on page 344

Promoter Group Such individuals and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company,
pursuant to regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For further details,
please see “Our Promoters and Promoter Group”’ on page 344

Registered Office/ | The registered and corporate office of our Company situated at D-40, Okhla

Registered and | Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020, India

Corporate Office

Registrar of Companies
/RoC

Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi, India. For further
information, please see “General Information” on page 121

Restated Consolidated
Financial Information

The restated consolidated financial information of our Company, comprising of
restated consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as at for the nine months
period ended December 31, 2024 and as at for the financial years ended March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the restated consolidated statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the restated consolidated
statement of cash flows and restated consolidated statement of changes in equity as
at for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the financial years
ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and the significant
accounting policies and explanatory notes to the restated consolidated financial
information of our Company, prepared by the management of our Company in
accordance with Ind AS and as per the requirements of Section 26 of Chapter III
of the Companies Act, paragraph (A) of clause 11 (I) of Part A of Schedule VI of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company
Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, as amended from time to time and included in “Financial Information” on
page 351




Term

Description

Senior Management /

The senior management of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1) (bbbb) of the

Relationship Committee

SMP/ Senior | SEBI ICDR Regulations, and as disclosed in “Our Management- Senior

Management Personnel | Management’ on page 325

Shareholders The equity shareholders of our Company whose names are entered into (i) the
register of members of our Company; or (ii) the records of a depository as a
beneficial owner of Equity Shares

Stakeholders The stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Company, constituted in

accordance with the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations and as
described in “Our Management- Board Committees- Stakeholders Relationship
Committee”’ on page 337

Issue Related Terms

Term Description

Abridged Prospectus A memorandum containing such salient features of a prospectus as may be
specified by SEBI in this regard

Acknowledgement Slip The slip or document issued by the relevant Designated Intermediary(ies) to a
Bidder as proof of registration of the Bid cum Application Form

Allot / Allotment | Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of Equity Shares issued

/Allotted pursuant to the Issue to the successful Bidders

Allotment Advice Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Bidders who have been
Allotted the Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the
Designated Stock Exchange

Allottee A successful Bidder to whom the Equity Shares are Allotted

Anchor Investor(s)

A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion in
accordance with the requirements specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
this Red Herring Prospectus and who has Bid for an amount of at least ¥ 100
million

Anchor
Allocation Price

Investor

The price at which Equity Shares will be allocated to Anchor Investors in terms of
this Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which will be decided by our
Company and in consultation with the BRLM during the Anchor Investor Bidding
Date

Anchor Investor
Application Form

The application form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor
Investor Portion and which will be considered as an application for Allotment in
terms of this Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus

Anchor Investor
Bid/Issue  Period or
Anchor Investor Bidding
Date

The day, being one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Opening Date, on which
Bids by Anchor Investors shall be submitted, prior to and after which the BRLM
will not accept any Bids from Anchor Investors, and allocation to Anchor Investors
shall be completed

Anchor
Price

Investor Issue

The final price at which the Equity Shares will be issued and Allotted to Anchor
Investors in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which price
will be equal to or higher than the Issue Price but not higher than the Cap Price.
The Anchor Investor Issue Price will be decided by our Company, in consultation
with the BRLM

Anchor Investor Pay-In
Date

With respect to Anchor Investor(s), the Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue Period, and in
the event the Anchor Investor Allocation Price is lower than the Anchor Investor
Issue Price, not later than two Working Days after the Bid/Issue Closing Date

Anchor Investor Portion

Up to 60% of the QIB Portion which may be allocated by our Company in
consultation with the BRLM, to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. One-third of the Anchor Investor
Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation
Price, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Application Supported by
Blocked Amount / ASBA

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders, other than
the Anchor Investors, to make a Bid and authorising an SCSB to block the Bid
Amount in the ASBA Account and includes the account of a UPI Bidder which is
blocked upon acceptance of a UPI Mandate Request by the UPI Bidder




Term

Description

ASBA Account

A bank account maintained by ASBA Bidders with an SCSB and specified in the
ASBA Form submitted by such ASBA Bidder in which funds will be blocked by
such SCSB to the extent of the specified in the ASBA Form submitted by such
ASBA Bidder and includes the account of a UPI Bidder which is blocked upon
acceptance of a UPI Mandate Request by the UPI Bidder

ASBA Bidders

All Bidders except Anchor Investors

ASBA Form

An application form, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders, to
submit Bids through the ASBA process, which will be considered as the
application for Allotment in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus and the
Prospectus

Banker(s) to the Issue

Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank, Refund Bank, Sponsor Bank and Public
Issue Account Bank, as the case may be

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders under the
Issue, as described in “Issue Procedure” on page 526

Bid

An indication to make an offer during the Bid/Issue Period by an ASBA Bidder
pursuant to submission of the ASBA Form, or during the Anchor Investor Bidding
Date by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to submission of the Anchor Investor
Application Form, to subscribe to or purchase the Equity Shares at a price within
the Price Band, including all revisions and modifications thereto as permitted
under the SEBI ICDR Regulations in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus and the
Bid cum Application Form

The term “Bidding” shall be construed accordingly.

Bid Amount

The highest value of the optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form
and, in the case of RIIs Bidding at the Cut off Price, the Cap Price multiplied by
the number of Equity Shares Bid for by such RIls and mentioned in the Bid cum
Application Form and payable by the Bidder or blocked in the ASBA Account of
the Bidder, as the case may be, upon submission of the Bid, as applicable

Bidding Centres

Centres at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms, i.e.,
Designated Branches for SCSBs, Specified Locations for the Syndicate, Broker
Centres for Registered Brokers, Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and
Designated CDP Locations for CDPs

Bid cum Application
Form

The Anchor Investor Application Form or the ASBA Form, as the context requires

Bid Lot

[e] Equity Shares and in multiples of [®] Equity Shares thereafter

Bid/Issue Closing Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after
which the Designated Intermediaries will not accept any Bids, which shall be
notified in all editions of Financial Express (a widely circulated English national
daily newspaper), and all editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national
daily newspaper, Hindi also being the regional language of New Delhi, where our
Registered Office is situated).

In case of any revision, the extended Bid/Issue Closing Date will be widely
disseminated by notification to the Stock Exchanges by issuing a press release,
and also by indicating the change on the website of the BRLM and at the terminals
of the Members of the Syndicate and by intimation to the Designated
Intermediaries and Sponsor Bank(s), as required under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, which shall also be notified in an advertisement in the same
newspapers in which the Bid/Issue Opening Date was published, as required under
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Our Company in consultation with the BRLM, may consider closing the Bid/Issue
Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Bid/ Issue Opening Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date on
which the Designated Intermediaries shall start accepting Bids, which shall be
notified in all editions of Financial Express (a widely circulated English national
daily newspaper), and all editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national




Term

Description

daily newspaper, Hindi also being the regional language of New Delhi, where our
Registered Office is situated)

Bid/ Issue Period

Except in relation to Anchor Investors, the period between the Bid/ Issue Opening
Date and the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both days, during which
prospective Bidders (excluding Anchor Investors) can submit their Bids, including
any revisions thereof in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the terms
of this Red Herring Prospectus. Provided that the Bidding shall be kept open for a
minimum of three Working Days for all categories of Bidders, other than Anchor
Investors.

Our Company in consultation with the BRLM, may consider closing the Bid/Issue
Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Bid/Issue Period will comprise
Working Days only

Bidder/ Applicant

Any prospective investor who makes a Bid pursuant to the terms of this Red
Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form and unless otherwise stated
or implied, includes an ASBA Bidder and an Anchor Investor.

Bidding Centres

Centres at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms i.e.,
Designated SCSB Branches for SCSBs, Specified Locations for Members of the
Syndicate, Broker Centres for Registered Brokers, Designated RTA Locations for
RTAs and Designated CDP Locations for CDPs.

Book Building Process

The book building process as described in Part A, Schedule XIII of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, in terms of which the Issue is being made

Book Running Lead

Manager / BRLM

The book running lead manager to the Issue, namely Mefcom Capital Markets
Limited

Broker Centre

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchanges where ASBA Bidders can submit
the ASBA Forms. The details of such Broker Centres, along with the names and
the contact details of the Registered Brokers are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchanges (www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com),
and updated from time to time.

CAN or Confirmation of
Allocation Note

The notice or advice or intimation of allocation of the Equity Shares sent to Anchor
Investors who have been allocated Equity Shares on/ after the Anchor Investor
Bidding Date.

Cap Price

The higher end of the Price Band, i.e. X [®] per Equity Share, above which the
Issue Price and the Anchor Investor Issue Price will not be finalised and above
which no Bids will be accepted. The Cap Price shall be at least 105% of the Floor
Price and less than or equal to 120% of the Floor Price.

Cash Escrow and
Sponsor Bank Agreement

The agreement dated June 14, 2025 entered into between our Company, the
Registrar to the Issue, the BRLM, the Syndicate Member(s), the Escrow Collection
Bank, Public Issue Account Bank, Sponsor Bank and Refund Bank in accordance
with the UPI Circulars, for inter alia collection of the Bid Amounts from Anchor
Investors, transfer of funds to the Public Issue Account and where applicable,
refunds of the amounts collected from Bidders, on the terms and conditions thereof

Client ID Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to
the demat account

Collecting  Depository | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996 registered

Participant or CDP with SEBI and who is eligible to procure Bids from the relevant Bidders at the

Designated CDP Locations in terms of the SEBI RTA Master Circular, and the
UPI Circulars issued by SEBI, as per the list available on the websites of BSE and
NSE, as updated from time to time.

Cut-off Price

The Issue Price, as finalised by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM
which shall be any price within the Price Band. Only RlIs are entitled to Bid at the
Cut-off Price. QIBs (including Anchor Investors) and Non-Institutional Bidders
are not entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price

Demographic Details

The details of the Bidders including the Bidder’s address, name of the Bidder’s
father/ husband, investor status, occupation, bank account details and UPI ID,
where applicable.
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Term

Description

Designated CDhP
Locations

Such locations of the CDPs where Bidders (other than Anchor Investors) can
submit the ASBA Forms, a list of which, along with names and contact details of
the Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept ASBA Forms are
available on the websites of the respective Stock Exchanges (www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com), as updated from time to time.

Designated Date

The date on which the Escrow Collection Bank transfers funds from the Escrow
Account to the Public Issue Account or the Refund Account, as the case may be,
and/or the instructions are issued to the SCSBs (in case of UPI Bidders, instruction
issued through the Sponsor Bank(s)) for the transfer of amounts blocked by the
SCSBs in the ASBA Accounts to the Public Issue Account(s) or the Refund
Account(s), as the case may be, in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus and the
Prospectus after finalization of the Basis of Allotment in consultation with the
Designated Stock Exchange, following which Equity Shares will be Allotted in the
Issue

Designated
Intermediaries

Collectively, syndicate members, sub-syndicate/ agents, SCSBs (other than in
relation to UPI Bidders), Registered Brokers, Brokers, CDPs and RTAs, who are
authorised to collect the Bid cum Application Forms from the Bidders, in relation
to the Issue.

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by RIIs (not using the UPI Mechanism) by
authorising a SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the ASBA Account, Designated
Intermediaries shall mean SCSBs.

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by UPI Bidders where the Bid Amount will
be blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by such UPI Bidder using
the UPI Mechanism, Designated Intermediaries shall mean Syndicate, sub-
Syndicate/agents, Registered Brokers, CDPs, and RTAs.

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors (not
using the UPI Mechanism), Designated Intermediaries shall mean Syndicate, sub-
Syndicate/ agents, SCSBs, Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs.

Designated RTA
Locations

Such locations of the RTAs where Bidders (other than Anchor Investors) can
submit the ASBA Forms to RTAs, a list of which, along with names and contact
details of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchanges (www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com) and
updated from time to time.

Designated SCSB
Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect ASBA Forms, a list of which is
available on the website of the SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i
ntmlId=35 and updated from time to time, and at such other websites as may be
prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Designated Stock
Exchange

BSE Limited

Draft Red  Herring
Prospectus or DRHP

The draft red herring prospectus dated September 29, 2024 filed with SEBI and
the Stock Exchanges, and issued in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
which does not contain complete particulars of the Issue, including the price at
which the Equity Shares will be Allotted and the size of the Issue.

Eligible FPIs

FPIs that are eligible to participate in the Issue in terms of applicable law and from
such jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an offer/ invitation
under the Issue and in relation to whom the Bid cum Application Form and this
Red Herring Prospectus constitutes an invitation to purchase the Equity Shares
issued thereby

Eligible NRIs

NRI(s) eligible to invest under the relevant provisions of the FEMA Rules, from
jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an offer or invitation
under the Issue and in relation to whom the Bid cum Application Form and this
the Red Herring Prospectus will constitute an invitation to purchase the Equity
Shares
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Term

Description

Escrow Account(s)

Accounts opened with the Escrow Collection Bank and in whose favour Anchor
Investors will transfer money through direct credit/ NEFT/ RTGS/NACH in
respect of Bid Amounts when submitting a Bid

Escrow Collection Bank

The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an
issue under the BTI Regulations, and with whom the Escrow Account(s) will be
opened, in this case being Axis Bank Limited

First Bidder

The Bidder whose name shall be mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or
the Revision Form and in case of joint Bids, whose name shall also appear as the
first holder of the beneficiary account held in joint names

Floor Price

The lower end of the Price Band, i.e. % [®] subject to any revision(s) thereto, at or
above which the Issue Price and the Anchor Investor Issue Price will be finalised
and below which no Bids, will be accepted and which will not be less than the face
value of the Equity Shares

Fraudulent Borrower

Fraudulent borrower as defined under Regulation 2(1)(1ll) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations

Fugitive Economic | A fugitive economic offender as defined under the Fugitive Economic Offenders
Offender Act, 2018
General Information | The General Information Document for investing in public issues, prepared and

Document or GID

issued in accordance with the SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/37 dated March 17,2020 and the UPI Circulars,
as amended from time to time. The General Information Document shall be
available on the websites of the Stock Exchanges and the BRLM

Issue

The initial public offer of up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares of face value of 310/-
each, at X [e] per Equity Share (including a premium of X [e] per Equity Share),
aggregating up to X [e] million by our Company

Issue Agreement

The agreement dated September 29, 2024 entered amongst our Company and the
Book Running Lead Manager, pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, based on
which certain arrangements are agreed to in relation to the Issue.

Issue Proceeds

The proceeds of the Issue which shall be available to our Company. For further
information about use of the Issue Proceeds, please see “Objects of the Issue” on
page 148.

Issue Price

X [@] per Equity Share, being the final price within the Price Band, at which the
Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders other than Anchor Investors.
Equity Shares will be Allotted to Anchor Investors at the Anchor Investor Issue
Price in terms of this Red Herring Prospectus.

The Issue Price will be decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM,
in accordance with the Book Building Process on the Pricing Date and in terms of
this Red Herring Prospectus.

Monitoring Agency | The agreement to be entered into between our Company and the Monitoring

Agreement Agency

Monitoring Agency The monitoring agency appointed pursuant to the Monitoring Agency Agreement,
namely CARE Ratings Limited

Mutual Fund Mutual funds registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

Mutual Fund Portion

Up to 5% of the Net QIB Portion, or [®] Equity Shares, which shall be available
for allocation to Mutual Funds only, on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids
being received at or above the Issue Price

Net Proceeds

The Proceeds of the Issue less Issue related expenses applicable to the Issue. For
further details, please see “Objects of the Issue” on page 148

Net QIB Portion

QIB Portion, less the number of Equity Shares Allotted to the Anchor Investors

Non-Institutional
Investors or NII (s)

All Bidders, that are not QIBs or RIIs and who have Bid for Equity Shares for an
amount of more than 2200,000 (but not including NRIs other than Eligible NRIs)

Non-Institutional Portion

The portion of the Issue being not less than 15% of the Issue comprising of [e]
Equity Shares which shall be available for allocation in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, to Non-Institutional Bidders, subject to valid Bids being
received at or above the Issue Price.
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Description

The allocation to the NIIs shall be as follows:

a)  One-third of the Non-Institutional Portion shall be reserved for applicants
with an application size of more than ¥ 200,000 up to ¥1.00 million; and

b)  Two-thirds of the Non-Institutional Portion shall be reserved for applicants
with an application size of more than ¥1.00 million;

Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the sub-categories specified in
clauses (a) or (b), may be allocated to applicants in the other sub-category of NIIs.

Non-Resident

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes Eligible
NRIs, FPIs and FVClIs registered with SEBI

Price Band

Price band of a minimum price of X [®] per Equity Share (Floor Price) and the
maximum price of X [e®] per Equity Share (Cap Price) and includes any revisions
thereof. The Cap Price shall be at least 105% of the Floor Price.

The Price Band and the minimum Bid Lot for the Issue will be decided by our
Company, in consultation with the BRLM, and will be advertised in all editions of
Financial Express (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper) and all
editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper, Hindi also
being the regional language of New Delhi, where our Registered Office is
situated), at least two Working Days prior to the Bid/Issue Opening Date, with the
relevant financial ratios calculated at the Floor price and at the Cap Price, and shall
be available to the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of uploading on their
respective websites

Pricing Date

The date on which our Company and in consultation with the BRLM, will finalise
the Issue Price

Prospectus

The prospectus to be filed with the RoC, in accordance with the Companies Act
and the SEBI ICDR Regulations containing, amongst other things, the Issue Price
that is determined at the end of the Book Building Process, the size of the Issue
and certain other information, including any addenda or corrigenda thereto

Public Issue Account(s)

Bank account to be opened in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, with the Public Issue Account Bank(s) to receive money from the Escrow
Accounts and from the ASBA Accounts on the Designated Date.

Public Issue Account | The banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI under the BTI

Bank(s) Regulations, with whom the Public Issue Account(s) will be opened for collection
of Bid Amounts from Escrow Account(s) and ASBA Accounts on the Designated
Date, in this case being Axis Bank Limited.

Qualified  Institutional | A qualified institutional buyer, as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI

Buyers” or “QIBs”

ICDR Regulations. However, non-residents which are FVCIs and multilateral and
bilateral development financial institutions are not permitted to participate in the
Issue.

QIB Portion

The portion of the Issue (including the Anchor Investor Portion) being not more
than 50% of the Issue, consisting of [®] Equity Shares which shall be available for
allocation on a proportionate basis, to QIBs (including the Anchor Investors, which
allocation shall be on a discretionary basis, as determined by our Company and in
consultation with the BRLM in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations),
subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price or Anchor Investor
Issue Price.

Red Herring Prospectus
or RHP

This red herring prospectus, including any corrigenda or addenda thereto, to be
issued by our Company in accordance with section 32 of the Companies Act and
the provisions of SEBI ICDR Regulations, which will not have complete
particulars of the price at which the Equity Shares will be issue and the size of the
Issue, including any addenda or corrigenda thereto. This red herring prospectus
will be filed with the RoC at least three working days before the Bid/ Issue
Opening Date and will become the Prospectus upon filing with the RoC after the
Pricing Date.

13




Term

Description

Refund Account(s) The ‘no-lien’ and ‘non-interest bearing’ account to be opened with the Refund
Bank, from which refunds, if any, of the whole or part, of the Bid Amount to the
Anchor Investors shall be made

Refund Bank(s) The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in
this case being Axis Bank Limited

Registered Broker Stockbrokers registered with the stock exchanges having nationwide terminals

other than the members of the Syndicate, and eligible to procure Bids in terms of
the SEBI ICDR Master Circular and the UPI Circulars issued by SEBI

Registrar Agreement

The agreement dated September 25, 2024 entered amongst our Company and the
Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the
Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the Issue

Registrar, or Registrar to
the Issue

The Registrar to the Issue namely KFin Technologies Limited.

Resident Indian

A person resident in India, as defined under FEMA

Retail Individual
Investors or RII(s)

Individual Bidders (including HUFs applying through their karta and Eligible
NRIs and does not include NRIs other than Eligible NRIs) who have Bid for the
Equity Shares for an amount not more than 200,000 in any of the Bidding options
in the Issue

Retail Portion

The portion of the Issue being not less than 35% of the Issue consisting of [e]
Equity Shares which shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders
in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being
received at or above the Issue Price

Revision Form

Form used by the Bidders to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid
Amount in any of their ASBA Form(s) or any previous Revision Form(s), as
applicable

QIB Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders are not allowed to withdraw or lower
their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage.
Retail Individual Bidders Bidding in the Retail Portion can revise their Bids during
the Bid/Issue Period and withdraw their Bids until Bid/Issue Closing Date

RTAs/Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents

The Registrar and Share Transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to
procure Bids at the designated RTA Locations as per the list available on the
websites of BSE and NSE through the UPI circulars.

SCORES Securities and Exchange Board of India Complaints Redress System
Self-Certified Syndicate | The banks registered with SEBI, issuing services: (a) in relation to ASBA (other
Bank(s) or SCSB(s) than using the UPI Mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SEBI

at

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i
ntmld=34 and
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i
ntmld=335, as applicable or such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from
time to time; and (b) in relation to ASBA (using the UPI Mechanism), a list of
which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i
ntmId=40, or such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Applications through UPI in the Issue can be made only through the SCSBs mobile
applications (apps) whose name appears on the SEBI website. A list of SCSBs and
mobile application, which, are live for applying in public issues using UPI
Mechanism is provided as Annexure ‘A’ to the SEBI circular number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26,2019. The said list is available
on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&i
ntmlId=43, as updated from time to time.

Specified Locations

The Bidding centres where the Syndicate shall accept Bid cum Application Forms
from relevant Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI
(www.sebi.gov.in), and updated from time to time.
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Description

Sponsor Bank(s)

The Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI which is appointed by our Company
to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and the National Payments
Corporation of India in order to push the mandate collect requests and/or payment
instructions of the UPI Bidders into the UPI Mechanism and carry out any other
responsibilities in terms of the UPI Circulars, the Sponsor Bank in this case being
Axis Bank Limited.

Stock Exchanges

Collectively, BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Syndicate Agreement

Agreement dated June 14, 2025 entered into among our Company, the BRLM, and
the Syndicate Members in relation to collection of Bid cum Application Forms by
Syndicate

Syndicate Members

Intermediaries (other than BRLM) registered with SEBI who are permitted to
accept bids, applications and place orders with respect to the Issue and carry out
activities as an underwriter namely, Mefcom Securities Limited

Sub-syndicate Members

The sub-syndicate members, if any, appointed by the BRLM and the Syndicate
Members, to collect ASBA Forms and Revision Forms

Syndicate or members of
the Syndicate

Together, the BRLM and the Syndicate Members

Systemically Important
Non-Banking Financial
Company or NBFC-SI

Systemically important non-banking financial company as defined under
Regulation 2(1)(iii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Underwriters

[e]

Underwriting Agreement

The agreement dated [ @] entered into amongst the Underwriters and our Company
on or after the Pricing Date, but prior to filing of the Prospectus

UPI

Unified Payments Interface, which is an instant payment mechanism developed
by NPCI

UPI Bidders

Collectively, individual investors applying as (i) Retail Individual Investors in the
Retail Portion; and (ii) individual Bidders applying as Non-Institutional Investors
with a Bid Amount of up to ¥500,000 in the Non-Institutional Portion and Bidding
under the UPI Mechanism.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Master Circular, all individual investors applying in
public issues where the application amount is up to X 500,000 shall use UPI and
shall provide their UPI ID in the Bid cum Application Form submitted with: (i) a
syndicate member, (ii) a stock broker registered with a recognized stock exchange
(whose name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for
such activity), (iii) a depository participant (whose name is mentioned on the
website of the stock exchange as eligible for such activity), and (iv) a registrar to
an issue and share transfer agent (whose name is mentioned on the website of the
stock exchange as eligible for such activity)

UPI Circulars

Collectively, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated
July 26, 2019, the RTA Master Circular and the SEBI ICDR Master Circular, along
with the circular issued by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited having
reference no. 25/2022 dated August 3, 2022 and the circular issued by BSE
Limited having reference no. 20220803-40 dated August 3, 2022, and any
subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI and Stock Exchanges in this
regard.

UPI ID

ID created on UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by the
NPCI

UPI Mandate Request

A request (intimating the UPI Bidder by way of a notification on the UPI
application, by way of a SMS directing the UPI Bidder to such UPI application) to
the UPI Bidder initiated by the Sponsor Bank to authorise blocking of funds on the
UPI application equivalent to Bid Amount and subsequent debit of funds in case
of Allotment

UPI Mechanism

The Bidding mechanism that may be used by a UPI Bidder to make a Bid in the
Issue in accordance with the UPI Circulars

UPI PIN

Password to authenticate UPI transaction

Wilful Defaulter or
Fraudulent Borrower

A wilful defaulter or fraudulent borrower, as defined under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations
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Term

Description

Working Day(s)

All days, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business; provided
however, with reference to (a) announcement of Price Band; and (b) Bid/Issue
Period, Working Day shall mean all days except all Saturdays, Sundays and public
holidays on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business and (c) the
time period between the Bid/Issue Closing Date and the listing of the Equity Shares
on the Stock Exchanges, “Working Day” shall mean all trading days of Stock
Exchanges, excluding Sundays and bank holidays in India, as per the circulars
issued by SEBI from time to time.

Technical/ Industry Related Terms

Term Description
ADB Asian Development Bank
BG Bank guarantee
BOLT Build Own Lease Transfer
BLT Build Lease Transfer
BOQ Bill of Quantities
BOO Build Own Operate
BOT Build Operate Transfer
BOOT Build Own Operate Transfer
CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate
CPI Consumer Price Index
CPWD Central Public Works Department
DCMF Design Construct Manage Finance
EAP External Assistance Projects (World Bank, JICA, ADB)
EFTA European Free Trade Association
Est., Adv. Est Estimated, Advance Estimates
ELV Extra-Low Voltage
EP Engineering and Procurement
EPC Engineering, Procurement and Construction
EPCC Engineering, Procurement, Construction, and Commissioning
EPCI Engineering, Procurement, Construction, and Installation
EPCM Engineering, Procurement, and Construction Management
FDI Foreign Direct Investment
GDP Gross Domestic Product
GFCF Gross Fixed Capital Formation
GST Goods and Service Tax
GVA Gross Value Added
HAM Hybrid Annuity Model
HVAC Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning
IT Information Technology
1P Index of Industrial Production
IMF International Monetary Fund
IPMD Infrastructure & Project Monitoring Division
INR Indian Rupee
JICA Japan International Cooperation Agency
LDO Lease Develop Operate
LWE Left Wing Extremism
MEP Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing
Mn, Bn, Tn, Cr Million, Billion, Trillion, Crore
m-0-m Month on Month
MOSPI The Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation
NDA National Democratic Alliance
NHAI National Highway Authority of India
NHDP National Highway Development Project
NIP National Infrastructure Pipeline
NRIDA National Rural Infrastructure Development Agency
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Term

Description

NSO National Statistics Office

Niti Aayog National Institute for Transforming India

Order Book Our Order Book represents the estimated contract value of the unexecuted portion
of our existing assigned civil construction projects and is an indicator of visibility
of future revenue for our Company

O0&M Operation & Maintenance

P,F Projected, Forecast

PFCE Private Final Consumption Expenditure

PLI Production Linked Incentive

PMGSY Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana

PPP Public-Private Partnership

PRC Percentage rate contract

PWD Public Works Department

RCC Reinforced Cement Concrete

RBI Reserve Bank of India

SARDP- NE Special Accelerated Road Development Programme for North Eastern Region

SITC Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning

TOT Toll Operate Transfer

UAE United Arab Emirates

UPI Unified Payments Interface

UPVC Unplasticized Polyvinyl Chloride

UsS United States

USD US Dollar

WPI Wholesale Price Index

Y-o-Y Year on Year

Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations

Term Description

“T” or “Rs.” or “Rupees” | Indian Rupees

or “INR”

Alc Account

AGM Annual general meeting

AIF An alternative investment fund as defined in and registered with SEBI under the
SEBI AIF Regulations

AS Accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
as notified from time to time.

BSE BSE Limited

Basic EPS Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year / period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year / period.

SEBI BTI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994.

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

Calendar Year / year

Unless the context otherwise requires, shall refer to the twelve-month period
ending December 31

Category I AIF AlFs registered as “Category I alternative investment funds” under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

Category I FPIs FPIs registered as “Category I foreign portfolio investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations

Category 1T AIF AlFs registered as “Category II alternative investment funds” under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

Category 11 FPIs FPIs registered as “Category II foreign portfolio investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations

Category 11 AIF AlFs registered as “Category III alternative investment funds” under the SEBI
AIF Regulations

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CIN Corporate Identity Number
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Term

Description

CIT

Commissioner of Income Tax

Companies Act, 1956

Companies Act, 1956, and the rules, regulations, notifications, modifications and
clarifications made thereunder, as the context requires

Companies Act, 2013 /
Companies Act

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules, regulations, notifications, modifications and
clarifications thereunder

CGST Act

The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, as amended

CSR

Corporate Social Responsibility

Consolidated FDI Policy

The consolidated FDI Policy, effective from October 15, 2020, issued by the
DPIIT, and any amendments or substitutions thereof, issued from time to time

Contract Labour Act The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

Demat Dematerialised

Depositories Act Depositories Act, 1996 read with the rules and regulations thereunder

Depository /| NSDL and CDSL

Depositories

Diluted EPS Diluted EPS is calculated as the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost
associated) for the year / period attributable to equity shareholders after deducting
attributable taxes and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year / period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

DGFT Director General of Foreign Trade, Ministry of Commerce

DIN Director Identification Number

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identification Number

DP / Depository | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

Participant

DPIIT The Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of
Commerce and Industry, Government of India

EBITDA Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

EBITDA Margin EBITDA margin is an indicator of the operational profitability and financial
performance of our Company. This is calculated through EBITDA divided by total
income of our Company.

EGM Extraordinary general meeting

EPS Earnings per share

FAQs Frequently asked questions

FCNR Foreign currency non-resident account

FDI Foreign direct investment

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, including the rules and regulations

thereunder

FEM NDI Rules/ FEMA
Rules

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Financial Year / Fiscal /
FY/FY.

Period of twelve months ending on March 31 on that particular year, unless stated
otherwise

FI Financial Institutions

FIR First Information Report

FPI(s) A foreign portfolio investor who has been registered pursuant to the SEBI FPI
Regulations

FVCI Foreign venture capital investors, as defined under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000, registered
with SEBI

FVCI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor)
Regulations, 2000

Fugitive Economic | An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of

Offender the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Central Government / | Government of India

Gol

GST Goods and service tax

HUF Hindu undivided family

IT Act The Information Technology Act, 2000
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Term

Description

LT. Act/IT Act 1961

The Income Tax Act, 1961

ICAI The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards of the International Accounting
Standards Board

IGST Act Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

Ind AS Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India, being, accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended

IRDAI Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India

IST Indian Standard Time

IT Information technology

PO Initial Public Offer

KPI Key Performance Indicator

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

MCLR Marginal Cost of Funds based Lending Rate.

MSME Micro, Small or a Medium Enterprise

N.A/NA Not applicable

NACH National Automated Clearing House

National Investment | National Investment Fund set up by resolution F. No. 2/3/2005-DD-II dated

Fund November 23, 2005 of the Gol, published in the Gazette of India

NAV Net asset value

NBFC Non-Banking Financial Companies

NBFC - SI Systemically important non-banking financial company as defined under
Regulation 2(1)(iii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal

NECS National electronic clearing service

NEFT National electronic fund transfer

Negotiable Instruments
Act

The Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

Net worth

Net Worth has been defined under Regulation 2(1)(hh) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations as the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves
created out of the profits and securities premium account and debit or credit
balance of profit and loss account, after deducting the aggregate value of the
accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not
written off, as per the audited balance sheet, but does not include reserves created
out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation.

Non-Resident

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA

NPCI National payments corporation of India

NRE Account Non-resident external account established in accordance with the Foreign
Exchange Management (Deposit) Regulations, 2016

NRO Account Non-resident ordinary account established in accordance with the Foreign
Exchange Management (Deposit) Regulations, 2016

NSDL National Securities Deposit Limited

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

OCB/ Overseas | A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or

Corporate Body indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts in which
not less than 60% of the beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or
indirectly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003, and immediately before
such date had taken benefits under the general permission granted to OCBs under
the FEMA. OCBs are not allowed to invest in the Issue

ODI Offshore derivative instruments.

p.a. Per annum

P/E Ratio Price/earnings ratio
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Term

Description

PAN

Permanent account number allotted under the I.T. Act

PAT

Profit After Tax

Rand D

Research and development

RBI

Reserve Bank of India

Regulation S

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act

RoE

Return on Equity. Return on Equity has been taken from the Restated
Consolidated Financial Information for the respective period/year ended and
return of equity has been calculated from Profit after tax divided by the average
of equity of our Company.

RoCE

Return on Capital Employed. Return on Capital employed has been taken from
the Restated Consolidated Financial Information for the respective period/year
ended and return on capital employed has been calculated from profit before
interest and tax for the year and divided by the average of capital employed of our
Company. For calculating the Return on Capital Employed, capital employed is
considered after eliminating the effect of land, capital work in progress and capital
advance given for Dadri Project of our Company as the project has not yet been
completed.

RoNW

Return on Net Worth. Return on Net Worth means the net profit after tax
attributable to owners of our Company, as restated divided by restated net worth
at the end of the year/period.

Rs. /Rupees/ T/ INR

Indian Rupees

RTGS

Real time gross settlement

SCORES SEBI Complaints Redress System

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

SEBI ICDR Regulations | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

SEBI Listing | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Regulations Requirements) Regulations, 2015

SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

SEBI BTI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994

SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2019

SEBI FVCI Regulations | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors)
Regulations, 2000

SEBI Insider Trading | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations Regulations, 2015

SEBI ICDR Master | SEBI master circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-

Circular 1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024.

SEBI Merchant Bankers | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992

Regulations

SEBI Mutual Funds | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

Regulations

SEBI RTA  Master | SEBI master circular bearing number SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37

Circular dated May 07, 2024.

SEBI Takeover | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Regulations Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

Segment For the purposes of this Red Herring Prospectus, the word segment refers to the

product classification.

Specified Securities

Equity shares and/or convertible securities

STT

Securities transaction tax

TAN Tax deduction account number
TDS Tax deducted at source
U.S. / USA/ United | The United States of America and its territories and possessions, including any

States

state of the United States of America, Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam,
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Term

Description

American Samoa, Wake Island and the Northern Mariana Islands and the District
of Columbia

U.S. Securities Act

United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended

US GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America

USA/U.S/US The United States of America

USD/ US$/ $ United States Dollars

UTGST Act Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

VAT Value added tax

VCFs Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996
or the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012, as the case may be.

Wilful  Defaulter or | Wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower as defined under Regulation 2(1)(III) of

Fraudulent Borrower

the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION, INDUSTRY AND
MARKET DATA AND CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

Certain Conventions

All references to “India” in this Red Herring Prospectus are to the Republic of India and its territories and
possessions and all references herein to the “Government”, “Indian Government”, “Gol”, “Central Government”
or the “State Government” are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable.

All references in this Red Herring Prospectus to the “US”, “U.S.” “USA” or “United States” are to the United
States of America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Red Herring Prospectus is in Indian Standard Time
(‘GlST’J).

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Red Herring Prospectus are to the corresponding
page numbers of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Financial Data

Unless indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Red Herring Prospectus are to a calendar year. Our
Company’s Financial Year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all
references in this Red Herring Prospectus to a particular Financial Year or FY or Fiscal, unless stated otherwise,
are to the 12-month period ended on March 31 of that particular calendar year.

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires or indicates, the financial information, financial ratios
and any percentage amounts as forth in this Red Herring Prospectus have been derived from our Restated
Consolidated Financial Information.

The Restated Consolidated Financial Information included in this Red Herring Prospectus comprises the restated
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as at for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for
the financial years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the restated consolidated
statements of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the restated consolidated statement of
changes in equity, the restated consolidated cash flow statement for the nine months period ended December 31,
2024 and financial years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the summary statement of
significant accounting policies, and other explanatory information, together with the annexures and the notes
thereto, prepared in accordance with the requirements of section 26 of Part I of Chapter III of the Companies Act,
the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised
2019) issued by the ICAI Please see “Summary of the Issue Document - Summary of Restated Consolidated
Financial Information” and “Financial Information” on pages 28 and 351, respectively.

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on
March 31 of that particular calendar year and accordingly, all references to a particular financial year are to the
12-month period commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ending on March 31 of
that particular calendar year. Reference in this Red Herring Prospectus to the terms Fiscal or Fiscal Year or
Financial Year or FY is to the 12 months ended on March 31 of such year, unless otherwise specified.

Our Restated Consolidated Financial Information has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. There are
significant differences between International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The degree to which the financial
information included in this Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent
on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act
2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019)
issued by the ICAI. Accordingly, any reliance by persons not familiar with Ind AS, the Companies Act 2013, the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the
ICALI and practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Red Herring Prospectus should accordingly be
limited. We have not attempted to quantify the impact of IFRS or U.S. GAAP on the financial information
included in this Red Herring Prospectus, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our financial information to those
under U.S. GAAP or IFRS and we urge you to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their
impact on our financial information.
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For further details in connection with risks involving differences between Ind AS, U.S. GAAP and IFRS, please
see “Risk Factors- We have in this Red Herring Prospectus included certain Non-GAAP Measures that may
vary from any standard methodology that is applicable across the construction industry and may not be
comparable with financial information of similar nomenclature computed and presented by other companies”
on page 89.

Further, any figures sourced from third-party industry sources may be rounded off to other than two decimal points
to conform to their respective sources.

Certain additional financial information pertaining to our Group Companies are derived from their respective
audited financial statements.

Certain figures contained in this Red Herring Prospectus, including financial information, have been subject to
rounding adjustments. All decimals, including percentages, have been rounded off to two decimal points. In
certain instances (i) the sum or percentage change of such numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure
given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total
figure given for that column or row. However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party
industry sources are rounded off to other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear
in this Red Herring Prospectus as rounded off to such number of decimal points as provided in their respective
sources.

Non-Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Financial Measures

In evaluating our business, we consider and use non-GAAP financial measures and key performance indicators,
including EBITDA, EBITDA Margin, Net Worth, Return on Net Worth, Net Asset Value, Net Debt — EBITDA,
Total Debt — Equity, etc., which have been included in this Red Herring Prospectus. The presentation of these
non-GAAP financial measures and key performance indicators is not intended to be considered in isolation or as
a substitute for the financial information prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS. We present these
non-GAAP financial measures and key performance indicators because they are used by our management to
evaluate our operating performance and formulate business plans.

These non-GAAP financial measures are not defined under Ind AS and are not presented in accordance with Ind
AS. The non-GAAP financial measures and key performance indicators have limitations as analytical tools.
Further, these non-GAAP financial measures and key performance indicators may differ from the similar
information used by other companies, including peer companies, and therefore their comparability may be limited.
Therefore, these metrics should not be considered in isolation or construed as an alternative to profit before tax,
net earned premiums, gross earned premiums or any other measure of performance or as an indicator of our
operating performance, liquidity or profitability or results of operations. In addition, non-GAAP financial
measures used are not a standardised term, hence a direct comparison of non-GAAP financial measures between
companies may not be possible. Other companies may calculate non-GAAP financial measures differently from
us, limiting its usefulness as a comparative measure. For further details, please see “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations — Non-GAAP Financial Measures”’ on page 453
and “Risk Factors- We have in this Red Herring Prospectus included certain Non-GAAP Measures that may
vary from any standard methodology that is applicable across the construction industry and may not be
comparable with financial information of similar nomenclature computed and presented by other companies
on page 89.

Currency and Units of Presentation
All references to:

(@)  “Rupee(s)”, “Rs.”, “X” or “INR” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India;

(b)  “$7,“US$”,“U.S. Dollars” or “USD” are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States
of America.

In this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has presented certain numerical information. Except as otherwise
stated, all figures have been expressed in million/ millions. However, where any figures that may have been
sourced from third-party industry sources are expressed in denominations other than million/ millions, such
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figures appear in this Red Herring Prospectus expressed in such denominations as provided in their respective
sources.

In this Red Herring Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts
listed are due to rounding off. However, figures sourced from third-party industry sources may be expressed in
denominations other than million or may be rounded off to other than two decimal points in the respective sources,
and such figures have been expressed in this Red Herring Prospectus in such denominations or rounded-off to
such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources.

Exchange Rates

This Red Herring Prospectus contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have
been presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as
a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any
particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between
the Rupee and the other currencies used in this Red Herring Prospectus:

(in3)
Exchange rate as on*
December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
USD 85.62 83.37 82.22 75.81
#Source: www.fbil.org.in
Note: Exchange rate is rounded off to two decimal point
*In the event that any of the aforementioned date is a public holiday, the previous calendar day not being a public holiday
has been considered.

Currency

Industry and market Data

Unless stated otherwise, information pertaining to the industry in which our Company operates in, contained in
this Red Herring Prospectus is derived from the D&B Report, issued by D&B, which has been exclusively
commissioned and paid for by our Company, pursuant to an engagement letter dated May 04, 2024 for the purpose
of understanding the industry in connection with this Issue, since no report is publicly available which provides a
comprehensive industry analysis, particularly for our Company’s services, that may be similar to the D&B Report.
This Red Herring Prospectus contains certain data and statistics from the D&B Report, which is available on our
Company’s website at https://www.globecivilprojects.com/corporate-governance.

Dun & Bradstreet vide their Letter dated June 12, 2025 (“Letter”) has accorded their no objection and consent to
use the D&B Report, in full or in part, in relation to the Issue. Further, D&B, vide their Letter has confirmed that
they are an independent agency, and that it is not related to our Company, our Directors, our Promoters, members
of our Promoter Group, our Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management or the BRLM.

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from
publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable but accuracy, completeness and
underlying assumptions of such third-party sources are not guaranteed. Although the industry and market data
used in this Red Herring Prospectus is reliable, the data used in these sources may have been re-classified by us
for the purposes of presentation however, no material data in connection with the Issue has been omitted. Data
from these sources may also not be comparable. Further, Dun & Bradstreet has confirmed that to the best of its
knowledge no consent is required from any Government or other source from which any information is used in
the D&B Report.

The D&B Report is subject to the following disclaimer:

This study has been undertaken through extensive secondary research, which involves compiling inputs from
publicly available sources, including official publications and research reports. Estimates provided by Dun &
Bradstreet (“Dun & Bradstreet”) and its assumptions are based on varying levels of quantitative and qualitative
analysis including industry journals, company reports and information in the public domain.

Dun & Bradstreet has prepared this study in an independent and objective manner, and it has taken all reasonable

care to ensure its accuracy and completeness. We believe that this study presents a true and fair view of the
industry within the limitations of, among others, secondary statistics, and research, and it does not purport to be
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exhaustive. The results that can be or are derived from these findings are based on certain assumptions and
parameters/conditions. As such, a blanket, generic use of the derived results or the methodology is not
encouraged.

Forecasts, estimates, predictions, and other forward-looking statements contained in this report are inherently
uncertain because of changes in factors underlying their assumptions, or events or combinations of events that
cannot be reasonably foreseen. Actual results and future events could differ materially from such forecasts,
estimates, predictions, or such statements.

The recipient should conduct its own investigation and analysis of all facts and information contained in this
report is a part and the recipient must rely on its own examination and the terms of the transaction, as and when
discussed. The recipients should not construe any of the contents in this report as advice relating to business,
financial, legal, taxation or investment matters and are advised to consult their own business, financial, legal,
taxation, and other advisors concerning the transaction.

Unless otherwise indicated, all financial, operational, industry and other related information derived from the
D&B Report and included herein with respect to any particular year, refers to such information for the relevant
year. Actual results and future events could differ materially from such forecasts, estimates, predictions, or such
statements. Although the industry and market data used in this Red Herring Prospectus is reliable, industry sources
and publications may base their information on estimates and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Further,
industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates and may no longer
be current or reflect current trends. The extent to which industry and market data set forth in this Red Herring
Prospectus is meaningful depends on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used
in compiling such data. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct
our business, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.

In making any decision regarding the transaction, the recipient should conduct its own investigation and analysis
of all facts and information contained in the prospectus and the recipient must rely on its own examination and
the terms of the transaction, as and when discussed. For risks in relation to the D&B Report, please see “Risk
Factors- Certain sections of this Red Herring Prospectus contain information from the D& B Report which we
commissioned and purchased and any reliance on such information for making an investment decision in the
Issue is subject to inherent risks”” on page 89.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the section titled “Basis for Issue Price” on page 166 includes
information relating to our peer group companies. Such information has been derived from publicly available

sources specified herein. Accordingly, no investment decision should be made solely on the basis of such
information.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Red Herring Prospectus contains certain statements which are not statements of historical fact and may be
described as “forward-looking statements”. These forward-looking statements include statements which can be
generally identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “are likely”, “believe”, “continue”,

“expect”, “estimate”’, “intend”, “will likely”, “likely to”, “may”, “seek to”, “shall”, “objective”, “plan”,

“project”, “propose”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”, “will achieve”, “can”, “could”, “goal” or other
words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our Company’s strategies, objectives, plans
or goals are also forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward
looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our business strategy, plans,
revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts) and
other matters discussed in this Red Herring Prospectus that are not historical facts. All statements in this Red

Herring Prospectus that are not statements of historical fact are ‘forward looking statements’.

I

These forward-looking statements are based on our current plans, estimates and expectations and actual results
may differ materially from those suggested by such forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
are subject to risks, uncertainties, expectations and assumptions about us that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks or
uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to
the industry in which our Company operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully
implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general
economic and political conditions in India and globally which have an impact on our business activities,
investments, or the industry in which we operate, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation,
unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the
performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in domestic laws, regulations, taxes, changes
in competition in the industry in which we operate and incidents of any natural calamities and/or acts of violence.
Certain important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company’s expectations
include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, we
derived 10.10%, 29.77%, 57.48% and 54.62%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from
construction project receipts business segment from projects developed by Central Public Works
Department (“CPWD?”), our top customer. Any slowdown or inability to win new project awards from
CPWD (whether due to a slowdown or cessation in new projects being undertaken by such entities), an
inability to qualify for and successfully compete for new projects or otherwise) or the loss of any of our
current significant projects (whether due to restructuring or termination of such projects) could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

(i1)  Our business and profitability are substantially dependent on the demand for construction services, change
in budgetary allocation and the requirements for construction projects in the infrastructure and non-
infrastructure sectors across India. During the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal
2024, the Social & Commercial Infrastructure segment (Education institutions) contributed to 61.95% and
47.09%, respectively, of our revenue from operations (construction project receipts). Any reduction in the
activity and expenditure levels in such sectors may adversely affect our business and prospects and may
reduce the number of projects we undertake and impede our growth.

(i)  For the nine months ended December 31, 2024, our Company submitted successful bids for 11 projects but
secured only one, reflecting a success rate of 9.09%, compared to 54.55% in FY24. Our revenues depend
upon the award of new contracts and the timing of those awards. Additionally, the competitive bidding
process, failure to meet pre-qualification criteria, and non-qualification due to technical issues may hamper
our revenue. Consequently, our results of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected or fluctuate
materially from period to period.

(iv)  For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, we
derived 3.14%, 11.71%, 14.92% and 11.23%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from trading of
goods, primarily TMT steel. Any reduction in trading activity, changes in market demand, or fluctuations
in the price of TMT steel may reduce our revenue from this segment and, consequently, impact our total
revenue from operations.
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V) As of March 31, 2025, our Order Book, on a consolidated basis, was 36,691.02 million. Projects included
in our Order Book may be delayed, modified or cancelled for reasons beyond our control, or not fully paid
for by our clients, which could materially harm our cash flow position, revenues or profits.

(vi)  For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022,
our revenue from operations from projects undertaken under JVs contributed 36.40%, 33.36%, 28.98%,
and 35.15%, respectively, amounting to ¥897.92 million, ¥978.44 million, ¥575.36 million, and ¥891.50
million, respectively. The failure of a JV counterparty or consortium member to perform its obligations
could impose additional financial and performance obligations resulting in reduced profits or, in some
cases, significant losses, and it may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

(vii)  For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022,
our % contribution to revenue from operations (construction project receipts) from our top ten projects was
98.33%, 89.54%, 92.82% and 99.13%, respectively. Further, our Company’s revenue from operations
(construction project receipts) stood concentrated in the top 10 ongoing projects out of the total ongoing
projects during the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022. As on March 31, 2025, there were 13 ongoing projects.
Any delay or loss of any of these projects could adversely affect our business, cash flow position, results
of operations and financial condition.

(viii) Our business and profitability are substantially dependent on the availability and cost of our raw materials,
and we are dependent on third party suppliers for meeting our raw material requirements. Any disruption
to the timely and adequate supply, or volatility in the prices of, raw materials may adversely impact our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

(ix)  We are increasingly dependent on sub-contractors for workforce, materials, and specialized work. Sub-
contractor costs were 35.14% in FY23, 44.57% in FY24, and 54.65% for the nine months ended December
31, 2024—reflecting a rising trend. Our business in manpower intensive, and we are dependent on an
adequate supply and availability of contract labour engaged by our sub-contractors at our project locations.
Any unavailability or shortage of such supply of contract labour for our project sites could adversely affect
our operations.

(x)  The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and the Issue Price of the
Equity Shares, market capitalization and price to earnings ratio based on the Issue Price of the Equity
Shares, may not be indicative of the market price of the Company on listing or thereafter and, as a result,
you may lose a significant part or all of your investment.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations,
please see “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position
and Results of Operations” on pages 42, 272 and 453, respectively. By their nature, certain market risk
disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a
result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated. We cannot assure
investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. Given these
uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not to
regard such statements as a guarantee of our future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus
and are not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on our management’s beliefs,
assumptions, current plans, estimates and expectations, which in turn are based on currently available information.
Although we believe the assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any
of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions
could be incorrect.

Neither our Company, our Directors, our Promoters, the Book Running Lead Manager, the Syndicate Members
nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements
reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the
underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company
will ensure that Investors in India are informed of material developments pertaining to our Company and the
Equity Shares forming part of the Issue from the date of this Red Herring Prospectus until the time of the grant of
listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchanges.
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SUMMARY OF ISSUE DOCUMENT

This section is a general summary of the terms of the Issue, certain disclosures included in this Red Herring
Prospectus and is not exhaustive, nor does it purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Red
Herring Prospectus when filed, or all details relevant to prospective investors. This summary should be read in
conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Red
Herring Prospectus, including the sections titled “Risk Factors”, “The Issue”, “Capital Structure”, “Objects
of the Issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Our Promoters and Promoter Group”, “Restated
Consolidated Financial Information”, “Outstanding Litigation and Other Material Developments”,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Issue
Procedure” on pages 42, 109, 130, 148, 181, 272, 344, 351, 493, 453, and 526, respectively of this Red Herring

Prospectus.
Summary of Primary Business of our Company

We are an integrated engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”) company headquartered in New Delhi.
We are into execution and construction of infrastructure projects comprising of Transport & Logistics projects
(which comprise of construction and/ or upgrades of roads and bridges, airport terminals and railway terminals)
and Social and Commercial projects (which comprise of educational institutions, sports infrastructure and
hospitals) and non-infrastructure projects comprising of commercial offices and housing. While our primary focus
and strength had been deeply rooted in constructions of education institution buildings, we have diversified in
undertaking specialized infrastructure and non-infrastructure projects, such as railway bridges, airport terminal,
elevated railway terminal and railway bridges and hospitals.

Please see the below the breakup of revenue in percentage terms from different types of projects (i.e., education
institution, transport and logistics, social and commercial; and non-infrastructure projects):

For the nine months
period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
o, o, 0, o,
Business Revenu A) . Revenu A’ . Revenu A’ . Revenu A’ .
. contributio contributio contributio contributio
Vertical e e e e
. n to . n to . n to . n to
R in R in R in R in
i revenue e revenue rye revenue rye revenue
millions millions millions millions
) from ) from ) from ) from
operations operations operations operations
Infrastructure

Logistics & Transportation

Railway

terminals 239.79 9.42 | 294.15 8.86 |  60.43 2.59 - -
infrastructur

€

Roads & 0.66 0.03 | 155.06 467 | 447.08 19.16 | 915.81 32.05
bridges

Social & Commercial Infrastructure

Education 1,577.60 61.95 | 1,564.22 47.09 | 927.48 39.75 | 1,397.25 48.90
Institutions

Hospitals

(capital 73.14 2.87 | 22644 6.82 | 396.47 16.99 71.49 2.50
stock)

Sports

Infrastructur 152.87 6.00 228.32 6.87 - - - -

€

Non-Infrastructure

Housing 253.00 9.94 83.04 250 | 115.78 496 | 141.81 4.96
Office and | 9 o 6.66 | 381.43 11.48 38.03 1.63 9.8 0.34
others
Other - 79.84 3.14 | 388.95 1171 | 348.18 1492 | 32092 11.23
trading

Total 2,546.57 100.00 | 3,321.62 100.00 | 2,333.45 100.00 | 2,857.09 100.00
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The value and number of ongoing projects and completed projects of the Company are as under:

Fiscal 2025
Business Vertical Ongoing LS TR ¢ ostt RIS Completed Cost of the project
Projects ® ill:l:ljiflcions) Projects (R in millions)

Infrastructure
Logistics & Transportation
Railway terminals infrastructure 2 3,977.90 - -
Airport 1 3,432.00 - -
Social & Commercial Infrastructure
Education Institutions 4 5,036.70 1 1,850.00
Sports Infrastructure 1 478.60 - -
Non-Infrastructure
Housing 4 4,039.80 - -
Office and others 1 1,430.00 - -
Total 13 18,395.00 1 1,850.00

Further, the manner in which the Company obtains contracts for its projects typically involves the following steps:
(i) Business development; (ii) Tendering; and (iii) Post-tendering, as disclosed in detail on page 298. Additionally,
the contract bidding success rate for the last 3 FY and the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 is
disclosed as under:

For the nine
months
period ended
December 31,
Particulars 2024 Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Number of successful bids made
- CPWD 5 2 NA 1
- Government 6 3 4 2
- Non-Government 0 6 1 NA
Total 11 11 5 3
Number of projects awarded
- CPWD 0 0 NA 1
- Government 1 3 1 0
- Non-Government 0 3 1 NA
Total 1 6 2 1
Percentage ratio of Awarded / Bid
- CPWD 0.00% 0.00% NA 100.00%
- Government 16.67% 100.00% 25.00% 0.00%
- Non-Government 0.00% 50.00% 100.00% NA
Total 9.09% 54.55% 40.00% 33.33%
Value of projects awarded (% in million) 3,432.00 8,401.50 1,222.93 1,858.22

“NA” signifies “Not Applicable”, as no bids were submitted.
The revenue model of our Company is as under:

Our revenue is derived from two business segments, namely (i) construction project receipts; and (ii) trading of
goods.
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Construction project receipts

Our construction project receipts can be categorized into two (2) broad categories, namely Infrastructure project
and Non-Infrastructure projects. Infrastructure projects are divided into (i) Transport and Logistics projects, which
comprise of roads and bridges, airport terminal and railway terminal; and (ii) Social and Commercial projects,
which comprise of education institutions, sports infrastructure and hospitals. Non-Infrastructure projects are
divided into (i) commercial offices and (ii) housing.

Trading of goods

Our Company being in the business of construction requires steel, cement, sand, aggregates, etc., for executing
the projects awarded to it. In order to execute the work on time and to reduce the cost of procurement for the
above items required for completion of a projects, we stock our principal raw material — TMT steel. After captive
consumption, residue TMT steel are sold in the open market to third party contractors, traders, etc. on
commercially viable terms.

The business model of our Company is as under:

Our approach to project execution is structured around different types of contracts that define pricing, cost
adjustments, and project scope:

Fixed price contracts provide for a single price for the total amount of work, subject to variations pursuant to
changes in the client’s project requirements.

Contracts with escalation clauses: Contracts with escalation clauses are contracts having price escalation clauses
for increases in the cost of principal raw material, such as TMT bars, cement, concrete and electrical items, etc.,
as specified in the contracts.

Fixed price contracts and contracts with escalation clauses can be further classified into EPC project contracts,
item-rate contracts and percentage rate contracts.

EPC project contract: For EPC project contracts, the client supplies conceptual information pertaining to the
project and spells out the project requirements and specifications

Item-rate contracts are contracts where we need to quote the price of each item presented in a BOQ furnished
by the client

Percentage rate contracts require us to quote a percentage above, below or at par with the estimated cost furnished
by the client.

Summary of the Industry in which our Company operates

India's economy has exceeded expectations, registering an 8.2% growth in FY24. Construction sector is one of
the major segments that drives an economy. A unit increase in expenditure in construction sector has a multiplier
effect on other sectors with a capacity to generate income as high as five times in other sectors. Growth in the
number of construction projects creates as well as strengthens the demand for a myriad range of products and
services. These include project management services, EPC/EPCM services and architecture consulting services,
to name a few. The competitive dynamics within the EPC industry are primarily shaped by substantial upfront
capital investments and stringent technical norms established by contract awarding authorities, which restrict
smaller players from entering large-scale projects. (Source: D&B Report)

India’s construction market is expected to be the second largest globally by 2030, with Gross Value Added (GVA)
expected to reach INR 21.8 trillion, projected to grow at 7.2% CAGR between FY 2024-30.

Our Promoters

Our Promoters are Ved Prakash Khurana, Nipun Khurana and Vipul Khurana. For further details, please see “Our
Promoters and Promoter Group” on page 344.

Issue Size
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Issue
Shares®

of Equity

[®] million

Up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each, for cash at price of X [@]
per Equity Share (including premium of X [e] per Equity Share), aggregating up to

Notes:

O The Issue has been authorised by our Board pursuant to its resolution dated August 20, 2024 and by our Shareholders’
vide special resolution dated August 21, 2024. Subsequently, our Board vide its resolution dated May 21, 2025 approved
the revised Issue size i.e., up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares.

The Issue shall constitute [®] % of the post-Issue paid up Equity Share Capital of our Company. For further details
of the issue, please see “The Issue” and “Issue Structure” on pages 109 and 522, respectively.

Objects of the Issue

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilised in the following manner:

(< in million)
Particulars Amount
Funding working capital requirements of our Company 750.00
Capital expenditure towards purchase of construction equipment/machineries 142.55

General corporate purposes (V?

[e]

Total Net Proceeds

[e]

) To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC.
2 The amount utilised for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds of the Issue, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

For further details, please see “Objects of the Issue’ on page 148.

Aggregate Pre-Issue shareholding of our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group

The aggregate pre-Issue and post-Issue shareholding of our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group
and any other top 10 shareholders (apart from Promoters), as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus is set out

below:
Post-Issue shareholding as at Allotment
At the lower end of the | At the upper end of
price band (X [¢])® the price band
Percentage of Numb P 7 1[\;])(2;) P 7
Name of the Equity Shares .pre-Issue. Ofu]::n ue;iy ofrcen (?ft? ofum er ofercen 38%?
Shareholder of face value of paid-up eq}llty Sh q il 1 p Eaui 1 p
210 each share capital ares o Ssue quity ssue
(%) face Equity Shares Equity
value of | Share of face | Share
%10 each | Capital value of | Capital
@ (%)® Z10 (%)®
each @
Promoters
Eﬁiﬁmh 5,773,659 13.44 [o] [o] [o] [o]
Nipun Khurana 16,045,705 37.35 [e] [e] [e] [e]
Vipul Khurana 16,045,705 37.35 [e] [e] [e] [e]
Total (A) 37,865,069 88.14 [e] [e] [e] [e]
Promoter Group
Vimal Khurana 170 Negligible [e] [o] [e] [e]
Total (B) 170 Negligible [e] [o] [o] [e]
Top 10 shareholders other than the above
Mukesh Chand 1,683,000 3.92 [e] o] [o] o]
Jain
i‘;ﬂiﬁ:&am 1,262,250 2.94 [o] [o] [o] [o]
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Post-Issue shareholding as at Allotment
At the lower end of the | At the upper end of
price band (X [¢])® the price band &
)
Percentage of Number | Percentage 1[\1.lHnber Percentage
Equity Shares pre-Issue it
gl:::hoofl:ll:; of face value of paid-up equity O;Eqult); (I)f [ %f . (I)f £
210 each share capital Shares o ssue quity ssue
(%) face Equity Shares | Equity
value of | Share of face | Share
%10 each | Capital value of | Capital
@ (%)(1) 210 (%)(l)
each
Palak - Mukesh 1,262,250 2.94 [o] [o] [o] [o]
Jain
Chanakya
Opportunity 486,850 1.13 [e] [e] [e] [e]
Fund I
RPV Holdings
Private Limited 177,310 0.41 [e] [e] [e] [e]
Prime Venture
Trust-  Prime 88.570 021 [o] o] [o] [o]
Venture ’ ’
Growth Fund
Starters CFO
Private Limited 44,400 0.10 [e] [e] [e] (o]
Harsh  Paresh
Shah 35,516 0.08 [e] [e] [e] [o]
Hanuman
Ingrow LLP 15,300 0.04 [®] [e] [e] [e]
Vinod Babulal
Sanghvi 14,800 0.03 [e] [e] [e] [e]
Total (C) 50,70,246 11.80 [e] [e] [e] [e]
g‘)’tal (A+B+ 4,29,35,485 99.95 [o] o] [o] [o]

() To be updated in the Prospectus
) To be updated upon finalisation of Price Band

Summary of Restated Consolidated Financial Information

(% in million

except per share data)

nﬁlse z:rtu?ll:izoretrlils d As at and for the As at and for the As at and for the
Particulars ended Decemll:er 31 Fiscal ended Fiscal ended Fiscal ended
2024 > March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Equity - Share 429.58 24.75 24.75 24.75
Capital
Net worth ¥ 998.28 776.69 624.41 574.52
Revenue — from 2,546.57 3,321.62 2,333.45 2,857.09
operations
PAT — (after 177.89 153.78 48.51 52.01
exceptional items)
Earnings per share
(basic) - (with 4.14 3.58 1.13 121
exceptional items)
(in3) @
Earnings per share
(diluted) ~* (with 4.14 3.58 113 121
exceptional items)
(in3)®
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nﬁlse ?;::gl?;etrl;; d As at and for the As at and for the As at and for the
Particulars ended December 31 Fiscal ended Fiscal ended Fiscal ended
2024 ’|  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Return on Net
Worth — —after 17.82% 19.80% 7.77% 9.05%
exceptional Item
(C)
Adjusted ~ NAY 23.24 18.10 14.55 13.39
per equity share
Total current and
non-current 1,379.69 1,244.78 969.95 707.55
borrowings
Notes:
1. Net worth has been defined as the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the

profits and securities premium account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss account, after deducting the
aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off, as per
the audited balance sheet, but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation
and amalgamation as on December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2024; 2023 and 2022, in accordance with Regulation
2(1)(hh) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended.

Basic EPS (]) = Basic earnings per share calculated by dividing the Restated Profit for the year by the number of
Equity Shares outstanding at the year-end, after considering impact of bonus issuance retrospectively, for all periods
presented.

Diluted EPS (%) = Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Restated Profit for the year by the number
of equity shares outstanding at the year end as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential Equity Shares
outstanding at the year end, if any and after considering impact of bonus issuance retrospectively, for all periods
presented.

Return on Net worth afier exceptional Item (%) = Restated Profit for the year/ period after exceptional item as a
percentage of the Net worth as at the end of the year.

Adjusted Net Asset Value per Equity Share = Net worth divided by the number of equity shares outstanding at the end
of the year, after considering impact of bonus issuance on July 20, 2024.

For further details, please see “Other Financial Information” on page 450.

Qualifications of the Auditors which have not been given effect to in the Restated Consolidated Financial
Information

There

are no qualifications of the Statutory Auditors which have not been given effect to in the Restated

Consolidated Financial Information.

Our Statutory Auditors have included emphasis of matters for the Restated Consolidated Financial Information
pertaining to Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2023. For details, please see “Risk Factors” on page 42.

Summary of Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, Directors and Promoters as disclosed
in “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations on page 493,
and the materiality policy approved by our Board pursuant to resolution dated September 24, 2024 is set forth

below:
(< in million, unless otherwise specified)
Name of Criminal Tax Statutory or | Disciplinary Material Aggregate
the Entity | Proceedings | Proceedings | Regulatory actions by Civil Amount
Proceeding | the SEBIor | Litigations | Invelved (X
Stock in million)
Exchanges
against our
Promoter
Company
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil 5 1,337.80
Company
Against our 1" 4 Nil Nil 1 170.86
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Name of Criminal Tax Statutory or | Disciplinary Material Aggregate
the Entity Proceedings | Proceedings | Regulatory actions by Civil Amount
Proceeding | the SEBIor | Litigations | Involved (R
Stock in million)
Exchanges
against our
Promoter
Company
Directors (other than Promoters)
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
Against our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
Promoters
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Against our Nil Nil Nil Nil 2 3.03
Promoter

#In accordance with the Materiality Policy
“Not ascertained at this stage
*Tax proceedings against the Company cover actions by regulatory and statutory authorities against the Company.

Details of the material civil litigations are as under:

1. Globe Civil Projects Private Limited (“Petitioner”/ “Company”) vs. Union of India, Ministry of
Finance (“Respondent 1), Union of India (Superintending Engineer, AIIMS Rishikesh, Ministry of
Health and Family Welfare (“Respondent 2”) and Union of India, Ministry of Commerce
(“Respondent 3”) (collectively referred to as “Respondents”) Pending Before the High Court of
Delhi, New Delhi, W.P. (C) 16629/ 2023

Respondent 2 issued a Notice inviting Tender bearing Tender No. MOHFW/PMSSY/ INMC Aligarh
HLL/ID/2011 for construction of new emergency and trauma centre, OPD and OBG Blocks at Jawahar
Lal Nehru Medical College, Aligarh Muslim University, Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh (“Project”) amounting to
%679.66 million. Our Company was awarded the said Project. Certain disputes and differences arose
between the Petitioner and Respondent 2, after completion of the Project on March 31, 2016, which
culminated into arbitration proceedings and an Award in favour of the Petitioner dated February 28, 2022
(“Award”) amounting to ¥144.20 million. The said Award was then corrected due to a typographical error
on April 13,2022 (“Corrected Award”). Thereafter, Respondent 1 issued the Office memorandum dated
May 29, 2023 with the subject “Vivad Se Vishwas-II (Contractual Disputes)” (“Scheme”) to clear backlog
of old litigation cases/ to effectively settle pending disputes. Respondent 3 was entrusted with the
responsibility of implementation of the Scheme. The Scheme was subject to fulfilment of certain
conditions. It is pertinent to note that since the Petitioner fulfilled all the eligibility conditions under the
Scheme, it filed an application for payment of 95% of the Corrected Award calculated in terms of the
Scheme. The Petitioner claimed X83.60 million being 95% of the principal amount awarded along with
interest at the rate of 9% per annum, aggregating to 3129.44 million (“Settlement Amount”). However,
Respondent 2 failed to evaluate the Settlement Amount due and offer it to the Petitioner for acceptance,
within two weeks of receipt of claims, on the portal of Respondent 3. Due to inaction on Respondent 2°s
part, the Petitioner issued a letter to the project management consultant of Respondent 2 to process the
application pertaining to the Settlement Amount. Thus, being aggrieved by inaction on Respondent 2’s
part, our Company filed the present petition, which included certain prayers including payment of the
Settlement Amount by Respondent 2. The matter is pending.

2. Globe Civil Projects Private Limited (“Petitioner”/ “Company”) vs. Union of India (“Respondent”)
before the High Court of Delhi, New Delhi, O.M.P. (COMM) 15/2024

Our Company was awarded a tender/ work for construction of Office Building for NCTE at Dwarka, New
Delhi, amounting to 3284.14 million (“Project”). Thereafter, our Company furnished performance bank
guarantee to the tune of X18.65 million on March 30, 2015. Since inception, the Project was delayed on
account of reasons attributable solely to the Respondent. While the stipulated time period for completion
of the Project was 540 days, there was a delay of 548 days (it is to be noted that extension of time was
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granted without levy of compensation). Certain disputes arose between the Petitioner and the Respondent
on certain issues i.e., lesser rates being paid for extra items, non-payment of incentive, extra expenses
incurred on account of extension of contract. Therefore, for adjudication of the said disputes, arbitration
proceedings were invoked by the Petitioner. The Petitioner stated/ submitted that it has claims amounting
to 56 million from the Respondent. However, the Ld. Sole Arbitrator, Sudhir Kumar Chawla vide Award
dated September 1, 2023 directed the Respondent to pay a sum of 35.91 million (“Impugned Award”).
Aggrieved by the said Impugned Award, the Petitioner filed the petition under section 34 of the Arbitration
Act before the High Court of Delhi, New Delhi. Per the Petitioner, the said Impugned Award is without
reasons. The matter is currently pending.

Globe Civil Projects Private Limited (“Claimant”/ “Company”) vs. Government of NCT of Delhi
(“Respondent”)

The Respondent invited a Tender for “Construction of 200 Bedded Hospital at Kaushik Enclave, Burari,
Delhi” on November 27, 2012 (“Project”). Our Company submitted its bid on November 30, 2012 and
emerged as the successful bidder for the Project, for the tendered amount of *951.54 million. The Project
commenced on February 7, 2013 and was due for completion on August 6, 2015. However, due to breaches
solely attributable to the Respondent, there was a delay of 2,171 days in completing the Project. The work
was completed on July 16, 2021 to the satisfaction of the Respondent. The site was handed over to the
Respondent on April 25, 2022. However, due to rejection of claims made by the Claimant amounting to
%672.52 million, the Claimant was constrained to file a Petition under Section 11(6) of the Arbitration &
Conciliation Act, 1996 before the Delhi High Court (“DHC”) bearing Arb. P. No. 1337/2024. The matter
is currently pending.

Globe Civil Projects Limited (“Company”/ “Petitioner”) vs. Union of India (“Respondent”)- Before
the High Court of Delhi, Ordinary Original Civil Jurisdiction [OMP (ENF) (COMM) No. 267 of
2024]

Our Company was awarded the work for expansion of “Nehru Hospital and C/o National Institute of
Paramedical Science I/c water supply, sanitary installation, drainage and internal electrical installations
of PGIMER, Sector 12, Chandigarh” by the Respondent for tendering amount of ¥527.14 million
(“Project”). The said Project was to be completed within 540 days, however, our Company applied for
extension of time and completed the Project after a delay of 1,665 days. During the currency of the Project,
disputes arose between the Parties. Subsequently, after approaching the Sole Arbitrator for redressal of
disputes, the Sole Arbitrator passed an award in favour of the Petitioner to the tune of ¥258.67 million
(“Impugned Award”). It is against the said Impugned Award that the Respondent filed an objection
petition under section 34 of the A&C Act. The Petitioner submitted that the objection petition filed by the
Respondent in the District Court, Chandigarh stood barred by virtue of section 42 of the A&C Act, as the
same lacked territorial jurisdiction. The matter is currently pending.

Arvind Techno Globe JV (“Joint Venture”/ “Petitioner”) vs. Delhi Metro Rail Corporation
(“Respondent”)- Before the High Court of Delhi at New Delhi, Ordinary Original Civil Jurisdiction

Our Joint Venture was awarded the work for “Part Design and Construction of elevated viaduct including
architectural finishing viz. Johri Enclave and Shiv Vihar stations including architectural finishing, water
supply, sanitary installations and drainage works of stations from chainage 55121.184 m to 57357.623 m
of line 7 Mukundpur-Yamuna Vihar Corridor of Phase- III Delhi MTRS in Delhi and Uttar Pradesh”
(“Project”). Thereafter, disputes arose between the Parties and our Joint Venture filed an application under
section 11(6) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 (“A&C Act”) for appointment of an
independent sole arbitrator. The following claims were raised by the Petitioner in the arbitration
proceedings- (i) compensation on account of onsite expenses during prolongation period due to delay on
the part of the Respondent along with interest @18% p.a. w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- 261.79
million (“Claim 1”); (ii) compensation on account of offsite expenses during prolongation period along
with interest @18% p.a. w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- 360.61 million (“Claim 27); (iii)
compensation for expenditure incurred for the repair and maintenance of the roads during the prolongation
period along with interest @18% p.a. w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- X 11.89 million (“Claim 3”);
(iv) extra cost incurred on account of erection of extra/ additional OHE walls over and above the tendered
amounts along with interest @18% p.a. w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- 32.82 million (“Claim 4”);
(v) refund of alleged penal recoveries made in the final bill along with interest @18% p.a. w.e.f. 01.11.2018
till date of award- %30.46 million (“Claim 5); (vi) extra interest recovered on mobilization advance,
special advance and plant and machinery advance due to prolongation of work beyond updated stipulated
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date of completion along with interest @ 18% per annum with effect from 01.11.2018 till the date of award-
%23.12 million (“Claim 6”); (vii) Reimbursement of NGT Tax along with interest @ 18% per annum with
effect from 01.11.2018 till the date of award- X 3.26 million (“Claim 7”); (viii) refund/ recovery of illegal
and unjustified liquidated damages imposed along with interest @ 18% per annum with effect from
01.11.2018 till the date of award- %5.46 million (“Claim 8”); (ix) charges incurred on account of renewal
of bank guarantees, CAR policies and insurance policies in extended period- ¥3.56 million (“Claim 9”);
(x) refund of GST along with interest @ 18% per annum with effect from 01.11.2018 till the date of award-
%3.43 million (“Claim 10”). Vide award dated August 03, 2024, the Sole arbitrator rejected the aforesaid
Claims of the Petitioner (“Impugned Award”). Our Joint Venture has filed the present objection petition
under section 34 of the A&C Act, against the Impugned Award. The matter is pending.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Group
Company which may have a material impact on our Company as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

For further details of the outstanding litigation proceedings, please see “Qutstanding Litigation and Material
Developments” on page 493.

Risk Factors

Specific attention of the investors is invited to “Risk Factors” on page 42. Investors are advised to read the risk
factors carefully before taking an investment decision in the Issue. The details of Top 10 Risk Factors are stated
below:

1. For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, we
derived 10.10%, 29.77%, 57.48% and 54.62%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from
construction project receipts business segment from projects developed by Central Public Works
Department (“CPWD?”), our top customer. Any slowdown or inability to win new project awards from
CPWD (whether due to a slowdown or cessation in new projects being undertaken by such entities), an
inability to qualify for and successfully compete for new projects or otherwise) or the loss of any of our
current significant projects (whether due to restructuring or termination of such projects) could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

2. Our business and profitability are substantially dependent on the demand for construction services, change
in budgetary allocation and the requirements for construction projects in the infrastructure and non-
infrastructure sectors across India. During the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal
2024, the Social & Commercial Infrastructure segment (Education institutions) contributed to 61.95% and
47.09%, respectively, of our revenue from operations (construction project receipts). Any reduction in the
activity and expenditure levels in such sectors may adversely affect our business and prospects and may
reduce the number of projects we undertake and impede our growth.

3. For the nine months ended December 31, 2024, our Company submitted successful bids for 11 projects but
secured only one, reflecting a success rate of 9.09%, compared to 54.55% in FY24. Our revenues depend
upon the award of new contracts and the timing of those awards. Additionally, the competitive bidding
process, failure to meet pre-qualification criteria, and non-qualification due to technical issues may hamper
our revenue. Consequently, our results of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected or fluctuate
materially from period to period.

4. For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, we
derived 3.14%, 11.71%, 14.92% and 11.23%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from trading of
goods, primarily TMT steel. Any reduction in trading activity, changes in market demand, or fluctuations
in the price of TMT steel may reduce our revenue from this segment and, consequently, impact our total
revenue from operations.

5. As of March 31, 2025, our Order Book, on a consolidated basis, was 26,691.02 million. Projects included
in our Order Book may be delayed, modified or cancelled for reasons beyond our control, or not fully paid
for by our clients, which could materially harm our cash flow position, revenues or profits.

6. For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022,

our revenue from operations from projects undertaken under JVs contributed 36.40%, 33.36%, 28.98%,
and 35.15%, respectively, amounting to ¥897.92 million, ¥978.44 million, ¥575.36 million, and ¥891.50
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million, respectively. The failure of a JV counterparty or consortium member to perform its obligations
could impose additional financial and performance obligations resulting in reduced profits or, in some
cases, significant losses, and it may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

7. For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022,
our % contribution to revenue from operations (construction project receipts) from our top ten projects was
98.33%, 89.54%, 92.82% and 99.13%, respectively. Further, our Company’s revenue from operations
(construction project receipts) stood concentrated in the top 10 ongoing projects out of the total ongoing
projects during the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022. As on March 31, 2025, there were 13 ongoing projects.
Any delay or loss of any of these projects could adversely affect our business, cash flow position, results
of operations and financial condition.

8. Our business and profitability are substantially dependent on the availability and cost of our raw materials,
and we are dependent on third party suppliers for meeting our raw material requirements. Any disruption
to the timely and adequate supply, or volatility in the prices of, raw materials may adversely impact our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

9. We are increasingly dependent on sub-contractors for workforce, materials, and specialized work. Sub-
contractor costs were 35.14% in FY23, 44.57% in FY24, and 54.65% for the nine months ended December
31, 2024—reflecting a rising trend. Our business in manpower intensive, and we are dependent on an
adequate supply and availability of contract labour engaged by our sub-contractors at our project locations.
Any unavailability or shortage of such supply of contract labour for our project sites could adversely affect
our operations.

10.  The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and the Issue Price of the
Equity Shares, market capitalization and price to earnings ratio based on the Issue Price of the Equity
Shares, may not be indicative of the market price of the Company on listing or thereafter and, as a result,
you may lose a significant part or all of your investment.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities of our Company

Except as disclosed below, there are no contingent liabilities of our Company as at December 31, 2024 derived
from the Restated Consolidated Financial Information:

(% in million)

Particulars As at December 31, 2024
Income Tax Demands 7.22
Demand raised by Service Tax Department* 159.06
GST Litigation 2.19
Guarantees** 62.00
Total 230.47
Commitments Nil

*It represents litigation of Demand already dropped for Z159.06 million subsequently department has challenged the order in
CESTAT. Now the tribunal has passed an order dated 03.03.2025 & the appeal filed by the department has been dismissed. it
also includes demand of 36.39 million raised by Commissioner of Central Goods & Service Tax, New Delhi for the Financial
year 2015-16 on 31.01.2024 against which Commission Appeal-I1I has granted full relief vide order dated 18/09/2024.

** The Company had provided corporate guarantee to Yes Bank Ltd. for securing the working capital limits and term loan
facility by Vara Milk Foods Specialities Pvt. Ltd. in November, 2022, where the Managing Director of the company is one of
the directors and holds 16.25% of the equity shares. The loan has been repaid by Vara Milk Foods Specialities Pvt. Ltd. &
subsequently the corporate guarantee has been released.

For further details of contingent liabilities, please see “Financial Information— Restated Consolidated Financial
Information- Annexure V — Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Information- Note 44— Contingent
Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments” on page 351.

Summary of Related Party Transactions

Summary of the related party transactions as per Ind AS 24 — Related Party Disclosures read with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, derived from Restated Consolidated Financial Information is as follows:

(< in million)
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Name of the Related Relation December | Fiscal 2024 | Fiscal 2023 | Fiscal 2022

Party 31, 2024

A. Gross Contractual Receipts

SCL GCPL Joint Venture Joint Venture 20.18 161.46 2.23 -

GCPPL-SCIPL Joint Venture 376.32 362.90 15.40 .

Consortium

KSIB GCPPL Joint Joint Vent

Venture LLP otnt Venture 119.26 54.38 - -

B. Director’s Remuneration
Director (Whole-

Ved Prakash Khurana me  Director 5.50 10.00 ] ]
22/06/2024)

Vipul Khurana Managing 8.50 3.15 2.40 2.40
Director

Nipun Khurana Managing 8.50 3.15 2.40 2.40
Director

Parveen Sachdeva Director 0.30 1.20 1.20 1.20

C. Unsecured Loan Taken

Ved Prakash Khurana Director 13.55 61.86 67.18 55.63

Vipul Khurana Managing 21.18 65.45 46.21 80.55
Director

Nipun Khurana Managing 10.81 15.02 36.98 38.38
Director

. Director (Up to

Rajiv Goel 28/07/2021) - - - 0.50

D. Repayment of Unsecured Loan
Director (Whole-

Ved Prakash Khurana e Director 25.04 63.78 62.25 56.04
22/06/2024)

Vipul Khurana Managing 35.41 60.65 43.65 76.23
Director

Nipun Khurana Managing 12.95 13.45 37.19 47.78
Director

E. Advance received

Earthcon Systems (India) | Enterprises under

Private Limited Control of KMP’s - - 2.00 1.00

F. Advance Repayment

Earthcon Systems (India) | Enterprises under

Private Limited Control of KMP’s - - 2.00 1.00

G. Advance Repayment

Earthcon Systems (India) | Enterprises under

Private Limited Control of KMP’s - - - 0.33

H. Interest Paid
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Name of the Related Relation December | Fiscal 2024 | Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

Party 31, 2024
GCPPL-SCIPL Joint Vent
Consortium omt Venture 7.14 17.92 - -

I. Advance Given return back

Parag Mendiratta Relative of

KMP’s - 2.40 - 0.08
Relative of
Neha Khurana KMP’s - 0.65 ) 0.08

For details of the related party transactions in accordance with Ind AS 24, please see “Financial Information-
Restated Consolidated Financial Information- Annexure V- Notes to Restated Consolidated Financial
Information- Note 49— Related Party Disclosures” on page 351.

Financing arrangements

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of our Promoter Group, our
Directors and/or their relatives have financed the purchase of Equity Shares of our Company, by any other person,
(other than in the normal course of the business of the financing entity), during a period of six months immediately
preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Weighted average price at which the Equity Shares were acquired by our Promoters in the last one year
preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus

The weighted average price at which our Promoters acquired the Equity Shares in the one year preceding the date
of this Red Herring Prospectus is provided below:

Name Number of Equity Weighted Average Price of Equity Shares
Shares acquired acquired *

Promoters
Ved Prakash Khurana 5,434,032 Nil
Nipun Khurana 15,101,840 Nil
Vipul Khurana 15,101,840 Nil

s certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.

Weighted average cost of acquisition of all shares transacted in the last one year, 18 months and three years
preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Weighted Cap Price is ‘x’ ., R-a'n.ge of .
average cost of times the Floor Price Is'x acqu1s1t‘10n price
. . . times the weighted | per Equity Share:
Period acquisition per weighted average cost of lowest price —
Equity Share (in average FOSt of acquisition*# highest price (in )
Hn acquisition*” A
Last one  year
preceding the date of 1.24 [o] [o] Nil - 56.47*
this Red Herring
Prospectus
Last 18 months
preceding the date of 1.24 [o] [o] Nil - 56.47*
this Red Herring
Prospectus
Last three years
preceding the date of 1.24 [o] [o] Nil - 56.47*
this Red Herring
Prospectus
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s certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.

# The Board of Directors pursuant to their resolution dated July 16, 2024 and the Shareholders’ vide special resolution dated
July 18, 2024 approved the issuance of 40,431,472 bonus Equity Shares in the ratio of 16:1, which were allotted on July 20,
2024. Accordingly, the acquisition price is calculated after giving effect of the bonus issue.

* To be updated in the Prospectus, following finalisation of the Cap Price.

Average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares of our Promoters

The average cost of acquisition per Equity Share of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters, as at the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus, is set forth below:

Name Number of Equity Shares Average cost of acquisition per
Equity Share (3)*
Promoters
Ved Prakash Khurana 5,773,659 1.79
Nipun Khurana 16,045,705 Nil*
Vipul Khurana 16,045,705 Nil*

s certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.
*Since the average cost of acquisition is negative, it has been considered as Nil.

For further details of the acquisition of Equity Shares of our Promoters, please see “Capital Structure — Details
of Shareholding of our Promoter, members of Promoter Group in our Company’ at page 130.

Details of price at which specified securities were acquired by our Promoters, the members of the Promoters
Group and Shareholders with the right to nominate directors or other special rights in the last three years
preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus

Except as disclosed below, our Promoters, the members of the Promoter Group and Shareholders with the right
to nominate directors or other special rights have not acquired any specified securities in the last three years
preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. | Date of acquisition | Number of | Face Nature of acquisition Acquisition
No. / Equity value price per
allotment/Transfer Shares (in%) Equity
of the Equity acquired/ Share* (in
Shares transferred %)
Promoters
Ved Prakash Khurana
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares to .
! May 26,2022 (23,325) 10 Subhash Chandra Pahwa by way of gift Nil
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares to .
2 May 26,2022 (23,325) | 10 g\ iphi Khurana by way of gift Nil
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares from .
3 January 18, 2024 23,325 10 Shanti Pahwa by way of gift Nil
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares from .
4 January 18, 2024 23,325 10 Subhash Chandra Pahwa by way of gift Nil
Transfer of 10 Equity Shares to Vimal .
5 January 18, 2024 (10) 10 Khurana by way of gift Nil
6 July 20, 2024 5,434,032 10 Allotment of 5,434,032 Equity Shares Nil
pursuant to Bonus Issue
Nipun Khurana
Transfer of 56,135 Equity Shares to
1 August 29, 2023 (56,135) 10 Mukesh Chand Tain 269
2 July 20, 2024 15.101,840 | 10 | Allotment  of 15,101,840 Equity Nil
pursuant to Bonus issue
Vipul Khurana
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Sr. Date of acquisition | Number of | Face Nature of acquisition Acquisition

No. / Equity value price per
allotment/Transfer Shares (in%) Equity
of the Equity acquired/ Share* (in
Shares transferred %)
10 | Transfer of 74,250 Equity Shares to
1 August 29, 2023 (74,250) Palak Mukesh Jain 269

10 | Transfer of 74,250 Equity Shares to

2 August 29, 2023 (74,250) Indubala Mukesh Chand Jain 269
10 | Transfer of 30,365 Equity Shares to
3 August 29, 2023 (30,365) Mukesh Chand Tain 269
4 July 20, 2024 15,101,840 10 | Allotment of 15,101,840 Equity Nil
Shares pursuant to Bonus Issue
Promoter Group
Vimal Khurana
Transfer of 10 Equity Shares from Ved .
1 August 29, 2023 10 10 Khurana by way of gift Nil
) July 20, 2024 160 10 Allotment of 160 Equity Shares Nil
pursuant to Bonus Issue

Shareholders with the right to nominate directors or any other special rights
Not Applicable

*A4s certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.

Details of Pre-IPO Placement

Our Company has not undertaken any Pre-IPO Placement.

Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash or bonus issue in the last one year

Other than issuance of Equity Shares pursuant to bonus allotment made on July 20, 2024, our Company has not
issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash or bonus issue in the one year preceding the date of
this Red Herring Prospectus.

Split or Consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

Our Company has not undertaken any split or consolidation of Equity Shares in one year preceding the date of
this Red Herring Prospectus.

Exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws, if any
Our Company has not made any application under Regulation 300(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations for seeking

an exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws by SEBI, as on the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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SECTION II - RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Red Herring Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described below before making an
investment in the Equity Shares.

We have described the risks and uncertainties that we consider to be the most significant to our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition as of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, but these risks
and uncertainties may not be the only risks relevant to us, the Equity Shares, or the industry in which we currently
operate. To obtain a more detailed understanding of our business and operations, please read this section in
conjunction with “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Key Regulations and Policies”, “Restated
Consolidated Financial Information”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Result of Operations” and “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on pages 181, 272, 310, 351,
453 and 493 respectively, as well as other financial and statistical information contained in this Red Herring
Prospectus.

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factor below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial
or other implication of any of the risks mentioned in this section. If any or a combination of the following risks
actually occur, or if any of the risks that are currently not known or deemed to be not relevant or material now
actually occur or become material in the future, our business, cash flows, prospects, financial condition and
results of operations could suffer, the trading price of the Equity Shares could decline, and you may lose all or
part of your investment. In making an investment decision, you must rely on your own examination of us and the
terms of the Issue, including the merits and risks involved, and you should consult your tax, financial and legal
advisors about the particular consequences of investing in the Issue. Prospective investors should pay particular
attention to the fact that our Company is incorporated under the laws of India and is subject to a legal and
regulatory environment which may differ in certain respects from that of other countries.

This Red Herring Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates
and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward- looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including but not limited to the considerations described below. For
details, please see “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 26.

Unless otherwise indicated, the industry-related information and market data used in this section is derived from
a report titled “Construction Industry in India Report” dated June 6, 2025 prepared by Dun & Bradstreet
Information Services India Private Limited, which has been prepared exclusively for the purpose of understanding
the industry in connection with the Issue and commissioned and paid for by our Company in connection with the
Issue (“D&B Report”). The data included herein includes excerpts from the D&B Report and may have been re-
ordered by us for the purposes of presentation. Unless otherwise indicated, all financial, operational, industry
and other related information derived from the D&B Report and included herein with respect to any particular
year, refers to such information for the relevant calendar year. A copy of the D&B Report is available on the
website of our Company at https://www.globecivilprojects.com/corporate-governance.

FIINNTS LIS

Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this section to “our Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our” are to
Globe Civil Projects Limited.

Our financial or fiscal year ends on March 31 of each calendar year. Accordingly, references to a “Fiscal” or
“fiscal year” are to the 12-month period ended March 31 of the relevant year. Unless otherwise stated or the
context otherwise requires, the financial information included in this section is as at December 31, 2024, March
31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, and for the period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal
2023 and Fiscal 2022. Restated Consolidated Financial Information for the period ended December 31, 2024 and
Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 included in this Red Herring Prospectus has been derived from the
Restated Consolidated Financial Information on page 351.

We have also included various operational and financial performance indicators in this Red Herring Prospectus,
some of which have not been derived from our Restated Consolidated Financial Information. The manner of
calculation and presentation of some of the operational and financial performance indicators, and the
assumptions and estimates used in such calculation, may vary from that used by other companies in India and
other jurisdictions.

Internal Risks
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For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022,
we derived 10.10%, 29.77%, 57.48% and 54.62%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from
construction project receipts business segment from projects developed by Central Public Works
Department (“CPWD?”), our top customer. Any slowdown or inability to win new project awards from
CPWD (whether due to a slowdown or cessation in new projects being undertaken by such entities), an
inability to qualify for and successfully compete for new projects or otherwise) or the loss of any of our
current significant projects (whether due to restructuring or termination of such projects) could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, we
derived 10.10%, 29.77%, 57.48% and 54.62%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from construction
project receipts business segment, from projects developed by the CPWD, our top customer, and 89.90%,
70.23%, 42.52% and 45.38%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from our construction project
receipts business segment, from other bodies of the Government and private agencies (“Non-CPWD”).
Further, our Company had entered into a Consortium Agreement dated March 25, 2023 (“Consortium”) with
Swadeshi Civil Infrastructure Private Limited (“SCIPL”) for execution of the following project: ‘Construction
of Academic Block, Hostel, Residential Tower, Director’s Residence and External Development works at
National Institute of Technology, Delhi Campus on Design, Engineering, Procurement and Construction
(EPC-II) Basis’, awarded by Telecommunications Consultants India Limited. SCIPL had sub-contracted their
portion of work to us. This accounted for 19.42% and 14.40% of the revenue from operations (construction
project receipts) for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and Fiscal 2024, respectively.

The table below sets forth our revenue from operations from these projects and their contribution to our

revenue from operations from our construction project receipts business segment for the periods indicated:

Nine months period Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
ended December 31, Fiscal 2022
2024
% % % %
. contribution contribution contribution contribution
Particulars
. to revenue . to revenue . to revenue . to revenue
Rin Rin Rin Rin
million L million L million L0 million L0
Construction Construction Construction Construction
Project Project Project Project
Receipts Receipts Receipts Receipts
CPWD
. 249.18 10.10 873.10 29.77 | 1,141.08 5748 | 1,385.24 54.62
projects
Non-CPWD |, 57 56 89.90 | 2,059.57 7023 | 844.18 4252 | 1,150.93 4538
projects
Total revenue
from
Construction | 2,466.73 100.00 | 2,932.67 100.00 | 1,985.27 100.00 | 2,536.17 100.00
Project
Receipts

The table below sets forth our revenue from operations from our Top 5 non-CPWD projects and Top 10 non-

CPWD projects and their contribution to our revenue from operations from our construction project receipts
business segment for the periods indicated:

For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
period ended December Fiscal 2022
31,2024
% % % %
. contribution contribution contribution contribution
Particulars
" to revenue A to revenue A to revenue A to revenue
Rin Rin Rin Rin
million [0 million LD million LI million A0
Construction Construction Construction Construction
Project Project Project Project
Receipts Receipts Receipts Receipts
Top 5 non-
CPWD 1,825.67 74.01 1,638.25 55.86 697.72 35.14 1,141.13 44.99
projects
Top 10 non-
CPWD 2,216.90 15.86 | 2,000.68 68.22 844.18 42.52 1,150.93 45.38
projects
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While our reliance on CPWD has reduced in Fiscal 2024 compared to Fiscal 2023, we expect that we might
continue to be reliant, on the CPWD for a substantial portion of our revenue. Our business is therefore
significantly dependent on our ability to successfully complete our existing projects with CPWD and to
qualify for, and successfully winning, government-conducted tenders by the CPWD for new projects.

Additionally, we are accredited as a Class I Super Contractor with the CPWD and, as at the date of this Red
Herring Prospectus, we are pre-qualified to bid independently for single projects up to a tender value of 26,500
million. Pre-qualification is the key to our participation in the bidding process for major projects.
Nevertheless, we cannot assure you that we will bid where we have been pre-qualified to submit a bid or that
our bids, when submitted or if already submitted, may be accepted. Additionally, the tender processes may
be subject to change in qualification criteria, unexpected delays and uncertainties. We cannot assure you that
the projects for which we bid will be tendered within a reasonable time, or at all. In the event that new projects
which have been announced and which we plan to bid for are not put up for tender within the announced
timeframe, or qualification criteria are modified such that we are unable to qualify, our prospects may be
adversely affected.

Our business and profitability are substantially dependent on the demand for construction services,
change in budgetary allocation and the requirements for construction projects in the infrastructure and
non-infrastructure sectors across India. During the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in
Fiscal 2024, the Social & Commercial Infrastructure segment (Education institutions) contributed to
61.95% and 47.09%, respectively, of our revenue from operations (construction project receipts). Any
reduction in the activity and expenditure levels in such sectors may adversely affect our business and
prospects and may reduce the number of projects we undertake and impede our growth.

Our business is heavily dependent on the demand for construction services in India and particularly from
customers in the infrastructure and non-infrastructure sectors. Demand for our construction services for the
types of projects that we undertake is particularly sensitive to the level of development, and the corresponding
capital spending by, infrastructure, institutional and real estate companies and government and government-
related entities.

Demand for our construction services in the infrastructure and non-infrastructure sectors is primarily
dependent on sustained economic development in the regions in which we operate and government policies
relating to infrastructure and non-infrastructure development. It is also significantly dependent on budgetary
allocations made by central and state governments for this sector, as well as funding provided by international
and multilateral development finance institutions for infrastructure and non-infrastructure projects.
Investment by the private sector in infrastructure and non-infrastructure projects is dependent on the potential
returns from such projects and is therefore linked to government policies relating to private sector
participation and sharing of risks and returns from such projects. There can be no assurance that government
policies will continue to favour infrastructure and non-infrastructure investment.

The following table sets out our revenue from operations, broken down by business vertical, for the periods
indicated:

For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
period ended December Fiscal 2022
31,2024
Business % % % %
Vertical Revenue | contribution | Revenue | contribution | Revenue | contribution | Revenue | contribution
®in to revenue R®in to revenue R®in to revenue R in to revenue
million) from million) from million) from million) from
operations operations operations operations
Infrastructure
Logistics & Transportation
Railway
terminals 239.79 9.42 294.15 8.86 60.43 2.59 - -
infrastructure
Roads &
. 0.66 0.03 155.06 4.67 447.08 19.16 915.81 32.05
bridges
Social & Commercial Infrastructure
Education 1,577.60 61.95 | 1,564.22 47.09 | 92748 39.75 | 1397.25 48.90
Institutions
Hospitals
(capital 73.14 2.87 226.44 6.82 396.47 16.99 71.49 2.50
stock)
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For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
period ended December Fiscal 2022
31,2024
Business % % % %
Vertical Revenue | contribution | Revenue | contribution | Revenue | contribution | Revenue | contribution
Rin to revenue Rin to revenue Rin to revenue ®in to revenue
million) from million) from million) from million) from
operations operations operations operations
Sports 152.87 6.00 | 22832 6.87 - - - -
Infrastructure
Non-Infrastructure
Housing 253.00 9.94 83.04 2.50 115.78 4.96 141.81 4.96
Office and 169.67 6.66 | 38143 1148 | 3803 1.63 9.80 0.34
others
Other - 79.84 304 | 38895 1171 | 348.18 1492 | 32092 1123
trading
Total 2,546.57 100.00 | 3,321.62 100.00 | 2,33345 100.00 | 2,857.09 100.00

It is not possible to predict whether demand for social and commercial or transport and logistics and housing
construction in the areas in which we operate generally will continue to grow in the future, as many social,
political, economic, legal and other factors may affect the development of the infrastructure sector.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the level of demand will consistently match the level of supply.
In the event of any unfavourable developments in the supply and demand or any change in government
policies that negatively impact activity and expenditure levels in the infrastructure and non-infrastructure
sectors, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

For the nine months ended December 31, 2024, our Company submitted successful bids for 11 projects but
secured only one, reflecting a success rate of 9.09%, compared to 54.55% in FY24. Our revenues depend
upon the award of new contracts and the timing of those awards. Additionally, the competitive bidding
process, failure to meet pre-qualification criteria, and non-qualification due to technical issues may
hamper our revenue. Consequently, our results of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected or
fluctuate materially from period to period.

As a part of our business and operations, we bid for projects on a continual basis. Projects are awarded
following competitive bidding processes and satisfaction of prescribed qualification criteria. Our revenues
are derived primarily from contracts awarded to us on a project-by-project basis, and a significant number of
projects in the construction industry are undertaken on a non-recurring basis. Our Company has made multiple
bids for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022.
The number of projects awarded and their value against these bids are as provided below:

For the nine months
Particulars period ended Fiscal 2024 | Fiscal 2023| Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
Number of successful bids 11 11 5 3
made
Number of projects awarded 1 6 2 1
Value of projects award (in X 3,432.00 8,401.50 1,222.93 1,858.22
million)

The Company previously held a license in Class-I (AAA) (Composite) category dated October 15, 2018,
issued by the Superintending Engineer (C&M), Directorate, Central Public Works Department (“CPWD”).
This license valid for a period of five (5) years, enabled the Company to bid for projects up to 32,000 million,
which was later increased by a circular of CPWD dated June 02, 2020 to 32,600 million. Hence, the Company
submitted fewer bids in Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2023, as it was limited by this financial threshold. However,
the trend in the number of bids submitted by the Company has increased over the past three (3) years, largely
due to the issuance of Class I (Super) license of enlisted contractor, issued by the Superintending Engineer
(C&M), Directorate, CPWD, valid for five (5) years from date of the order i.e., November 24, 2022
(“License”). The said License enables the Company to bid for projects up to 26,500 million. Following the
issuance of this License and the subsequent increase in eligibility criteria, the Company submitted five (5)
bids in Fiscal 2023 and increased its submissions to eleven (11) bids in Fiscal 2024.

Further, the details of bifurcation of projects (CPWD, Government, Non-government) for which
prequalification criteria was met i.e. for INR 2,000 million or INR 6,500 million; (ii) total number of projects
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in such category issued by Company for bidding; (iii) number of projects for which our Company placed its
bids and the number of successful bids made along with corresponding percentage data for nine months period
ended December 31, 2024 and the last 3 FY is as under:

Particulars For the nine Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
months period
ended December
31, 2024
Number of successful
bids made
- CPWD* 5 2 NA 1
- Government 6 3 4 2
- Non-Government 0 6 1 NA
Total 11 11 5 3
Number of projects
awarded
- CPWD* 0 0 NA 1
- Government 1 3 1 0
- Non-Government 0 3 1 NA
Total 1 6 2 1
Percentage ratio of
Awarded/ Bid
- CPWD* 0.00% 0.00% NA 100.00%
- Government 16.67% 100.00% 25.00% 0.00%
- Non-Government 0.00% 50.00% 100.00% NA
Total 9.09% 54.55% 40.00% 33.33%

“NA” signifies “Not Applicable”, as no bids were submitted.
*Please note that the pre-qualification criteria of 32,000 million or 36,500 million apply exclusively to projects bid by the

Company for the CPWD.

Construction projects are typically awarded to us upon satisfaction of prescribed technical and financial
qualification criteria following a competitive bidding process. While the track record, experience of project
execution, service quality, technical expertise, reputation and sufficiency of financial resources are important
considerations in awarding project contracts, there can be no assurance that we would be able to meet such
technical and financial qualification criteria. Further, once prospective bidders satisfy the prequalification
requirements of the tender, the project is usually awarded on the basis of price competitiveness of the bid.
For instance, we are accredited as Class I — (Super) Contractor with Central Public Work Department,
Government of India and as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we are pre-qualified to bid
independently for single projects up to a tender value of 26,500.00 million. We generally incur costs in the
preparation and submission of bids, which are one-time, non-reimbursable costs. We cannot assure you that
we would bid for contracts where we have been pre-qualified to submit a bid, or that our bids when submitted,
would result in projects being awarded to us. While we strive to increase our portfolio of government
contracts, we majorly face competition from large domestic construction and infrastructure development
companies, which are well placed to fulfil the pre-qualification criteria. There have been three instances in
the last 3 Fiscals and nine months period ended December 31, 2024, wherein bids made by us for projects
were not accepted. There can be no assurance that we would be able to meet such criteria in the future. If we
are unable to meet the eligibility criteria and industry expectations in comparison with our competitors, we
may not be successful in qualifying to bid for various future projects. Further, even if we meet the pre-
qualification criteria, we cannot assure that we will be able to bid for the project/contract in the most
competitive manner. These factors may limit us in getting future contracts, which may adversely affect our
revenue.

The details of past instances of non-qualification in technical bids are as under:

Sr. | Name of Work Date Reason for non-
No. qualification
1 Construction of 200 Bedded Hospital along | July 22, 2024 Misinterpretation of

with the ancillary buildings, staff quarters and
infrastructure development for ESIC at
Bommasandra Bengaluru

eligibility criteria
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2 Construction of Hostel Building MDC Block | December 10, | Requisite documents not
and Main Entrance gate Permanent campus Of | 2024 submitted as per prescribed
Indian Institute of Management, Rohtak at format

Sunaria Rohtak SH: Civil E and M works for
and External Development Works

3 Development/ Re-development/ Major | September 28, | The concerned Department
Upgradation of Ghaziabad Railway Station 2022 did not consider unaudited
financial data as required in
the qualification criteria

Generally, it is very difficult to predict whether and when we will be awarded a new contract since many
potential contracts, primarily in the case of projects for prospective public sector customers, involve a lengthy
and complex bidding and selection process that may be affected by a number of factors, including changes in
existing or assumed market conditions, financing arrangements, governmental approvals and environmental
matters. While we have been awarded projects, based on our technical qualifications and financial scores,
there can be no assurance that we will continue to receive such projects in future or achieve projects of higher
project value. While reputation, experience and sufficiency of financial resources are important
considerations in client decisions, there can be no assurance that we would be able to meet such qualification
criteria, particularly for larger projects, whether independently or together with other joint venture partners.
Further, once the prospective bidders satisfy the qualification requirements of the tender, the project is usually
awarded based on the quote by the prospective bidder. We spend considerable time and resources in the
preparation and submission of bids. We cannot assure you that our bids, when submitted or if already
submitted, would be accepted. Accordingly, it is difficult to predict whether and when we will be awarded a
new project. Because our revenues are derived primarily from these contracts, in the event that we are not
able to continually and consistently secure new projects of similar or higher value as the ones that we have
executed in the past or are currently executing, and on terms and conditions that are favourable to us, our
financial performance, results of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected or fluctuate materially
from period to period depending on the timing of contract awards.

The uncertainty associated with the timing of contract awards may increase our cost of doing business over a
short period or a comparatively longer term. For example, we may decide to maintain and bear the cost of a
workforce in excess of our current contract needs in anticipation of future contract awards. If an expected
contract award is delayed or not received, we could incur costs in maintaining an idle workforce that may
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. Or, we may decide that our long term interests are
best served by reducing our workforce and incurring increased costs associated with severance and
termination benefits which also could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations for the period
when incurred. Reducing our workforce could also impact our results of operations if we are unable to
adequately staff projects that are awarded subsequent to a workforce reduction.

For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022,
we derived 3.14%, 11.71%, 14.92% and 11.23%, respectively, of our revenue from operations from trading
of goods, primarily TMT steel. Any reduction in trading activity, changes in market demand, or
fluctuations in the price of TMT steel may reduce our revenue from this segment and, consequently, impact
our total revenue from operations.

A material portion of our revenue from operations during the nine months period ended December 31, 2024
and the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 was derived from our trading of goods business segment. Our Company
carries on the trading of certain residue construction material, particularly TMT steel. After captive
consumption, such residue construction material is sold in the open market to third-party contractors, traders,
etc. on commercially viable terms. For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and in Fiscal 2024,
Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, we derived 3.14%, 11.71%, 14.92% and 11.23%, respectively, of our revenue
from operations from trading of goods, primarily TMT steel.

The table below sets forth our revenue from operations from trading of goods, primarily TMT steel for the
periods indicated:
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For the nine months
R period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
frf:;nue December 31, 2024
q . % . % . % . %
Operation Tin e Rin e Rin g Rin e
- contributio e contributio - contributio . contributio
S millio millio millio millio
n to n to n to n to
n n n n
revenue revenue revenue revenue
Trading of 79.84 3.14 | 388.95 11.71 | 348.18 14.92 | 320.92 11.23
goods

Any downturn or lack of demand for our residue construction material could have an adverse impact on our
revenue, our business, results of operations, cash flow and financial condition. There is no assurance that
customers will continue to place orders with us at volumes or rates consistent with, and commensurate to, the
amount of business received from them historically, or at all. As a result, we may need to source business
from new customers or it may have an impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows.

As of March 31, 2025, our Order Book, on a consolidated basis, was 26,691.02 million. Projects included
in our Order Book may be delayed, modified or cancelled for reasons beyond our control, or not fully paid
for by our clients, which could materially harm our cash flow position, revenues or profits.

Our Order Book represents the estimated contract value of the unexecuted portion of our existing assigned
construction project receipts and is an indicator of visibility of future revenue for our Company. As of March
31, 2025, our Order Book, on a consolidated basis, was 36,691.02 million, comprising thirteen (13) ongoing
projects, including five (5) Social & Commercial Infrastructure projects, three (3) Transport & Logistics
projects, four (4) Non-Infrastructure housing projects and one (1) Commercial Offices project. For further
details on our Order Book, please see “Our Business- Our Order Book” and “Our Business- Construction
Project Receipts ” on page 293 and 284. Future earnings related to the performance of the work in the Order
Book may not necessarily be realized. Thus, our future earnings may be different from the amount in the
Order Book. Although projects in the Order Book represent business that we consider firm, project delays,
cancellations or scope adjustments may occur for any reason. For example, since Fiscal 2022, one of our EPC
projects was delayed due to a delayed release of payment to us, and one of our Item rate Government projects
was delayed due to non-availability of land. Moreover, our contracts may be amended, delayed or cancelled
before work commences or during the course of construction. The reasons for cancellation of the awarded
orders are as follows: (i) non-performance by the contractor; (ii) non-payment by the contractee; (iii) changes
in government policy/ decision; (iv) unavailability of concerned authority permissions; (v) unavailability of
project site. Further, due to changes in project scope and schedule, we cannot predict with certainty when or
if the projects in our Order Book will be completed. Delays in the completion of a project can lead to our
project customers delaying their payments to us. Even relatively short delays or surmountable difficulties in
the execution of a project could result in delays in receiving, on a timely basis, all payments due to us on a
project. We may incur significant additional costs due to project delays and our counterparties may seek
liquidated damages due to our failure to complete the required milestones or even terminate the construction
contract totally. In addition, even where a project proceeds as scheduled, it is possible that contracting parties
may default and fail to pay amounts owed or dispute the amounts owed to us. Any delay, cancellation or
payment default could materially harm our cash flow position, revenues or profits, and adversely affect the
trading price of our Equity Shares.

We may not have the full protection in our construction contracts or concession agreements against such
delays or associated liabilities and/or additional costs. Further, while we have escalation clauses in a majority
of our contracts, our counterparties may interpret such clauses restrictively in their favour, and we may
experience difficulties enforcing such clauses to recover the additional costs we may incur in relation to the
work performed. If we have disputes with clients over claims for additional compensation under escalation
clauses in the future, we cannot assure you that we will be able to resolve them amicably with our clients or
that such disputes will not lead to legal proceedings being initiated by us or against us. For example, in respect
of a hospital project, a dispute with our client over the applicability of an escalation clause resulted in an
arbitration ruling issued in our favour. Any such legal proceedings would be extensive and time-consuming,
and it cannot be assured that the outcome of such proceedings will be in our favour, or the incremental costs
sought by us would be awarded to us, in full or part, or at all. These legal proceedings could divert
management time and attention, consume our financial resources in defence or prosecution of such legal
proceedings or cause delays in the construction, development, or commencement of operations of our
projects, or strain our relationship with our project customers and there can be no assurance that we will be
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successful in all, or any, such proceedings. As a result, we may have to bear the risks associated with any
increase in actual costs for construction activities exceeding the agreed pricing. If any of these risks
materialize, they could adversely affect our business, prospects, reputation, profitability, financial condition
and results of operation.

For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal
2022, our revenue from operations from projects undertaken under JVs contributed 36.40%, 33.36%,
28.98%, and 35.15%, respectively, amounting to ¥897.92 million, 978.44 million, ¥575.36 million, and
7891.50 million, respectively. The failure of a JV counterparty or consortium member to perform its
obligations could impose additional financial and performance obligations resulting in reduced profits or,
in some cases, significant losses, and it may adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Typically, we bid for projects as the sole contractor, with full responsibility for the entire project, including
sole discretion to select and supervise subcontractors, if required. However, from time to time, we form joint
ventures or consortiums with other entities operating in the infrastructure and non-infrastructure sector to bid
for certain large-scale projects, which helps us to meet technical or other requirements that may be required
as part of the prequalification for bidding or execution of the contract.

Further, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we have 6 Joint Ventures. Out of the 13 ongoing
projects as on March 31, 2025, 4 projects are being undertaken with Joint Ventures. For more details on Joint
Ventures, please see “Our Business” and “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on pages 272 and 317,
respectively.

The details of the number of projects undertaken through Joint Ventures in the nine months period ended
December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022 are set out below:

For the nine
months period

undertaken through joint ventures

Particulars ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
December 31,
2024
Number of construction projects 4 4 3 1

In accordance with our contracts, we are jointly responsible with the JV counterparty for the completion of
the project. The inability of a JV partner to continue a project under any unforeseeable circumstance, may
lead to an additional responsibility on us for completion of the project and correspondingly greater share of
the financial risk of the project. While there have been no past instances of non-performance/ delay in
execution of contracts by JVs in the last 3 Fiscals and the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, if
other parties in our joint ventures default on their duties, we will remain liable for completion of the project.
Additionally, any future non-performance/ delay in execution in delay by JVs could adversely impact our
Company’s profitability and result in potential losses. In such cases we may be required to commit additional
resources to ensure that the project is completed on schedule to avoid any claims for liquidated damages from
customers. Such additional obligations could result in reduced profits or, in some cases, significant losses.
The inability of a JV counterparty to continue with a project due to financial or other difficulties could mean
that we may need to bear increased and possibly sole responsibility for the completion of the project and bear
a correspondingly greater share of the financial risk of the project.

In a consortium, the scope of work of each member is clearly defined and so is the split of revenues between
the parties. However, if other consortium members fail to perform their obligations, this may result in a delay
of the overall project or a termination of the project by our customer.

There have been no instances of delay in completion, suspension, abandonment of projects in the last 3 Fiscals
and nine months period ended December 31, 2024. However, any disputes that may arise between us and our
JV counterparties or consortium members may cause delays in completion or the suspension or abandonment
of the project, and we may not be able to recover the capital that we have invested. We may, in certain
instances, fail to reach agreement on significant decisions in a timely manner. We also cannot control the
actions of our JV counterparties, including any non-performance, default by, or bankruptcy of, our partners,
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and we typically share liability or have joint and/or several liability with our partners for such matters. For
the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, our revenue
from operations from projects undertaken under JVs contributed to 36.40%, 33.36%, 28.98%, and 35.15%,
respectively, amounting to ¥897.92 million, ¥978.44 million, ¥575.36 million, and ¥891.50 million,
respectively. In addition, in order to establish or preserve relationships with our partners, we may agree to
assume risks and contribute resources that are proportionately greater than the returns we expect to receive in
the related joint venture or consortium. Such agreements may reduce our income and returns on these
investments compared to what we would have received if our assumed risks and contributed resources were
proportionate to our returns. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal
2022, our % contribution to revenue from operations (construction project receipts) from our top ten
projects was 98.33%, 89.54%, 92.82% and 99.13%, respectively. Further, our Company’s revenue from
operations (construction project receipts) stood concentrated in the top 10 ongoing projects out of the total
ongoing projects during the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022. As on March 31, 2025, there were 13 ongoing
projects. Any delay or loss of any of these projects could adversely affect our business, cash flow position,
results of operations and financial condition.

Our business is concentrated with our top ten projects, which generated most of our revenue in the nine months
period ended December 31, 2024 and for each of Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022. The table below
sets forth the revenue from operations (construction project receipts) derived from our top one project, top
five projects and top ten projects for the periods indicated:

For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
period ended Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
% % % %
Construct contributi Construct contributi Construct contributi Constru contributi
q . on to . on to . on to . on to
Particul ion ion ion ction
. revenue . revenue . revenue . revenue
ars Project Project Project Project
Receipts LA Receipts Lo Receipts Lo Receipts T
. P Construct . P Construct . P Construct . P Construct
®in 3 R®in A R in A ®in A
million) ton million) ton million) ton million) ton
Project Project Project Project
Receipts Receipts Receipts Receipts
Top 1 657.48 26.65 599.70 2045 491.51 2476 | 891.50 35.15
project
Top 51 182567 7401 | 1858.15 6336 | 1517.11 7642 | 2246.77 88.59
projects
Top 10
. 2,425.51 98.33 2,626.06 89.54 1842.82 92.82 2514.05 99.13
projects

Although we have several new projects under construction, the large scale of the projects we undertake means
we will likely continue to rely on our top ten projects for a significant portion of our revenue. Accordingly,
our business, results of operations and financial conditions could be adversely affected if any of our top ten
projects is delayed or terminated for any reason.

Our business and profitability are substantially dependent on the availability and cost of our raw materials,
and we are dependent on third party suppliers for meeting our raw material requirements. Any disruption
to the timely and adequate supply, or volatility in the prices of, raw materials may adversely impact our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Timely and cost-effective execution of our projects is dependent on the availability, cost and quality of the
raw materials and engineering items that we use in construction activities. The cost of construction materials
constitutes a significant part of our operating expenses. The table below sets forth our cost of materials
consumed for periods indicated.
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For the nine months
period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
Particulars % of % of % of % of
Rin revenue Rin revenue Rin revenue R in revenue
million from million from million from million from
operations operations operations operations
Costs of
materials 552.29 21.69 | 941.75 28.35 | 81847 35.08 | 775.38 27.14
consumed

Our principal raw materials include TMT bars, cement, concrete and electrical items. Generally, our long-
term contracts have price escalation clauses for increases in the cost of principal raw materials; however, we
bear the risk of increases in costs of other raw materials like aluminium, UPVC, tiles, stones, glass, etc. The
prices and supply of these and other raw materials, including fuel and labour costs, depend on factors not
under our control, including but not limited to general economic conditions, global and domestic market
prices, competition, production levels, transportation costs and import duties, and these prices are cyclical in
nature. We have not entered into long-term contracts for the supply of our raw materials, and typically source
raw materials from third-party suppliers under contracts of short period/ purchase orders. We may experience
unanticipated increases in costs due to fluctuations in the supply and demand in the national and international
markets for construction materials. At certain times, there can be a scarcity of raw materials, which may cause
substantial increases in the prices of such raw materials. Transport of these raw materials is subject to various
conditions beyond our control, including poor roads, inclement weather or industrial accidents. Accordingly,
we may encounter situations where we might be unable to continue our construction projects due to, amongst
other reasons, our inability to procure the necessary type and quantity of raw materials at effective cost or at
all. As a result, the success of our business is significantly dependent on maintaining good relationships with
our raw material suppliers. The absence of long-term supply contracts subject us to risks such as price
volatility caused by various factors, such as commodity market fluctuations, currency fluctuations, climatic
and environmental conditions, production and transportation cost, changes in domestic government policies,
and regulatory and trade sanctions. Additionally, any inability to predict market conditions may result in us
placing supply orders for inadequate quantities of such raw materials.

The table below sets forth the cost of materials purchased from our largest supplier and top ten suppliers for
the periods indicated:

For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
period ended Fiscal 2022
Supoliers December 31, 2024
pp . % costs of . % costs of . % costs of . % costs of
Rin N Zin . Rin . Rin .
ore materials o materials e materials e materials
million million million million
purchased purchased purchased purchased
Largest 67.84 9.59 | 7822 822 | 4285 522 73.98 8.98
Supplier
Top 10
. 322.96 45.64 347.20 36.48 274.54 33.43 336.05 40.79
Suppliers

If, for any reason, our primary suppliers of raw materials should curtail or discontinue their delivery of such
materials to us in the quantities we need and at prices that are competitive, our ability to meet our material
requirements for our projects could be impaired, our construction schedules could be disrupted, and we may
not be able to complete our projects as per schedule or at all. We may also not be able to pass on any increase
in the prices of these building materials to our customers.

We source our raw materials locally from third parties. The prices of our raw materials like steel, fuel, copper
and other commodities are linked to the international prices and the variations increase our costs of

construction.

The table below sets forth our expenses for purchases of TMT Bars, cement, concrete, electrical items and
tiles for the periods indicated:
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For the nine months
period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Particulars December 31, 2024
. % of Cost . % of Cost . % of Cost . % of Cost
Rin . Rin . Rin . Rin .
e of materials | ... of materials| ... of materials | . . of materials
million million million million
purchased purchased purchased purchased
TMT Bars 281.06 39.72| 419.15 44.04| 239.63 29.18| 303.64 36.86
Cement 53.85 7.61| 62.54 6.57| 32.77 3.99| 19.63 2.38
Ready-mix | 34.09 4821 5410 569] 30.67 373 60.85 7.39
Concrete
Electricals | 28.77 4071 5919 6.01| 71.61 872 96.97 11.77
Items
Tiles 20.09 2.84| 21.00 221 24.49 298| 2597 3.15

Further, our suppliers may not perform their obligations in a timely manner or at all, resulting in possible
delays in our operations. While we were able to procure the requisite raw materials from alternate suppliers,
there is no assurance whether we would be able to locate such alternate supplies of raw material in the future
in a timely manner or at all or at commercially acceptable terms.

Any disruption to the timely and adequate supply, or volatility in the prices, of the raw materials we require
for our construction projects may adversely impact our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are increasingly dependent on sub-contractors for workforce, materials, and specialized work. Sub-
contractor costs were 35.14% in FY23, 44.57% in FY24, and 54.65% for the nine months ended December
31, 2024—reflecting a rising trend. Our business in manpower intensive, and we are dependent on an
adequate supply and availability of contract labour engaged by our sub-contractors at our project locations.
Any unavailability or shortage of such supply of contract labour for our project sites could adversely affect
our operations.

Since our Company executes projects on turnkey basis, our workforce requirements at our project sites
includes personnel that we engage through sub-contractors. These sub-contractors, in addition to providing
materials and labour, often undertake execution of specialised works such as HVAC, fire-fighting items,
sewerage treatment plant, installation of lifts, parking lift, electrical works and MEP services. Accordingly,
the cost charged by sub-contractors cover materials, labour, and the execution of specialized work. The
contractors/ sub-contractors are independent entities and are not related/ connected to our Company,
Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors, JV partners in any manner.

We do not sub-contract the entire project/ contract received. However, it is difficult to ascertain the exact
percentage of projects subcontracted. Further, certain tender notices require the Company to engage sub-
contractors with specialized expertise who meet the eligibility criteria for the specific work, as outlined in the
tender. The sub-contractors are engaged through a company which calculates payment on a running square
foot basis, allowing them discretion on the number of labourers as necessary for completion of projects. As
of March 31, 2025, our workforce included 1,361 contract labourers.

Basis the above, we incur certain wages for labourers directly engaged by us and subcontractors expense for
engaging workforce, materials, and specialized work done through independent contractors and sub-
contractors. The table below sets forth the bifurcation of wages and subcontractors cost as a percentage of
total expenses for the periods indicated:

Particulars For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
period ended
December 31, 2024
£4 in | % of | ] in | % of | ] in | % of | ] in | % of
million total million total million total million total
expenses expenses expenses expenses
Wages 26.90 1.15 40.31 1.28 32.19 1.41 36.28 1.30
Subcontractors 1,276.09 54.65 1,398.76 44.57 802.79 35.14 1,349.32 48.23
Total 1,302.99 55.80 1,439.07 45.86 834.98 36.55 1,385.60 49.53

In relation to the labourers not engaged by us directly, we may be held responsible for any wage payments to
these labourers in the event of default by our sub-contractors. While the amount paid in such an event can be
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recovered from the sub-contractor, any significant requirement to fund the wage requirements of the engaged
labourers or delay in recovering such amounts from the contractors may have an adverse effect on our cash flows
and results of operations.

We are also subject to the laws and regulations in India governing employees, including in relation to
minimum wage and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring and termination of
employees, contract labour and work permits. These laws and regulations have, however, become
increasingly stringent and it is possible that they will become significantly more stringent in the future. For
instance, the Gol has introduced (a) the Code on Wages, 2019; (b) the Code on Social Security, 2020; (c) the
Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020; and (d) the Industrial Relations Code, 2020
which consolidate, subsume and replace numerous existing central labour legislations. While the rules for
implementation under these codes have not been notified, we are yet to determine the impact of all or some
such laws on our business and operations which may restrict our ability to grow our business in the future and
increase our expenses. Furthermore, any upward revision of wages that may be required by the state government
to be paid to such contract labourers would increase our costs and may adversely affect the business and results
of our operations.

If we are unable to obtain the services of skilled and unskilled workmen or at reasonable rates, it may
adversely affect our business and results of operations.

The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and the Issue Price of
the Equity Shares, market capitalization and price to earnings ratio based on the Issue Price of the Equity

Shares, may not be indicative of the market price of the Company on listing or thereafter and, as a result,

you may lose a significant part or all of your investment.

Our price to earnings (“P/E”) ratio multiple is [®] and [®] times at the lower and upper end of the Price Band,
respectively. The average P/E of the listed peer group of our Company is 18.96 while our Company’s P/E
was at a premium of [ @] at the higher end of the Price Band and [e] times at the lower end of the Price Band.
The Issue Price of the Equity Shares has been determined by our Company in consultation with the BRLM,
on the basis of assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares offered through the book-building process,
and certain quantitative and qualitative factors including as set out in the section titled “Basis for Issue Price”
on page 166. Price, multiples and ratios may not be indicative of the market price of the Company on listing
or thereafter. The relevant financial parameters based on which the Price Band was determined, was disclosed
in the advertisement that was issued for publication of the Price Band.

The table below provides details of our market capitalization at Issue Price to revenue from operations and
P/E ratio at Issue Price for the Financial Year 2025:

Particulars Market value at Offer Price to total | Price to earnings ratio
revenue from operations”

[e] [e] [e]

Further, our Issue Price, the multiples and ratio specified above may not be comparable to the market price,
market capitalization and price-to-earnings ratios of our peers, and would be dependent on the various factors.
Accordingly, any valuation exercise undertaken for the purposes of the Issue by our Company in consultation
with the BRLM, would not be based on a benchmark with our industry peers.

Our business is substantially dependent on revenue from Northern India. In the nine months period ended
December 31, 2024 and Fiscal 2024, projects in Delhi contributed 66.07% and 47.19% of our revenue from
operations (construction project receipts). Further, our business is concentrated in the states of Delhi,
Uttar Pradesh and Karnataka in the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and Fiscal 2024. Our
growth strategy to expand into new geographic areas poses risks. We may not be able to successfully
manage some or all of such risks, which may have a material adverse effect on our revenues, profits and
financial condition.

While we operate in various states across India, we intend to focus our efforts on expanding geographically

first in Northern India. As a result, we may not pursue or capitalize on expansion opportunities outside our
current markets. This may place us at a competitive disadvantage and limit our growth opportunities.
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As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we have undertaken projects in over 11 states in India,
including Andhra Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Delhi, Gujarat, Karnataka, Maharashtra, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh,
Uttarakhand.

For the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and Fiscal 2024, 84.58% and 75.06% of the revenue
from operations (construction project receipts), amounting to 32,153.95 million and %2,201.21 million, was
concentrated in three states: Delhi, Uttar Pradesh, and Karnataka. Further, the details of state wise revenue
from operations and percentage of total revenue from operations from construction project receipts in the nine
months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022, are as below:

Nine months period Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
ended December 31, Fiscal 2022
2024
State % of % of % of % of
Rin Construction Rin Construction Rin Construction Rin Construction
million Project million Project million Project million Project
Receipts Receipts Receipts Receipts

Delhi 1,682.48 66.07 | 1,383.92 47.19 436.84 22.00 400.60 15.80
Uttar 301.80 11.85 435.86 14.86 63.58 3.20 0.65 0.03
Pradesh
Karnataka 169.67 6.66 38143 13.01 37.26 1.88 - -
Chhattisgarh 73.35 2.88 226.44 7.72 396.47 19.97 925.97 36.51
Gujarat 5.85 0.23 203.57 6.94 491.51 24.76 305.82 12.06
Andhra 32.28 1.27 202.38 6.90 60.43 3.04 - -
Pradesh
Mabharashtra 208.16 8.17 84.59 2.88 399.11 20.10 891.50 35.15
Uttarakhand - - 14.47 0.49 84.14 4.24 - -
Haryana 72.97 2.87
Rajasthan - - - - 15.93 0.80 11.63 0.46
Total 2,546.57 100.00 | 2,932.66 100.00 | 1,985.27 100.00 | 2,536.17 100.00
revenue
from
operations
from
construction
projects
receipts

This concentration of business in the states of Delhi, Uttar Pradesh and Karnataka subjects us to various risks,
including but not limited to: (i) regional slowdown in construction activities or reduction in infrastructure
projects; (ii) interruptions on account of adverse climatic conditions; (iii) vulnerability to change in laws,
policies and regulations of the political and economic environment; (iv) perception by our potential customers
that we are a regional construction company which hampers us from competing for large and complex projects
at the national level (v) our lack of brand recognition and reputation in such regions; (vi) our lack of familiarity
with the social and cultural conditions of these new regions; and (vii) limitation on our ability to implement
the strategy to cluster projects in the states where we intend to conduct business.

We face additional risks if we undertake projects in other geographic areas in which we do not possess the
same level of familiarity as competitors. We may face significant competition from other construction
companies in such new geographies, many of which undertake similar projects and have similar capabilities
as us. We may face the risk that our competitors may be better known in such other markets, enjoy better
relationships with potential clients, gain early access to information and be better placed to act upon such
information. Increasing competition could result in price and supply volatility, which could cause our business
to suffer. The financial impact of these factors is currently not quantifiable. There can be no assurance that
we will be successful in expanding our business across other markets in India. Any failure by us to
successfully carry out our plan to geographically diversify our business could have an adverse effect on our
business, financial conditions, and results of operations.

As part of our strategy aimed towards business growth and improvement of market position, we intend to
implement several business strategies, which include:

e Focusing on securing government infrastructure projects, particularly educational institutions and
hospital buildings;
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expanding our geographic footprint;

expanding our pre-qualification capability and bid capacities;
focusing on timely delivery and quality execution capabilities; and
pursuing strategic alliances.

Our strategies may not succeed due to various factors, including our inability to reduce our debt and our
operating costs, our failure to develop new products with sufficient growth potential as per the changing
market preferences and trends, our failure to execute agreements with our distributors and customers, our
failure to effectively market our products or foresee challenges with respect to our business initiatives, our
failure to sufficiently upgrade our infrastructure, machines, automation, equipment and technology as
required to cater to the requirement of changing demand and market preferences, our failure to maintain
highest quality in our operations or to ensure scaling of our operations to correspond with our strategy and
customer demand, changes in Gol policy or regulation, our inability to respond to regular competition, and
other operational and management difficulties. For further details of our strategies, please see “Our Business
— Our Strategies”’ on page 282.

Delay/ default in payment of statutory dues may attract penalties and in turn have an adverse impact on
our financial condition.

We are required to make certain payments to various statutory authorities from time to time, including but
not limited to payments pertaining to employee provident fund, employee state insurance, income tax and
GST. The table below sets forth the details of the statutory dues paid by our Company in relation to our
employees for the periods indicated below:

Nature of Payment For the nine | Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 | Fiscal 2022
months period
ended December
31, 2024
Provident Fund (X in million) 0.72 0.90 1.18 1.42
Number of employees for whom 24 29 50 66
provident fund has been paid
ESIC (% in million) 0.06 0.10 0.15 0.27
Number of employees for whom 12 23 35 51
ESIC has been paid
Tax Deducted at Source on salaries 7.55 5.75 2.67 2.68
(“TDS”) (R in million)
TDS on payments other than salaries 20.04 27.88 15.47 12.59
(X in million)
Number of employees for whom TDS 26 26 23 25
has been paid

The table below provides the delays in payment of statutory dues by our Company during years indicated:

Fiscal Nature of Payment
TDS ESIC Provident Fund GST*
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
of Rin Rin of R®in of ®in
instances | million) | instances | million) | instances million) | instances | million)
Delay for 9 27.49 3 0.02 7 0.17 10 44,77
the nine
months
period
ended
December
31,2024
Delay for 12 31.09 11 0.09 7 0.54 1 0.01
Fiscal 2024
Delay for 10 10.76 3 0.04 1 0.09 Nil Nil
Fiscal 2023
Delay for 9 5.26 3 0.07 3 0.39 6 0.88

55




13.

Fiscal Nature of Payment
TDS ESIC Provident Fund GST*
Number | Amount | Number | Amount Number Amount | Number Amount
of R®in of R®in of ®in of ®in
instances | million) | instances | million) | instances | million) | instances | million)
Fiscal 2022
*Cumulative of all states.
Number of employees of our Company
Particulars December 31, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2024
Total employees 112 96 84 82

We cannot assure you to that we will be able to pay our statutory dues timely, or at all, in the future. Any
failure or delay in payment of such statutory dues may expose us to statutory and regulatory action, as well
as significant penalties, and may adversely impact our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

We have high working capital requirements. If we have insufficient cash flows to meet working capital
requirements there may be an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business requires a significant amount of working capital. In many cases, working capital is required to
finance the purchase of materials and the performance of engineering, construction and other work on projects
before payments are received from customers. In certain cases, we are contractually obligated to our
customers to fund the working capital requirements of our projects. Our working capital requirements may
increase if, under certain contracts, payment terms do not include advance payments or such contracts have
payment schedules that shift payments toward the end of a project or otherwise increase our working capital
burdens. In addition, our working capital requirements have increased in recent years because we have
undertaken a growing number of projects within a similar timeframe and due to the general growth of our
business.

The following table sets forth details of the working capital required to finance the purchase of materials,
giving performance guarantees and the performance of engineering, construction and other work on projects
as derived from the Restated Consolidated Financial Information before payments are received from
customers for the period indicated:

(< in million)

Particulars For the nine | Fiscal 2024 | Fiscal 2023 | Fiscal 2022
months period
ended December
31, 2024
Net Working capital 2,299.29 2,053.04 1,534.63 1,169.25
Existing funding pattern
Borrowings from banks, financial 1,293.63 1,123.71 840.64 561.64
institutions and  Non-banking
financial companies (including bill
discounting)
Internal Accruals/ Existing net- 1,005.66 929.33 693.99 607.61
worth

We are also required to submit performance bank guarantees for completion of the projects. Details of
performance bank guarantees submitted in the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the
Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as provided below:

56



Nine months period
Particulars ended December Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
31, 2024
Performance bank 390.39 416.29 266.89 206.99
guarantees issued*
(% in million)

* The above figures do not include mobilisation advance, earnest money deposit, security deposits, and surety bonds.

Our working capital requirements may increase if, in certain contracts, payment terms include reduced
advance payments or payment schedules that specify payment towards the end of a project or are less
favourable to us. To qualify for large construction contracts, we need adequate funding. Another factor which
may cause us to incur a large amount of working capital is delays in completion of our current construction
projects could increase the financing costs, including due to increase in prices of raw materials associated
with construction and cause our forecasted budget to be exceeded.

Continued increases in working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations. Our sources of additional financing, where required to meet our working capital
requirements, may include the incurrence of debt or the issue of equity or debt securities or a combination of
both. If we decide to raise additional funds through the incurrence of debt, our interest and debt repayment
obligations will increase, and could have a significant effect on our profitability and cash flows and we may be
subject to additional covenants, which could limit our ability to access cash flows from operations. Any issuance
of equity, on the other hand, would result in a dilution of your shareholding. For details in relation to the terms
of our existing financing arrangements, please see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 490.

14. We have incurred indebtedness, and an inability to comply with repayment and other covenants in our
financing agreements could adversely affect our business and financial condition.

As at December 31, 2024, we had aggregate outstanding borrowings (including current borrowings and non-
current borrowings) of ¥1,379.69 million. The table below sets forth certain information on our total
borrowings, debt to equity ratio, finance cost and interest coverage ratio as at the dates indicated:

Particulars As at December As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
31,2024 2024 2023 2022

Total Borrowings 1,379.69 1,244.78 969.95 707.55
() (% in million)
Debt to equity 1.38 1.60 1.40 1.23
ratio @
Finance Costs (R in 153.53 224.80 126.86 137.18
million)
Debt service 0.26 0.32 0.20 0.32
coverage ratio ®

@ Total borrowing is calculated as the sum of current and non-current borrowings.

@) Debt-Equity Ratio is calculated as Total Debt divided by total equity. Total Debt is calculated as the sum of (i) non-
current borrowings and (ii) current borrowings (including the current maturities of non-current borrowings).

) Debt service coverage ratio is calculated as EBITDA divided by total of interest and principal payments.

As at December 31, 2024, we had total secured borrowings (current and non-current borrowings) of 31,958.67
million. For further details, please see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 490, “Restated Consolidated
Financial Information — Note 22— Non-Current Borrowings” on page 351 and “Restated Consolidated
Financial Information — Note 27— Current Borrowings” on page 351. In the event we fail to service our debt
obligations, our lenders have the right to enforce the security in respect of our secured borrowings and dispose
of our assets to recover the amounts due from us. Any such shut down of our offices would adversely affect our
business, results operations and financial condition.

Furthermore, our loan agreements with our lenders also contain certain negative covenants, including but not
limited to, effecting any change in ownership, control, constitution and operating structure capital structure
or shareholding pattern and/or management of our Company, any amendment in the constitutional documents,
and restrictions on fund raising. Although we have not defaulted on our financial obligations and have been in
compliance with covenants in the past, we cannot assure you that we will be able to comply with all such
financial obligations and covenants in the future.
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Any failure on our part to comply with these terms in our financing agreements including the security
agreements would generally result in events of default under these financing agreements. In such a case, the
lenders under each of these respective loan agreements may, at their discretion, accelerate payment and declare
the entire outstanding amounts under these loans due and payable, and in certain instances, enforce their security
which has been constituted.

Timely and successful completion of our projects is dependent upon our performance and, in the case of
many projects, the cooperation of our sub-contractors or joint ventures and any failure or delay in
successful completion could adversely affect the construction quality of our developments and adversely
affect our profitability and reputation.

We rely on third parties for the implementation of projects where we have entered into arrangements with
third parties for the supply of labour, equipment and raw material. Accordingly, the timing and quality of
construction of our properties depend on the availability and skill of those sub-contractors. Typically,
construction contracts are subject to specific completion schedule requirements with liquidated damages
chargeable in the event that a project falls behind schedule. In case of sub-contracting, the completion of the
contract depends in part on the performance of our sub-contractors. Delay or failure on the part of a sub-
contractor to complete its project work on time, for any reason, could result in additional costs to us, including
the payment of contractually agreed liquidated damages. The amount of such additional costs could adversely
affect our profit margins on the project. While we may seek to recover these amounts as claims from the
supplier, vendor, sub-contractor, joint venture or other third party responsible for the delay or for providing
non-conforming products or services, we cannot assure you that we will recover all or any part of these costs
in all circumstances. If we enter into joint ventures for any project in the future, we may face similar risks as
we may experience with a sub-contractor. Performance problems for existing and future projects could cause
our actual results of operations to differ materially from those anticipated by us and could damage our
reputation within our industry and our client base.

Further, many of our projects depend on the availability of competent external contractors for construction,
delivery and commissioning, as well as the supply and testing of equipment. However, in the past, we have
not had such instances. Any inadequacy or delay in services by our contractors may result in incremental
costs and time overruns which in turn may adversely affect our projects and expansion plans.

In addition, there is a high demand for infrastructure construction companies in India at present and our ability
to hire competent contractors may therefore be limited as we may not be able to identify or retain competent
contractors, or ensure execution on a timely or cost-effective basis. A completion delay on the part of a sub-
contractor, for any reason, could result in delayed payments to us. In addition, when we sub-contract, we may
be liable to the customer due to failure on the part of a sub-contractor to maintain the required performance
standards or insufficiency of a sub-contractor's performance guarantees.

The details of the number of projects wherein majority of the work is sub-contracted in the nine months period
ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022 are set out below.

Nine months
Particulars period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 | Fiscal 2022
December 31,
2024
Number of construction projects wherein 1 1 1 1
majority™* of the work is sub-contracted

*majority represents contracts wherein more than 50% of the work has been sub-contracted.

Further, while we may sub-contract our construction work and may be indemnified by the sub-contractor for
any loss or damage due to their default, we may still be liable for accidents on the projects due to defects in
design and quality of construction of our projects during their construction and operation. In addition, we can
make no assurance that such contractors or their sub-contractors will continue to hold or renew valid
registrations under the relevant labour laws in India or be able to obtain the requisite approvals for undertaking
such construction and operation.
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If our sub-contractors are unable to perform in accordance with their commitments on time or meet the quality
standards required, our ability to complete projects on time or at all could be impaired. Further, if a sub-
contractor becomes insolvent, we may be unable to recover damages or compensation for defective work and
we may incur additional expenditure as a result of correcting any defective work. This may have an adverse
effect on our reputation, cash flows, business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our inability to collect receivables in time or at all, and any default in payment from our clients, could
materially and adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

There may be delays in the collection of receivables from our clients. Because of the nature of our contracts,
we sometimes commit resources to projects prior to receiving adequate payments from clients in amounts
sufficient to cover expenditures as they are incurred. From time to time, it may be difficult for us to collect
payments owed to us by these clients.

There have been delays in payments by some of our clients in the past. However, as the said receivables are
expected to be realised in the normal course of business, these have not been considered as impaired. Our
average time for recovery of trade receivables ranges from one to three months. The table below sets forth
our trade receivables and receivable turnover days, in the periods indicated, as well as bad debts written off
and disputed trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk.

For the nine months
period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Particulars December 31, 2024
. Receivable . Receivable . Receivable . Receivable
in in in Rin
ore turnover e turnover e turnover ore turnover
million million million million
days* days* days days
Trade 488.66 465.23 332.98 190.34
receivables 107 47
Less: Loss 13.22 6.12 - -
Allowance
(Expected 150 106
Credit Loss)
Unbilled 937.90 510.89 347.52 177.56
Revenue
Total 1,413.35 970.00 680.50 367.89

* Receivable turnover days is calculated as accounts receivable divided by net credit sales

#Unbilled revenue represents unmeasured/ uncertified work executed on ongoing projects which have achieved the stage/
benchmarking of billing
For further details in relation to the revenue recognition policy, please see “Financial Information — Restated
Consolidated Financial Information - Note 4.9. Revenue Recognition” on page 351.

The details of bifurcation of trade receivables, unbilled revenue in terms of government/ non-government/ CPWD in the
last 3 FY and the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 is as under:

Particulars For the nine FY 2024 FY 2023 FY 2022
months  period
ended December
31, 2024
Trade
Receivables
- CPWD 123.49 53.03 43.30 37.46
- Government 273.91 299.03 153.43 114.24
- Non-Government 78.05 107.05 136.25 38.63
Total Trade 475.45 459.11 332.98 190.34
Receivables (A)*
Unbilled Revenue
- CPWD 126.07 147.50 205.33 177.56
- Government 764.24 323.39 142.20 -
- Non-Government 47.59 40.00 - -
Total Unbilled 937.90 510.89 347.52 177.56
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Revenue (B)
Total (A+B) 1,413.35 970.00 680.50 367.89
* The trade receivables amount is net of expected credit loss.

In addition, our clients may request extensions of the payment terms otherwise agreed to under our contracts.
Additionally, we may claim for more payments from our clients for additional work and costs incurred in
excess of the contract price or amounts not included in the contract price. These claims typically arise from
changes in the initial scope of work or from delays caused by the clients. The costs associated with these
changes or client caused delays include additional direct costs, such as labour and material costs associated
with the performance of the additional work, as well as indirect costs that may arise due to delays in the
completion of the project, such as increased labour costs resulting from changes in labour markets.

We may not always have the protection of escalation clauses in our construction contracts or supplemental
agreement in respect of the additional work to support our claims. Where we have escalation clauses in our
agreements, we may seek to enforce our contractual rights. However, our clients may interpret such clauses
restrictively and dispute our claims. These claims are thus often subject to lengthy arbitration, litigation or
other dispute resolution proceedings. We cannot assure you that we may be able to recover, in part or full,
any such claims. Further, our debtors may have insufficient assets to pay the amounts owed to us even if such
proceedings are decided in our favour. In addition, we may incur substantial costs in collecting against our
debtors and such costs may not be recovered in full or at all from the debtors. As we often need to fulfil
significant working capital requirements in our operations, delayed collection of receivables or inadequate
recovery on our claims could materially and adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and
results of operations.

Any increase in our receivable turnover days in the future will negatively affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition. If we experience delays in receiving payments, if we are unable to collect
customer receivables at all or if the provisions for doubtful receivables are inadequate, it could have a material
adverse effect on our cash flow position, as well as the revenues and profits of our Company, consequently
affecting our business, operations and financial condition.

Our Statutory Auditors have included emphasis of matters for the Restated Consolidated Financial
Information pertaining to Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2023. There can be no assurance that our audit reports
for future periods will not contain any qualifications, emphasis of matters or other observations, which
may affect our results of operations in such future periods.

Our Statutory Auditors are required to comment upon the matters included in the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO Report”) under section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Restated
Consolidated Financial Information as at and for the Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, respectively.

Sr. No. Emphasis of Matter (“EOM”)

1. For Fiscal 2023:

“Emphasis of Matter paragraphs with respect to our audit reports issued by us referred in
paragraph 5(b) reproduced below:

We draw attention to the below matter in the notes to the consolidated financial statements:
Note No. 2.31 to the financial statements relating to Project Details. The letter of intent (LOI)
issued by the Andhra Pradesh Capital Region Development Authority (APCRDA) stipulates
a condition that the applicant (Southern Globe Hotels & Resorts Limited) cannot take up any
other Project in the allotted land (other than the construction of a hotel) and no other
business in the said Special Purpose Company.

However, the land is pending allotment as on the date of the Financial Statements. Further,
on 31st July, 2020 the APCRDA Act, 2014 was repealed and replaced by “Amaravati
Metropolitan Region Development Authority” (AMRDA). The State government has also
proposed to retain “Amaravati” as the legislative capital only as against its sole Capital of
Andhra Pradesh, while making Visakhapatnam the home for executive and Kurnool the
judicial Capital. Hence, the project had been jeopardized and requires fresh study of
economic and commercial viability as it had been hit by the change in the government intent.
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Further there is no clarity from the government for the project awarded to go ahead with the
allotment of land.

The Company has urged for clarifications from AMRDA and have assured that it is fully
equipped with and ready to take up the development, if the vision and magnitude of the capital
city is same as mentioned in the said LOI, If APCRDA or Government Of Andhra Pradesh
has changed or planning to change their vision and master plan towards *“ Amaravati” In
case the second alternative of change in master plan is correct , the company is ready to
withdraw from the project by taking the money deposited with the said authority back along
with interest due and expenses they have incurred till date towards the project. It has been
further appealed by the company that as an alternative if the change of land use clause is
incorporated and the land is allotted, the company is willing to pursue any other business as
well. (Refer to project details in the notes to accounts)

Note No.2.36 to the financial statements relating to non-confirmation of balances under
sundry debtors, creditors, loans & advances and necessary adjustments.

Our report is not qualified in respect of these matters”

2. For Fiscal 2022:

“Emphasis of Matter paragraphs with respect to our audit reports issued by us referred in
paragraph 5(c) reproduced below:

We draw attention to the below matter in the notes to the consolidated financial statements:

Note No. 2.30 to the financial statements relating to Project Details. The letter of intent (LOI)
issued by the Andhra Pradesh Capital Region Development Authority (APCRDA) stipulates
a condition that the applicant (Southern Globe Hotels & Resorts Limited) cannot take up any
other Project in the allotted land (other than the construction of a hotel) and no other
business in the said Special Purpose Company.

However, the land is pending allotment as on the date of the Financial Statements. Further,

on 31st July,’2020 the APCRDA Act, 2014 was repealed and replaced by “Amaravati
Metropolitan Region Development Authority” (AMRDA). The State government has also
proposed to retain “Amaravati” as the legislative capital only as against its sole Capital of
Andhra Pradesh, while making Visakhapatnam the home for executive and Kurnool the
judicial Capital. Hence, the project had been jeopardized and requires fresh study of
economic and commercial viability as it had been hit by the change in the government intent.

Further there is no clarity from the government for the project awarded to go ahead with the
allotment of land.

The Company has urged for clarifications from AMRDA and have assured that it is fully
equipped with and ready to take up the development, if the vision and magnitude of the capital
city is same as mentioned in the said LOI, If APCRDA or Government Of Andhra Pradesh
has changed or planning to change their vision and master plan towards “Amaravati” In
case the second alternative of change in master plan is correct, the company is ready to
withdraw from the project by taking the money deposited with the said authority back along
with interest due and expenses they have incurred till date towards the project. It has been
further appealed by the company that as an alternative if the change of land use clause is
incorporated and the land is allotted, the company is willing to pursue any other business as
well. (Refer to project details in the notes to accounts)

Note No.2.36 to the financial statements relating to non-confirmation of balances under
sundry debtors, creditors, loans & advances and necessary adjustments.

Our report is not qualified in respect of these matters.”

While there is no EOM in Fiscal 2024, EOM in Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 with respect to our associate
company — Southern Globe Hotels and Resorts Limited, is concerning a project impacted by pending land
allotment and changes in government plans. Considering the amount involved is ¥14.70 million, there is no
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material adverse impact on the business, results of operations and financial condition of the Company. Further,
in Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022, the other EOM relates to non-confirmation of balances under sundry debtors,
creditors, loans and advances. However, there is no material adverse impact on the business, results of
operations and financial condition of the Company.

We cannot assure you that the audit reports for any future fiscal periods will not contain any qualifications,
emphasis of matters or other observations, which affect our results of operations in such future periods. For
further details, please see “Financial Information- Restated Consolidated Financial Information” on page
351.

Our Company was incorporated in 2002, and certain documents filed by us with the Registrar of
Companies and certain corporate document are not traceable. We cannot assure that regulatory
proceedings or actions will not be initiated against us in the future which may impact our financial
condition and reputation, and we will not be subject to any penalty imposed by the competent authority in
this regard.

The following records for certain past allotments of Equity Shares made by our Company could not be traced:
(i) Form 2 (Return of Allotment)- Allotment of 240,000 Equity Shares; (ii) Slump sale arrangement and
valuation report for take-over of M/s. Globe Construction Co.- a partnership firm.

Prior to the said takeover in October 2002, both the former partnership firm- M/s. Globe Construction Co.
(“Partnership Firm”) and the Company were under common control. Ved Prakash Khurana, Geeta Khurana
and Mr. Prabhu Dayal Sachdeva, were the subscribers to the memorandum and the first directors of the
Company and the partners of the Partnership Firm.

As per the MoA, one of the objects of the Company was “To acquire and take-over the running business of
the partnership firm M/s. Globe Construction Co. having the principal office at 31, Sarojini Nagar Market,
New Delhi- 110023 along with all the Assets, liabilities, Goodwill and Rights on such terms and conditions
as may be mutually agreed upon the said firm and shall ceased to be existed after such take-over by the
Company”.

The takeover of business of the Partnership Firm including total assets and total liabilities by the Company
took place in October 2002, for consideration other than cash, wherein the Company issued 690,000 Equity
Shares of ¥10/- each, at par to the first directors of the Company (who were also partners in the Partnership
Firm).

Accordingly, for the purpose of making disclosures in the “Capital Structure” section of this Red Herring
Prospectus, we have relied on the search report prepared by Umesh Ved & Associates, Company Secretaries
(having peer review certificate number S1998GJ023700) and certified by their certificate dated September
25, 2024 (“RoC Search Report”), pursuant to their physical and online inspection and independent
verification of the documents available or maintained by our Company, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs at
the MCA Portal and the RoC, Delhi & Haryana, New Delhi. An email intimation on September 27, 2024 in
this regard has been sent by our Company to the RoC Delhi & Haryana, New Delhi before filing of the Draft
Red Herring Prospectus. Further, we have relied on the statutory register, form filings and minutes for making
relevant disclosures in “Capital Structure”. Additionally, for the purpose of disclosure with respect to the
takeover of the Partnership Firm, we have also relied on the financial statements of the Company for Fiscal
2003 and financials of the Partnership Firm as on October 29, 2002. For further details related to the capital
build-up, please see “Capital Structure - Share capital history of our Company” on page 131.

While we have complied will all applicable laws and regulations with respect to the above takeover
transaction and there have been no regulatory proceedings or actions initiated against us in relation to the
non-availability of the corporate records, we cannot assure you that the relevant corporate records will become
available in the future, that regulatory proceedings or actions will not be initiated against us in the future, or
that we will not be subject to any penalty imposed by the competent regulatory authority in this respect.

Our Company has reported certain negative cash flows from its operating activity, investing activity and
financing activity. Sustained negative cash flows could impact our growth and business.

Our Company had reported certain negative cash flows in previous years as per the Restated Consolidated
Financial Information, as stated below:
(< in million)
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Particulars For the nine For the Financial | For the Financial | For the Financial
months period Year ended Year ended Year ended
ended December | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
31, 2024

Cash flow from / (32.99) 41.99 (112.22) 74.10
(used in)

Operating

Activities

Cash flow from / (3.76) (113.06) (34.54) 1.84
(used in) Investing

Activities

Cash flow from / 37.31 70.12 147.69 (95.51)
(used in)

Financing

Activities

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet
capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from
external resources. If our Company is not able to generate sufficient operating cash flows, it may adversely

affect our business, and financial operations.

For further details, please see “Restated Consolidated Financial Information” on page 351.

Our contingent liabilities could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and

financial condition.

Our Restated Consolidated Financial Information disclosed the following contingent liabilities for the periods

indicated:
(% in million)
Naturltii(;tl')gi(g:tslngent Decef?nsbzgr 31 As at March As at March As at March
2024 > 31, 2024 31, 2023 31, 2022
Income Tax Demands 7.22 7.22 Nil Nil
Service Tax Litigation* 159.06 165.45 159.06 159.06
GST Litigation 2.19 2.19 Nil Nil
Guarantees** 62.00 62.00 62.00 Nil
Total 230.47 236.87 221.06 159.06
Commitments Nil Nil Nil Nil

* It includes demand of T 6.39 Million raised by Commissioner of Central Goods & Service Tax, New Delhi for the
Financial year 2015-16 on 31.01.2024 against which Commission Appeal-II has granted full relief vide order dated

18/09/2024.

** The company had provided corporate guarantee to Yes Bank Limited for securing the working capital limits and term
loan facility by Vara Milk Foods Specialities Private Limited in November, 2022, where the Managing Director of the
company is one of the directors and holds 16.25% of the equity shares. The loan has been repaid by Vara Milk Foods

Specialities Pvt. Ltd. & subsequently the corporate guarantee has been released.

The percentage of contingent liabilities to the net worth of the Company is as under:

worth (A/D)*100

Particulars For the nine FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY 21-22

months period

ended December

31, 2024
Contingent Liabilities (A) 230.47 236.87 221.06 159.06
Equity Share Capital (B) 429.58 24.75 24.75 24.75
Other Equity (C) 568.71 751.94 599.66 549.77
Total Net Worth D= (B+C) 998.29 776.69 624.41 574.52
Contingent Liability to the net 23.09% 30.50% 35.40% 27.69%
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For further information, please see “Financial Information- Restated Consolidated Financial Information
Note 44— Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitment” on page 351.

Most of the liabilities have been incurred in the normal course of business. If any of these contingent liabilities
were to fully materialize or materialize at a level higher than we expect, or if at all we are compelled to pay
all or a material proportion of these contingent liabilities, it may materially and adversely impact our business,
results of operations and financial condition. Further, we cannot assure you that we will not incur similar or
increased levels of contingent liabilities in the future.

21. Any unsecured loans taken by our Company may be recalled at any time.

Our Company has availed unsecured borrowings including from our Promoters and Directors, which may be
recalled by them at any time. As of March 31, 2025 and the nine months period ended December 31, 2024,
our Company availed unsecured loan(s) aggregating ¥588.83 million and ¥554.62 million, respectively, out
of which %17.43 million and X12.78 million respectively, were availed from our Promoters and Directors and
the remaining through invoice discounting, to fulfil short-term working capital needs of the Company.

The details of unsecured loans taken and repaid by the Company from the Promoters and/or Directors in the
nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and the preceding three financial years are as under:

1. Ved Prakash Khurana

For the nine months Financial years ended

Details ended

period Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
Unsecured loan 13.55 61.86 67.18 55.63
taken by the
Company during the
Fiscal (% in million)
Loan repaid by the 25.04 63.78 62.25 56.04

Company during the
Fiscal (% in million)

Interest rate (%)

Interest free

Interest free

Interest free

Interest free

Terms and

conditions

The loan  stood
repayable within 30
days of the lender
providing the
borrower a written
notice of demand.

The loan  stood
repayable within 30
days of the lender
providing the
borrower a written
notice of demand.

The loan stood
repayable  within
30 days of the
lender providing
the borrower a
written notice of
demand.

The loan stood
repayable
within 30 days

of the lender
providing  the
borrower a

written notice of
demand.

Purpose for which Business purposes Business purposes Business purposes | Business

the loans  were purposes
utilised by  the

Company

Reason for | The Interest- free | The Interest- free | The Interest- free | The  Interest-

repayment during the
same year

unsecured loan has
been taken for short
term perspective to
fulfil the working
capital requirement.
As per understanding,
it shall be repaid to

unsecured loan has
been taken for short
term perspective to
fulfil the working
capital requirement.
As per understanding,
it shall be repaid to

unsecured loan has
been taken for
short term
perspective to fulfil
the working capital
requirement.  As
per understanding,

free unsecured
loan has been
taken for short
term

perspective  to
fulfil the
working capital

the extent amount | the extent amount | it shall be repaid to | requirement. As
available with the | available with the | the extent amount | per
Company. Company. available with the | understanding,
Company. it shall be repaid
to the extent
amount
available with
the Company.

Nipun Khurana
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For the nine months

Financial years ended

Details period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024

Unsecured loan taken 10.81 15.02 36.98 38.38

by the Company

during the Fiscal (X in

million)

Loan repaid by the 12.95 13.45 37.20 47.78

Company during the
Fiscal (% in million)

Interest rate (%)

Interest free

Interest free

Interest free

Interest free

Terms and conditions | The loan stood | The loan stood | The loan stood | The loan
repayable within 30 | repayable within 30 | repayable within | stood
days of the lender | days of the lender | 30 days of the | repayable
providing the | providing the | lender providing | within 30
borrower a written | borrower a written | the borrower a | days of the
notice of demand. notice of demand. written notice of | lender
demand. providing the
borrower a
written notice
of demand.
Purpose for which the | Business purposes Business purposes Business Business
loans were utilised by purposes purposes
the Company
Reason for repayment | The Interest- free | The Interest- free | The Interest- free | The Interest-
during the same year unsecured loan has | unsecured loan has | unsecured loan | free

been taken for short | been taken for short | has been taken for | unsecured
term perspective to | term perspective to | short term | loan has been
fulfil the working | fulfil the working | perspective to | taken for short
capital requirement. | capital requirement. | fulfil the working | term
As per understanding, | As per understanding, | capital perspective to
it shall be repaid to the | it shall be repaid to the | requirement. As | fulfil the
extent amount | extent amount | per working
available with the | available with the | understanding, it | capital
Company. Company. shall be repaid to | requirement.
the extent amount | As per
available with the | understanding
Company. , it shall be
repaid to the
extent amount
available with
the Company.
Vipul Khurana
For the nine months Financial years ended
Details prc‘:I‘:lber 31, 202";“'“’ Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Unsecured loan taken 21.18 65.45 46.21 80.55
by the Company
during the Fiscal (% in
million)
Loan repaid by the 3541 60.65 43.65 76.23

Company during the
Fiscal (X in million)

Interest rate

Interest free

Interest free

Interest free

Interest free

Terms and conditions

The loan stood
repayable within 30
days of the lender
providing the borrower a
written notice of
demand.

The loan stood
repayable within 30
days of the lender
providing the
borrower a written
notice of demand.

The loan stood
repayable within
30 days of the
lender providing
the borrower a
written notice of
demand.

The loan stood
repayable

within 30 days
of the lender
providing the

borrower a
written notice
of demand.
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Purpose for which the | Business purposes Business purposes Business purposes | Business

loans were utilised by purposes

the Company

Reason for repayment | The  Interest-  free | The Interest- free | The Interest- free | The Interest-

during the same year

unsecured loan has been
taken for short term
perspective to fulfil the
working capital
requirement. As  per

unsecured loan has
been taken for short
term perspective to
fulfil the working
capital requirement.

unsecured loan
has been taken for

short term
perspective to
fulfil the working

free unsecured
loan has been
taken for short
term

perspective to

understanding, it shall | As per | capital fulfil the
be repaid to the extent | understanding, it | requirement. As | working
amount available with | shall be repaid to the | per understanding, | capital
the Company. extent amount | it shall be repaid to | requirement.
available with the | the extent amount | As per
Company. available with the | understanding,
Company. it shall be

repaid to the
extent amount
available with
the Company.

Note: The Company has been sourcing short term as well as long term unsecured loans from promoters / directors
in compliance with section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 on multiple occasions as and when required and
have been repaying the same on fulfilment of the requirement. Borrowing being made on multiple occasions,
consolidated receipt and repayment of loan amount has been mentioned in above table and specific date of
borrowing has not been mentioned.

The repayment terms are based solely on agreed-upon schedules with the lenders or repayable on demand
and our Company may need to borrow monies at higher rates of interest than presently available or utilise our
Company’s internal accruals, which may have an adverse impact on the profitability and future growth of our
Company. For further details, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 490. In the event that the lenders seek
repayment/ redemption of such unsecured borrowings, we would need to find alternative sources of financing,
which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all and therefore such recall may
adversely affect our business, cash flows and financial condition.

Any delays in the schedule of implementation of our proposed objects could have an adverse impact on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We propose to utilize our Net Proceeds for (i) funding working capital requirements of our Company; (ii)
capital expenditure towards purchase of construction equipment/machineries. For further information, please
see “Objects of the Issue” on page 148. Further, the details of our proposed schedule of implementation and
deployment of proceeds is as per “Objects of the Issue — Schedule of Implementation, Utilisation and
Deployment of Net Proceeds on page 148. We are subject to risks associated with delays in the schedule of
implementation of our proposed objects. These include risks on account of market conditions, delay in
procuring and operationalizing assets or necessary licenses and approvals, competition, price fluctuations,
interest rate fluctuations and other external factors. In the event we are unable to adhere to our proposed
schedule of implementation of our objects, we may be subject to cost escalations which in-turn could have a
material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our industry is highly fragmented and competitive, and our inability to compete effectively may have a
material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We operate in a highly fragmented and competitive industry. We enter into contracts primarily through a
competitive bidding process or on negotiated rate basis. Our competition varies depending on the size, nature
and complexity of the project and on the geographical region in which the project is to be executed. We
compete against various construction companies.

Our key industry peers are namely PSP Projects Limited, Ahluwalia Contracts India Limited, B. L. Kashyap
and Sons Limited, Ceigall India Limited, and Capacite Infraprojects Limited (Source: D&B Report).

For more information regarding our industry peers, please see “Industry Overview- Profiling of Major
Players” on page 248. In selecting contractors for major projects, clients generally limit the tender to
contractors they have pre-qualified based on several criteria, including experience, technical ability, past
performance, reputation for quality, safety record, financial strength and the size of previous contracts
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executed in similar projects with them or otherwise. Additionally, while these are important considerations,
price is a major factor in most tender awards and in negotiated contracts and our business is subject to intense
price competition. A number of our competitors are larger and better placed, which would enable them to
take advantage of efficiencies created by size, and may have better financial resources or greater access to
capital at lower costs, and may be better known in regional markets in which we compete. In addition, as the
industry is highly fragmented, we also face competition from local contractors, who may be able to cater to
local demands at fees and costs lower than ours.

We cannot assure you that we can continue to compete effectively with our competitors in the future, and
failure to compete effectively against our current or future competitors may have an adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition. Competition can place downward pressure on our
contract prices and profit margins and may force us to accept contractual terms and conditions that are not
normal or customary for us, thereby increasing the risk that we may have losses on such contracts. Intense
competition is expected to continue in these markets, presenting us with significant challenges in our ability
to maintain strong growth rates and acceptable profit margins. If we are unable to meet these competitive
challenges, we could lose market share to our competitors and experience an overall reduction in our profits.

Our Promoters and a member of our Promoter Group have given personal guarantees for loan facilities
obtained by our Company. Any failure or default by our Company to repay such loans in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the financing documents could trigger repayment obligations on them.

Our Promoters and a member of our Promoter Group have provided personal guarantees towards loan
facilities taken by our Company. For further information, please see “Restated Consolidated Financial
Information- Notes to Restated Consolidated Financial Information- Note 22B” on page 351 .

Any default or failure by our Company to repay the loans in a timely manner, or at all could trigger repayment
obligations of our Promoters and the member of our Promoter Group in respect of such loans, which in turn,
could have an impact on their ability to effectively service their obligations, thereby having an effect on our
business, results of operation and financial condition. Furthermore, in the event that our Promoters and
members of our Promoter Group withdraw or terminate their guarantees, our lenders for such facilities may
ask for alternate guarantees, repayment of amounts outstanding under such facilities, or even terminate such
facilities. Accordingly, our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects may be
adversely affected by the revocation of the personal guarantees provided by our Promoters and the member
of our Promoter Group.

Any unsecured loans taken by our Company may be recalled at any time.

As of March 31, 2025, our Company has availed unsecured loans aggregating ¥588.83 million. For further
details, please see “Financial Indebtedness’ and “Restated Consolidated Financial Information” on page
490 and 351.

We cannot assure you that our Company will not convert all or part of the outstanding unsecured loan
advanced to our Company into Equity Shares which may lead to the dilution of investors’ shareholdings in
our Company. Any such future equity issuances by us to the Promoters may adversely affect the trading
price of the Equity Shares, which may lead to other adverse consequences including difficulty in raising
capital through offering of the Equity Shares or incurring additional debt. In addition, any perception by
investors that such issuances might occur may also affect the market price of the Equity Shares.

If we are not successful in managing our growth, our business may be disrupted and our profitability may
be reduced, which may materially and adversely affect our business, prospects, reputation, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have experienced growth in Fiscal 2024, which was attributable primarily to the growth of our Order
Book and timely execution of our projects. Our consolidated revenue from operations and profit after tax
grew at CAGRs* of 7.82% and 71.95%, respectively, from Fiscal 2022 to Fiscal 2024. The following table
sets forth our restated consolidated revenue from operations and profit after tax for the periods indicated:

(% in million)
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Nine months period
Particulars ended December Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
31, 2024
Revenue from 2,546.57 3,321.62 2,333.45 2,857.09
operations
Profit after tax 177.89 153.78 48.51 52.01

27.

*CAGR = (Ending Value / Beginning Value)"(1 / Number of Years) — 1

Although we plan to continue to expand our scale of operations through organic growth or investments in
other entities and expanding into new geographic areas, we may not grow at a rate comparable to our growth
rate in the past, either in terms of revenue or profit. If our growth continues, it will place significant demands
on our management and operations and require us to continuously evolve and improve our operational,
financial and internal controls across our Company. In particular, continued expansion may pose challenges
in:

*  maintaining high levels of project control and management, and client satisfaction;

*  managing financial resources and personnel to cater to increased volume of work;

*  recruiting, training and retaining sufficient skilled management, technical and marketing personnel;

» developing and improving our internal administrative infrastructure, particularly our financial,

operational, communications, internal control and other internal systems;

e sourcing raw materials and/or equipment in a timely manner and cost effectively;
+  making accurate assessments of the resources we will require for our projects;
» adhering to the standards of health, safety and environment and quality and process execution to meet

clients’ expectations;

*  operating in jurisdictions and business segments where we have limited experience;
e preserving a uniform culture, values and work environment; strengthening internal control and ensuring

compliance with legal and contractual obligations;

*  managing relationships with clients, suppliers, contractors, lenders and service providers; and
*  maintaining adequate supporting infrastructure, such as IT and HR management systems.

If we are not successful in managing our growth in the future, our business may be disrupted and profitability
may be reduced, and our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely
affected.

Our business depends on projects awarded by government or government-owned customers such as CPWD
& PSU, which subjects us to a variety of risks.

Our business depends on projects awarded by government and government-owned customers both including
central or state governments, governmental organizations and public sector undertakings.

Set forth below are details of our Order Book attributable to contracts awarded by government and
government-owned customers both in absolute terms and as a percentage of our total Order Book for the
periods indicated. Please also “Qur Business- Our Order Book’ on page 68.

The bifurcation of private and public sector projects by revenue from operations (construction project
receipts) and by number of ongoing projects is as follows:
(% in million)

rs

Particula | For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
period ended December
31,2024
Revenue % of total | Revenue % of total | Revenue % of total | Revenue % of total
from revenue from revenue from revenue from revenue
operations from operations from operations from operations from

(constructio | operations | (constructio | operations | (constructio | operations | (constructio | operations
n project | constructio | n project | constructio | n  project | constructio | n  project | constructio

receipts) n project | receipts) n project | receipts) n project | receipts) n project
receipts receipts receipts receipts
CPWD &
PSU 2,260.66 91.65 2,631.57 89.73 1,814.45 91.40 2,419.42 95.40
Private 206.07 8.35 301.10 10.27 170.81 8.60 116.74 4.60
Total 2,466.73 100.00 2,932.67 100.00 1,985.27 100.00 2,536.17 100.00
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Ongoing projects for

Ongoing projects for

Ongoing projects for

Ongoing projects for

the nine months | Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

period ended
Particulars December 31, 2024
CPWD & PSU 13 18 12 10
Private 3 5 5 4
Total 16 23 17 14

28.

We cannot assure you that government policies (especially those of the Government of India) will continue
to place emphasis on infrastructure. In the event of any adverse change in budgetary allocations for
infrastructure development or a downturn in available work in the infrastructure sector resulting from any
change in government policies or priorities, including on account of changes in government pursuant to
elections, our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.
Contracts with government and government-owned customers may be subject to extensive internal processes,
policy changes, government or external budgetary allocation, insufficiency of funds and political pressure,
which may lead to a lower number of contracts available for bidding, an increase in the time gap between
invitation for bids and award of the contract, a renegotiation of the terms of these contracts after they are
awarded, or delays in payments against our invoices. Further, in relation to such contracts, we may be subject
to additional regulatory scrutiny associated with commercial transactions with governments and government
owned or controlled entities and agencies.

Our existing construction projects developed by agencies or bodies of the Government are often subject to
delay. Such delays may be on account of a change in government bodies or agencies, changes in policies
impacting the public at large, scaling back of Government policies or initiatives, changes in governmental or
external budgetary allocation, or insufficiency of funds, which can significantly and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, contracts awarded by the agencies or bodies
of the government may include provisions which enable the client to terminate the contract after providing
our Company with appropriate notice. Our ability to recover compensation, on account of termination by the
government authorities are limited. We may not be able to recover our payments in connection with such
contracts in a timely manner, which may adversely affect our business, results of operations, revenues and
financial condition. As a result, the terms that favour our government authorities may put us in
disadvantageous positions when we perform government contracts.

We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.
We have, from time to time, entered into various transactions with related parties. The following table

summarizes the value of related party transactions undertaken in each Fiscal period indicated, including as a
percentage of our total income for such period.

For the nine
months period Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
ended December
Particulars 31, 2024
(1) 0, (1) (1}
Zin % of Zin % of Zin % of Zin % of
ore total ore total e total ore total
million | . million | . million | . million | .
income income income income
Related party
transactions 515.75 20.09 578.74 17.29 17.63 0.75 - -
Note:

The above table includes related party sale transactions.

For information on all our related party transactions, please see “Restated Consolidated Financial
Information- Note 49- Related Party Disclosures - Details of transactions with related parties (in accordance
with Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures)” on page 351.

Although all the related party transactions in the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024,

Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 have been carried out on arm’s length basis, we cannot assure you that each of
the related party transactions will be carried out on an arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the
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relevant provisions of Companies Act and any other applicable laws and regulations as amended, we cannot
assure you that we might not have obtained more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into
with unrelated parties. It is likely that we will continue to enter into related party transactions in the future.
Some of these transactions may require significant capital outlay and there can be no assurance that we will
be able to make a return on these investments. Although, after the Issue, all related-party transactions that we
may enter into will be subject to Audit Committee, Board or shareholder approval, as may be required under
the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations, we cannot assure you that such transactions,
individually or in the aggregate, will perform as expected/ result in the benefit envisaged therein.

Our success largely depends upon the knowledge and experience of our Promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management as well as our ability to attract and retain personnel with
technical expertise. Our inability to retain our Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We depend on the management skills and guidance of our Promoters and Board of Directors for development
of business strategies, monitoring their successful implementation and meeting future challenges. Further, we
also significantly depend on the expertise, experience and continued efforts of our Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management. Any loss of our Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management or our ability to attract and retain them and other skilled personnel could adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition. Our future performance will depend largely on our
ability to retain the continued service of our management team. If one or more of our Key Managerial
Personnel or Senior Management are unable or unwilling to continue in his or her present position, it could
be difficult for us to find a suitable or timely replacement and our business, results of operations and financial
condition could be adversely affected.

In addition, we may require a long period of time to hire and train replacement personnel when personnel
with technical expertise terminate their employment with us. We may also be required to increase our levels
of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past to remain competitive in attracting and retaining
personnel with technical expertise that our business requires. The loss of the services of such persons could
have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

The table below set forth the attrition rate for our employees for the periods indicated:

Nine months period

Particulars ended December Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
31, 2024

Attrition Rate* (%) 5.67 6.07 4.65 9.66

30.

*Attrition Rate is calculated as average of opening and closing number of employees for each month and annual average.

While these positions have been appropriately filled and we have not faced any impact due to the resignations,
we cannot assure that future resignations will not have impact the Company’s business or operations.

There is significant competition for management and other skilled personnel in the construction industry, and
it may be difficult to attract and retain the personnel we require in the future. There can be no assurance that
our competitors will not offer better compensation packages, incentives and other perquisites to such skilled
personnel. Further, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we do not have key man insurance policies.
If we are not able to attract and retain talented employees as required for conducting our business, or if we
experience high attrition levels which are largely out of our control, or if we are unable to motivate and retain
existing employees, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. For
further information, please see “Our Management” on page 325.

Timely and successful completion of our projects is dependent upon our performance and, in the case of
many projects, the cooperation of our sub-contractors or joint ventures and any failure or delay in
successful completion could adversely affect the construction quality of our developments and adversely
affect our profitability and reputation.

We rely on third parties for the implementation of projects where we have entered into arrangements with
third parties for the supply of labour, equipment and raw material. Accordingly, the timing and quality of
construction of our properties depend on the availability and skill of those sub-contractors. Typically,
construction contracts are subject to specific completion schedule requirements with liquidated damages
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chargeable in the event that a project falls behind schedule. In case of sub-contracting, the completion of the
contract depends in part on the performance of our sub-contractors. Delay or failure on the part of a sub-
contractor to complete its project work on time, for any reason, could result in additional costs to us, including
the payment of contractually agreed liquidated damages. The amount of such additional costs could adversely
affect our profit margins on the project. While we may seek to recover these amounts as claims from the
supplier, vendor, sub-contractor, joint venture or other third party responsible for the delay or for providing
non-conforming products or services, we cannot assure you that we will recover all or any part of these costs
in all circumstances. If we enter into joint ventures for any project in the future, we may face similar risks as
we may experience with a sub-contractor. Performance problems for existing and future projects could cause
our actual results of operations to differ materially from those anticipated by us and could damage our
reputation within our industry and our client base.

Further, many of our projects depend on the availability of competent external contractors for construction,
delivery and commissioning, as well as the supply and testing of equipment. However, in the past, we have
not had such instances. Any inadequacy or delay in services by our contractors may result in incremental
costs and time overruns which in turn may adversely affect our projects and expansion plans.

In addition, there is a high demand for infrastructure construction companies in India at present and our ability
to hire competent contractors may therefore be limited as we may not be able to identify or retain competent
contractors, or ensure execution on a timely or cost-effective basis. A completion delay on the part of a sub-
contractor, for any reason, could result in delayed payments to us. In addition, when we sub-contract, we may
be liable to the customer due to failure on the part of a sub-contractor to maintain the required performance
standards or insufficiency of a sub-contractor's performance guarantees.

The details of the number of projects wherein majority of the work is sub-contracted in the nine months period
ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022 are set out below.

Nine months
Particulars period ended Fiscal 2024 | Fiscal 2023 | Fiscal 2022
December 31,
2024
Number of construction projects wherein 1 1 1 1
majority™* of the work is sub-contracted

31.

*majority represents contracts wherein more than 50% of the work has been sub-contracted.

Further, while we may sub-contract our construction work and may be indemnified by the sub-contractor for
any loss or damage due to their default, we may still be liable for accidents on the projects due to defects in
design and quality of construction of our projects during their construction and operation. In addition, we can
make no assurance that such contractors or their sub-contractors will continue to hold or renew valid
registrations under the relevant labour laws in India or be able to obtain the requisite approvals for undertaking
such construction and operation.

If our sub-contractors are unable to perform in accordance with their commitments on time or meet the quality
standards required, our ability to complete projects on time or at all could be impaired. Further, if a sub-
contractor becomes insolvent, we may be unable to recover damages or compensation for defective work and
we may incur additional expenditure as a result of correcting any defective work. This may have an adverse
effect on our reputation, cash flows, business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our business strategy may change in the future and may be different from that which is contained herein.
Changes in our business strategy may expose us to additional risks, and an inability to manage such risks
may have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

We have stated our objectives for raising funds through the Issue and have set forth our strategies for our
future business. For details, please see “Objects of the Issue” on page 148 and “Qur Business — Our
Strategies” on page 282. However, depending on prevailing market conditions and other commercial
considerations, our business model in the future may change from what is described herein. Changes in our
business strategy may expose us to additional risks, and an inability to manage such risks may have an adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.
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32. Our inability to provide financial and performance guarantees in favour of our clients may adversely

affect our business.

For our construction project receipts, we are often required to provide financial and performance guarantees
to guarantee our performance and/or financial obligations in relation to a project, which primarily comprise
of bank guarantees. The amount of guarantee facilities available to us depends upon our financial condition
and the availability of adequate security for the banks and financial institutions that provide us with such
facilities. In addition, letters of credit are often required to satisfy our payment obligations to suppliers and
sub-contractors. If we are unable to provide sufficient collateral to secure financial bank guarantees,
performance bank guarantees or letters of credit, our ability to enter into new contracts or obtain adequate
supplies could be limited and could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition. While in the past, certain project owners have permitted relaxations with respect to bank
guarantees, if we are unable to obtain similar relaxations in the future, we may face challenges in providing
bank guarantees, which may also affect our ability to win new contracts. Having to provide security to obtain
letters of credit, financial and performance bank guarantees also increases our loan-to-value ratio, thereby
restricting our ability to access working capital facilities.

Details of performance bank guarantees submitted in the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and
for the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as provided below:

(% in million)

For the nine months
Particulars period  December Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
31,2024
CPWD 108.10 129.20 153.49 177.52
Government 218.19 250.94 113.40 17.39
Non-Government 64.10 36.15 - 12.08
f;esflf:;‘:‘ance bank  guarantees 390.39 416.29 266.89 206.99

33.

* The above figures do not include mobilisation advance, earnest money deposit, security deposits, and surety bonds.

If we are unable to provide sufficient collateral to secure the bank guarantees or performance bonds, our
ability to enter into new contracts could be limited. Providing security to obtain bank guarantees and
performance bonds increases our working capital needs. Such bank guarantees and performance bonds
generally impose restrictive covenants on raising additional debt or payment of dividends. We may not be
able to continue obtaining new bank guarantees and performance bonds that match our business requirements.
A failure to do so may have a material adverse effect on our business.

We own and rent equipment and mobilize such equipment at the beginning of each project resulting in
increased fixed costs to our Company. In the event we are not able to generate adequate cash flows, it
may have a material adverse impact on our operations.

We own and rent large and modern construction equipment and mobilize such equipment at the beginning of
each project, resulting in increased fixed costs to our Company. As of March 31, 2025, our Company owned
construction equipment assets such as tower crane, concrete batching plant, transit mixer, concrete pumps,
and transportation vehicles. We rent equipment pursuant to agreements entered typically for a period of six
months. As on March 31, 2025, we rented equipment, such as backhoe loaders, excavators, and transit mixer
equipment on a rental basis.

The following table sets forth details of cost of our equipment and machineries for the Fiscals/period
indicated:
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For the nine months
period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
1 o,
Particulars . 00 . % of revenue . % of revenue . % of revenue
in revenue in Xin Xin
- i from erye from e from
million from million . million . million .
5 operations operations operations
operations
Total Plant &| 128.07 5.03| 146.32 441 125.51 5.38| 11541 4.04
Machinery @
WDV (in X
million)

The following table sets forth details of the rent paid on hired equipment for the Fiscals/period indicated:

For the nine months
Particulars period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
Hire charges (in X 21.45 16.20 9.31 21.03
million)

The following table provides a list of the major machineries and equipment owned and leased by us as on
March 31, 2025:

Mini Concrete Mixer

Ultra Sonic Pulse Velocity Meter

Sr | Asset Owned Leased
No.
1 | Excavator - 1
2 | Backhoe Loader (JCB) 1 3
3 | Hydraulic Crane (Hydra) 1 |
4 | Transit Mixers 1 1
5 | Concrete Plant 2 -
6 | Concrete Pump 6 -
7 | Loader - 1
8 | Tower Crane 1
9 | Bar Bending Machine -
10 | Bar Cutting Machine
11
12
13

[y Uy U N N Y
1

Total Station

Further, on an average we incur significant cost in mobilizing equipment at our project sites. Accordingly,
the cost of maintaining and mobilizing such equipment in proper working condition constitutes a significant
portion of our operating expenses. In the event we are unable to generate or maintain adequate revenues by
successfully bidding for projects or recover payments from our customers in a timely manner or at all, it could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operations.

Further, the details of useful life (in years), estimated yearly rent (excluding maintenance and manpower
cost), total rental for estimated useful life and cost benefit analysis is stated below:

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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M S Standard All Size Raj Trading & The scaffolding and shuttering material will be
Co. 658 47.38 April 18, 2025 10 976 97,60 50.22 valid for 6 utilized in both ongoing and upcoming projects
| | ) months at (i) Redevelopment of non-profit, non-
Shuttering material: proprietary, private, educational organization at
. - N Sector-30, Noida, (ii) Academic Block, Hostel
;j_gpi;);k Vertical 9700 Block, Residential Block and Director's
T Cuplock  Vertical 7700 . Residence at NIT Narela and other project sites
'uploc! ertic. -
2 2.5 mtr (1f the Cm:npanx. For more details, please see
-~ Cuplock  Vertical v s 3250 . Our Business” on page 272.
2.0 mir In.dustries .
*  Cuplock  Vertical 7600 -
1.5 mtr
*  Cuplock  Vertical 8200 -
1.0 mtr
*  Cuplock Ledger 1.8 7500 -
mtr . .
+ Cuplock Ledger 1.5 6800 N 51.48 April 10, 2025 10 10.91 109.10 57.62 | valid for 6
Imtr months
*  Cuplock Ledger 1.2 7800 -
mtr
*  Cuplock Ledger 0.9 45000 -
mtr
*  Cuplock Ledger 15500 -
0.95 mtr
»  Base Jack 450 mm 9500 -
« U Head Jack 450 9500 -
mm
*  Spigot Pin 5000 -
3 *  Cuplock 3mtr P B 2500 - valid for 6
T Cuplock 2.5 mir Enterprises 750 - 10.95 April 18, 2025 10 2.60 26.00 15.05 | months
»  Cuplock 2 mtr 900 -
*  Cuplock 1.5 mtr 500 -
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¢ Ledger 1.5 mtr 15000
e Ledger | mtr 7500
*  Pin Spigot 4000
e Jack Plane 3000
*  U-Jack 4000
Putzmeister Boom Pump | Putzmeister The Company intends to acquire the said assets
(BSF 36.08H) Concrete for utilization in its ongoing and upcoming
Machines projects. For more details, please see “Our
Private - Business” on page 272.
Limited valid for 180
11.20 April 26, 2025 4.8 28.80 17.60 | days from
offer
Putzmeiser MX Placing | Putzmeister The Company plans to use the proposed
Boom (HSN  Code: | Concrete valid for | machinery mainly for its Income Tax Office
84134000) Machines acceptance for | Building at Bengaluru, Karnataka, where
Private - 12.10 180 days from | transporting concrete is anticipated to be more
Limited the offer date labour-intensive and costly.
April 26, 2025 3.6 21.60 9.50
e Putzmeister Putzmeister The Company intends to acquire the said assets
Stationary Concrete | Concrete 230 0.8 4.00 1.70 | valid till 180 | for utilization in its ongoing and upcoming
Pump (HSN Code: | Machines ’ days from | projects. For more details, please see “Our
84134000) Private April 12, 2025 offer Business” on page 272.
e  Pipeline set - 100m, | Limited
Wedge Type 0.36 0.1 0.50 0.14
Total Basic Cost 135.77 287.60 151.83
Add: Contingencies (5%)" 6.78
Total Cost (excluding taxes) 142.55

~ln connection with the proposed capital expenditure as outlined in the objects, the Company has made a provision for contingencies amounting to 5% of the total basic cost of
equipment/machinery. This provision has been considered to account for unforeseen expenses, price escalations, freight cost, insurance cost or other unexpected costs that may arise during the
procurement, installation, and commissioning phases of the machinery acquisition. The contingency provision is intended to ensure that the Company maintains financial flexibility throughout

the procurement of equipment/machinery, thereby mitigating potential risks and increased cost contingency.
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34.

However, obsolescence, destruction, theft or breakdowns of equipment may significantly increase our
equipment purchase cost and the depreciation of our plants and equipment, as well as change the way our
management estimates the useful life of our plants and equipment. In the event we are unable to maintain
adequate number of projects, we may not be able to keep our plants, equipment and vehicles fully utilized
and it could also have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and result of operations.

If our Company does not receive future contract awards or if these awards are delayed, it could incur
significant costs in the interim. Our estimate of the future requirement of equipment depends on, among other
things, whether and when we will be awarded new contracts. While our estimates are based upon best
judgment, these estimates can be unreliable and may frequently change based upon newly available
information. In the case of large-scale projects where timing is often uncertain, it is particularly difficult to
predict whether or when we will be awarded the contract. The uncertainty of the contract being awarded and
its timing can present difficulties in matching equipment leasing with the contract needs. If a contract, is
delayed or terminated, our Company could incur costs due to leasing and mobilizing such equipment, which
could have a material adverse effect on our profitability, financial condition and results of operations and
financial condition.

Given the long-term nature of the projects we undertake, we may face various implementation and other
risks, and our inability to successfully manage such risks may have an adverse impact on the functioning
of our business.

As at March 31, 2025, we are undertaking 13 projects, spread across six (6) states, namely Delhi, Uttar
Pradesh, Haryana, Maharashtra, Telangana and Karnataka, that are either under construction or development.
Our construction projects involve agreements that are long-term in nature. Long-term agreements have
inherent risks associated with them that may not necessarily be within our control and, accordingly, our
exposure to a variety of implementation and other risks, including construction delays, material shortages or
delivery delays, unanticipated cost increases, cost overruns, changes in project scope or specifications, delays
in acquisition of land, delays in obtaining environmental or other regulatory clearance, inability to negotiate
satisfactory arrangements with joint venture partners, disagreements with our joint venture partners, disputes
and litigations with our clients and force majeure events is enhanced. Moreover, we may be further subject to
regulatory risks, financing risks and the risks that these projects may ultimately prove to be unprofitable.

For example, business circumstances may materially change over the life of one or more of our agreements
and we may not have the ability to modify our agreements to reflect these changes. Further, being committed
under these agreements may restrict our ability to implement changes to our business plan. This limits our
business flexibility, exposes us to an increased risk of unforeseen business and industry changes and could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In the last three Fiscals and the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, we have experienced delays
due to implementation risks, such as construction delays at our end, delay or disruption in supply of raw
materials, delays in acquisition of land, delays in obtaining environmental and other statutory clearance,
unanticipated cost increases, force majeure events, cost overruns or disputes etc. For instance, in Fiscal 2023
one of our projects experienced delays due to non-receipt of statutory clearance, which resulted into a decline
in revenue from operations in Fiscal 2023. For details, please refer to “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on page 453.

In case of disputed contracts, it is to be noted that the probability of collection of consideration is doubtful
and so the Company does not account for revenue to the extent it is disputed. Inaccurate estimation of contract
costs, project complexities, project scope or unexpected events may adversely impact the project timelines
and deviate profits significantly, which may result in unforeseen potential losses.

Further, while our contracts with our customers have clauses which allow us to seek an extension of time for
completing our projects, we may for unforeseen reasons, not be able to obtain extensions for projects and
thereby face delays or time overruns. There have been no instances of invocation and liquidated damages in
the last 3 Fiscals and the nine months period ended December 31, 2024. However, in the past, we have sought
extensions of time for completion of projects due to various factors and, except for the one instance in Fiscal
2022 where we were required to pay to the CWPD a penalty of 0.73 million under the terms of our project
contract for time delay in completing the construction of the faculty housing and hostel at IIM Udaipur, no
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other delays have resulted into any monetary penalties. While such instances have not had a material impact
on our Company, we cannot assure you that such instances will not occur in future or have adverse impact on
our cash flows, business, results of operations and financial condition.

We also cannot assure you that we will be granted extensions of time in the future. Further, our project
customers may, as per the agreed upon contractual terms, be entitled to invoke penalty provisions and/or
terminate the contract in the event of delay in completion of the work if the delay is not on account of any of
force majeure clauses or any agreed exceptions. With respect to some of our projects, in the event of
termination for any of the aforesaid reasons, we may only receive partial payments under such agreements
and such payments may be less than our estimated cash flows from such projects. Even where a project
proceeds as scheduled, it is possible that contracting parties may default and fail to pay amounts owed on the
receivables due or dispute the amount owed to us.

We may not have sufficient protection in our contracts with counterparties against liabilities and/or additional
costs that may be associated with delays in completing our projects. If instances of delays occur in the future,
for whatever reason, we may have to bear risks associated with any increase in actual costs for construction
activities exceeding the agreed work and/or penalties that may be invoked due to such delays. Further, if
disputes with our customers occur in the future, we cannot assure you that we will resolve such disputes to
the mutual satisfaction of all parties and, if unresolved, that such disputes will not lead to legal proceedings
being initiated by us or against us. Such legal proceedings are extensive and time-consuming and it cannot be
assured that the outcome of such proceedings will be in our favour or the incremental costs sought by us
would be awarded to us, in full or part, or at all. These legal proceedings could divert management time and

attention, consume our financial resources in defence or prosecution of such legal proceedings or cause delays
in the construction, development or commencement of operations of our projects, or strain our relation with
our project customers, and there can be no assurance that we will be successful in all, or any, such
proceedings.

If any or all of these risks materialize, we may suffer significant cost overruns or time overruns or even losses
in these projects due to unanticipated increase in costs, dispute-related costs and/or associated costs and
liabilities, as a result of which our business, profits and results of operations will be materially and adversely
affected.

We may be unable to pre-qualify to bid on certain larger construction projects on our own, and if we are
unable to forge alliances with third parties, we may be precluded from bidding for those large construction
projects, which could have an adverse effect on our growth prospects.

We enter into contracts through a competitive bidding process or on negotiated rate basis. In selecting
contractors for major projects, clients generally limit the tender to contractors they have pre-qualified based
on several criteria, including experience, technical ability, past performance, reputation for quality, safety
record, financial strength and the size of previous contracts executed in similar projects with them or
otherwise. Additionally, while these are important considerations, price is a major factor in most tender
awards and in negotiated contracts and our business is subject to intense price competition. Our recent
experience indicates that Government and other clients in the social and commercial infrastructure, transport
and logistics, residential, industrial and other commercial sectors are increasingly developing larger, more
technically complex projects and increasingly awarding the entire contract to a single project contractor. Pre-
qualification is key to our winning such major projects. We are accredited as a Class I Super Contractor with
the CPWD and, as at the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we are pre-qualified to bid independently for
single projects up to a tender value of 36,500 million.

Our ability to bid for and win such large-scale contracts depends on demonstrating experience with similar
projects and having robust technical capabilities to manage complex turnkey projects. If we are not able to
qualify in our own right to bid for certain projects, we may seek to partner and collaborate with other
companies in bids for such projects, either through memoranda of understanding or joint venture agreements,
in order to fulfil capital, technical, or other requirements necessary for bidding or contract execution. If we
are unable to partner with other companies or lack the credentials to be the partner-of-choice for other
companies, we may lose the opportunity to bid for certain larger scale projects, such as for construction of
education and healthcare buildings.
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If we are unable to establish effective alliances to meet pre-qualification standards, we risk missing out on
significant bidding opportunities, which could negatively impact our growth prospects. Additionally,
fluctuations in market demand, changes in client requirements, and evolving industry standards could further
challenge our competitive positioning and project acquisition strategies.

Our ability to pass on increased costs may be limited in projects undertaken pursuant to a fixed-price
contract.

Some of our projects are fixed-price contracts pursuant to which the agreed contract price is inclusive of all
taxes and is determined at the time that the said contract is awarded. Expect for variation for taxes, the said
contracts do not permit us to seek a variation in contract value on grounds of any changes in cost of labour or
costs of raw materials. The following table summarizes the number of projects that we undertook on a fixed-
price basis in each of the Fiscals indicated:

Nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023

period ended

December 31,
2024

Particulars Fiscal 2022

Number of projects * 16 23 17 14

Number of projects with escalation 13 14 10 10
clause

No. of projects with fixed price 3 9 7 4

37.

*Including the completed and ongoing projects. Bifurcation is based on revenue booked in contractual project receipts.

We may be exposed to significant liability under our fixed-price contracts in the event of any adverse variation
in the costs of labour or raw materials. Such variation may materially and adversely affect the profitability of
an individual project and may materially and adversely affect our financial performance and results of
operations. Further, our prices under fixed-price contracts are based on cost, effort and time estimates that are
subject to a number of assumptions which may prove erroneous or inaccurate. Cost or time overruns, whether
due to inefficiency, faulty estimates or other factors, and may result in our incurring reduced profits or losses
on a project.

Additionally, our customers may dispute the increased costs. If we are unable to pass on such unanticipated
price increases to our customers, we may have to absorb such increases and our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Our projects expose us to potential product/project liability, warranty and other claims, which could be
expensive, damage our reputation and harm our business.

We construct and perform services at construction sites where accidents or system failures can be disastrous.
Any occurrence in excess of our insurance limits at locations constructed by us or services performed could
result in significant product liability, warranty and other claims against us by our customers, including claims
for cost overruns and the failure of the project to meet contractually specified milestones or performance
standards. Further, the rendering of our services on these projects could expose us to risks to, and claims by,
third parties and governmental agencies for personal injuries, property damage and environmental matters,
among others. Any claim, regardless of its merit or eventual outcome, could result in substantial costs to us,
a substantial diversion of management’s attention and adverse publicity.

We could face significant claims for damages in respect of, among other things:

*  defects in the quality of our or our subcontractors’ design, engineering or planning;
. latent defects in the structures we built;

e  delay in constructing the project;

» failure to adhere to building codes and regulations during construction;

e  accidents and injuries sustained by workers on the construction site;

=  commercial and environmental damage relating to or arising from our projects;

*  damage caused by our vendors’ products; or

e our failure to manage, supervise or inspect projects.

We may be exposed to liabilities arising under our warranties or from defects during construction. We have
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entered into a number of contracts that specify a period as the defects liability period during which we would
have to rectify any defects arising from construction services provided by us within the warranty periods
stipulated in our contracts at our cost. Actual or claimed defects in construction quality could give rise to
claims, liabilities, costs and expenses.

We did not experience any claims for the past three Fiscals on account of loss of construction material and/or
equipment, accident of construction vehicles or damage to machinery, loss of life due to accident with
construction vehicle etc., in the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022.

In many of our contracts, we guarantee to a client that we will complete a project by a scheduled date.
Similarly, we sometimes warrant that a project, when completed, will also achieve certain performance
standards. Such delay in completion or inability to achieve warranted performance standards may be due to
a number of factors, such as poor market conditions or poor economic conditions within the states in which
we operate. From time to time, we may also assume a project’s technical risk, which means that we may have
to satisfy certain technical requirements of a project despite the fact that at the time that the project was
awarded, we may not have previously produced the system or product in question.

While we seek to maintain insurance in respect of our projects in accordance with industry standards and we
selectively seek backup guarantees from our third-party service providers, there can be no assurance that such
measures will be sufficient to cover liabilities resulting from claims. Any liability in excess of our insurance
payments, reserves or backup guarantees could result in additional costs, which would reduce our profits.
Any product liability claims against us could generate adverse publicity, leading to a loss of reputation,
customers and/or increase our costs, thereby materially and adversely affecting our business, results of
operations and financial condition. In addition, as and when we increase our own design capabilities, we will
no longer have recourse to third parties for failures in design of those projects. In addition, if there is a client
dispute regarding our performance, the client may delay or withhold payment to us. If we were ultimately
unable to collect on these payments, our profits would be reduced. These claims, liabilities, costs and
expenses, if not fully covered, thus could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operation.

The majority of our assets have been uninsured over the nine months period ended December 31, 2024
and the last three Fiscals. Our current insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against all
possible losses. Any losses exceeding our insurance coverage may adversely and materially affect our
business, prospects, reputation, profitability, financial condition and results of operations

We maintain insurance coverage in such amounts and against such risks which we believe to be important for
our business operations. Our insurance coverage typically includes Contractor All Risk (CAR) policy, labour
workmen compensation policy to cover risk on account of loss or damage or theft of construction material or
any accidents fatal or otherwise. However, such insurance may not be adequate to cover all losses or liabilities
that may arise from our operations, including when the loss suffered is not easily quantifiable and in the event
of severe damage to our reputation. Furthermore, we may not be able to secure any additional insurance
coverage on commercially reasonable terms or at all. In addition, we may not be able to maintain insurance
of this nature or at levels which we deem necessary or adequate or at rates which we consider reasonable. The
occurrence of an event for which we are not adequately or sufficiently insured or the successful assertion of
one or more large claims against us that exceed available insurance coverage, or changes in our insurance
policies (including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance requirements),
could have an adverse effect on our reputation, business and results of operations.

The table below sets forth our total insurance coverage as of the dates indicated:

Particulars Amount of Assets as at (X in million) % of total Assets (in %)
December 31, | March 31, [March 31, (March 31,[DecemberMarch| March | March
2024 2024 2023 2022 31,2024 | 31, 31, 31,
2024 | 2023 2022

Insured Assets 905.56 687.48 434.17 230.85 24.17 [21.63 15.79 10.05

Uninsured

Assets 2,840.46| 2,490.82| 2,316.26| 2,067.03 75.83 [78.37 84.21 89.95

Total Assets 3,746.02| 3,178.29| 2,750.43| 2,297.88| 100.00[100.00| 100.00 | 100.00

As certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated
June 14, 2025.
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40.

We did not make any insurance claims in the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscals
2024,2023 and 2022. We cannot assure you that any claim under the insurance policies maintained by us will
be honoured fully or on time.

We maintain insurance coverage in such amounts and against such risks which we believe to be important for
our business operations, our insurance policies do not cover all risks and are subject to exclusions and
deductibles. If any or all of our facilities or equipment or project sites are damaged, in whole or in part, and
our operations are interrupted for sustained period due to fire and similar perils, there can be no assurance
that our insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses that may be incurred as a result of such
interruption or the costs of repairing or replacing the facilities and project sites. If we suffer a large uninsured
loss or any insured loss suffered by us significantly exceeds our insurance coverage, our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

We may be subject to industrial unrest and increased employee costs, which may adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

As of March 31, 2025, our workforce comprised of 122 full-time employees, of which 61 senior staff which
includes general managers, project managers and senior engineers, and 61 junior staff which includes junior
engineers, technically-trained site supervisors, skilled equipment operators, foremen, mechanics and
electricians and 24 support staff which comprises of Accounts and Clerical Staff. This is in addition to contract
labourers employed by our sub-contractors at our project sites.

Our construction operations are significantly dependent on the cooperation and continued support and
productivity of our workforce. While we believe that we maintain good relationships with our employees, there
can be no assurance that we will not experience future disruptions to our operations due to disputes, strikes or
other problems with our workforce or our sub-contractors, which may adversely affect our client goodwill,
business and results of operations. The number of contract labourers vary from time to time based on the nature
and extent of work contracted to independent contractors. We enter into contracts with independent contractors
to complete specified assignments. All contract labourers engaged at our facilities are assured minimum wages
that are fixed by local government authorities. Any upward revision of wages to be paid to such contract
labourers, or offer of permanent employment to any temporary worker, or the unavailability of contract labourers
may adversely affect our business and results of our operations.

For our projects, we are dependent on third parties for the supply of utilities, such as electricity, power and
water charges at our project sites, and any disruption in the supply of such utilities could adversely affect
our construction activities.

Our projects are dependent on the delivery of an adequate and uninterrupted supply of electricity, water and
natural gas. We procure utilities, such as electricity, power and water charges from third parties for use at our
project sites. Reliance on third parties for such utilities exposes us to risks such as shortages or breakdowns
in supply, the correction of which is in the hands of such third parties.

The table below sets forth our electricity, power and water charges for the periods indicated:

For the nine
months  period
ended December
31, 2024

Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

Particulars

. % of . % of . % of . % of
Rin Rin Rin Rin
ore total ore total oye total oye total
million million million million
expenses expenses expenses expenses

Electricity, Power and| 12.74 0.55| 1091 0.35 3.86 0.17 5.63 0.20
Water Charges

Our utilities expenses have increased in recent years due to increase in power prices, increase in number of
projects and further increases in power expenses may impact our margins if we are not able to pass these price
increases to our customers.
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Even though the expenses incurred are not substantial, any interruption in the continuous supply of electricity,
power and water in the future may negatively impact our construction activities, which may result in delays
in meeting critical milestones and timelines of our projects, resulting in loss of revenue and damage to our
reputation or client relationship. In case of the unavailability of any supply from, any of our utility providers
for any reason, we are unable to assure you that we shall be able to source such utilities from alternate sources
in a timely manner and at a commercially reasonable cost, which could adversely affect our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

Obsolescence, destruction, theft, breakdowns of our equipment or failures to repair or maintain the same
may adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

We own various equipment which is used in our operations. As of March 31, 2025, our fleet of machinery and
equipment comprised 46 construction vehicles. For further details, please see “Our Business- Equipment’” on
page 272. To maintain our capability to undertake larger and more complex projects, we seek to purchase
equipment built with the latest technologies and know-how and keep them readily available for our construction
activities through careful and comprehensive repairs and maintenance. We would also rent certain equipment
where we believe it makes commercial sense to do so. The costs attributable to depreciation and amortization
were 327.76 million, ¥38.37 million, 32.03 million and ¥32.48 million, which accounted for 1.19%, 1.22%,
1.40% and 1.16% of our expenses, for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 and for the Fiscal 2024,
Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022.

However, we cannot assure you that we will be immune from the associated operational risks, such as the
obsolescence of our equipment, destruction, theft or major equipment breakdowns or failures to repair our major
equipment, which may result in their unavailability, project delays, cost overruns and even defaults under our
construction contracts. The latest technologies used in newer models of construction equipment may improve
productivity significantly and render our older equipment obsolete.

Our Company has not filed any claims in relation to accidents that have taken place involving our fleet of
construction vehicles in the three preceding financial years. However, obsolescence, destruction, theft or
breakdowns of our equipment may significantly increase our equipment purchase cost and the depreciation of
our equipment, as well as change the way our management estimates the useful life of our equipment. In such
cases, we may not be able to acquire new equipment or repair the damaged equipment in time or at all,
particularly where our equipment are not readily available from the market or require services from original
equipment manufacturers. Some of our major equipment or parts may be costly to replace or repair. Further, we
do not have any in-house repair facilities and are dependent on third parties for repairs and maintenance. The
turnaround time for these repair and maintenance activities could vary causing the downtime of these machines
to increase. We may experience significant price increases due to supply shortages, inflation, transportation
difficulties or unavailability of discounts. There can be no assurance that such obsolescence, destruction, theft,
breakdowns, repair or maintenance failures or price increases will not have an adverse effect our business, cash
flows, financial condition and results of operations.

We have not been able to obtain certain records of the educational qualifications of a Director and have
relied on declarations and undertakings furnished by such Director for details of his profile included in
this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Promoter, Chairman and Whole-time Director- Ved Prakash Khurana is an intermediate from the Madhya
Pradesh Board. A statement to this effect is disclosed in the chapter “Our Management- Brief biographies
of our Directors” on page 327. However, we have been unable to trace the relevant copies of the educational
qualification certificate of our Promoter, Chairman and Whole-time Director- Ved Prakash Khurana for the
purpose of disclosure requirements as prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations in “Our Management”
on page 325. We have obtained and relied on an affidavit provided by him in this regard.

Further, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoter and Managing Director- Vipul Khurana
does not possess a driving license. We have obtained and relied on an affidavit provided by him in this regard.

While we believe the information provided in the affidavits to be accurate, any discrepancies or challenges to
the validity of the affidavits could potentially lead to regulatory scrutiny, or legal implications, which may
adversely affect our business operations and financial condition.

We require certain approvals and licenses in the ordinary course of business and are required to comply
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with certain rules and regulations to operate our business, any failure to obtain, retain and renew such
approvals and licenses or comply with such rules and regulations may adversely affect our operations.

We are governed by various laws and regulations for our business and operations. We are required, and will
continue to be required, to obtain and hold relevant licenses, approvals and permits at state and central
government levels for doing our business. The approvals, licenses, registrations and permits obtained by us
may contain conditions, some of which could be onerous.

We have applied and are in the process of applying for certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permits,
which are necessary for us to continue our business and need to be updated pursuant to conversion from
private to public company. For instance, we have submitted applications for obtaining shops and registration
certificates for our project sites/ offices situated in Maharashtra, Haryana, Karnataka, Rajasthan, Chhattisgarh,
and Uttar Pradesh. However, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the said applications are pending
for the states of Karnataka, Maharashtra, Chhattisgarh and Rajasthan. Further, in relation to work order
received in 2024 from Unitech Limited (“Client”) of 31,263.15 million for undertaking the following: RCC,
Civil, Internal MEP, Elevator SITC and all associated works, fire NOC is pending to be obtained by the
Client. For further details, please see “Government and Other Approvals” on page 501.

While our Company will take necessary steps to obtain necessary licenses, there can be no assurance that we
will be able to obtain all required licenses in a timely manner, without delays or complications. Failure to
obtain the same in a timely manner could result in regulatory penalties, operational disruptions, and potential
legal challenges. This could adversely affect our business operations, financial condition, and reputation.

Although no proceedings have been initiated against us where a license or approval was not renewed during
the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 or Fiscal 2022, we may need to
apply for more approvals in the future including renewal of approvals that may expire from time to time. If
we fail to obtain, maintain and renew any of such approvals or licenses, in a timely manner or at all, the
projects for which such licenses are required and our business may be adversely affected. Furthermore, in our
construction business, government delays in obtaining approvals may result in cost increases in the price of
construction materials from original estimates which cannot generally be passed on to clients and may also
adversely affect our ability to mobilize our equipment and manpower. There can be no assurance that the
relevant authorities will issue these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof in a timely manner, or at all.
Our government approvals, licenses, clearances and consents are often also subject to numerous conditions,
some of which are onerous and require substantial expenditure. If we fail to comply, or a regulator claims we
have not complied, with these conditions, our business, financial conditions and results of operations would
be materially adversely affected.

Our inability to identify, obtain and retain intellectual property rights, or to protect or use them, could
harm our business. Further, we may infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others, any
misappropriation of which could adversely affect our business and reputation.

We are currently using the trademark ©/0be Gvil Projects Ltd. “which is not yet registered in our name. We have
made an application dated May 8, 2024 for registering the said trademark under the Trademarks Act, 1999
(“TM Act”). If we are unable to get the same registered with the trademark authorities then, our Company
may not be able to successfully enforce or protect our intellectual property rights and obtain statutory
protections available under the TM Act, as otherwise available for registered trademarks in future, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, goodwill, and results of operations. There can be no
assurance that third parties will not infringe upon our intellectual property, causing damage to our business
prospects, reputation and goodwill. Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may not be adequate and
may lead to erosion of our business value and our operations could be adversely affected. We may need to
litigate in order to determine the validity of such claims and the scope of the proprietary rights of others. Any
such litigation could be time consuming and costly and the outcome cannot be guaranteed. We may not be
able to detect any unauthorized use or take appropriate and timely steps to enforce or protect our intellectual
property, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Although we have faced no instances of intellectual property claims during the nine months period ended

December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 or Fiscal 2022, and while we take care to ensure that we comply
with the intellectual property rights of others, we cannot determine with certainty as to whether we are

82



45.

46.

infringing on any existing third-party intellectual property rights, which may require us to alter our
technologies, obtain licenses or cease some of our operations. We may also be susceptible to claims from
third parties asserting infringement and other related claims. If such claims are raised, those claims could: (a)
adversely affect our relationships with current or future customers: (b) result in costly litigation; (c) cause
supplier delays or stoppages; (d) divert management's attention and resources; (e) subject us to significant
liabilities; (f) require us to enter into potentially expensive royalty or licensing agreements and (g) require us
to cease certain activities. While during the nine months period ended December 31,2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal
2023 or Fiscal 2022, we have not been involved in litigation or incurred litigation expenses in connection
with our intellectual property rights, in the case of an infringement claim made by a third party, we may be
required to defend such claims at our own cost and liability and may need to indemnify and hold harmless
our customers. Furthermore, necessary licenses may not be available to us on satisfactory terms, if at all. In
addition, we may decide to settle a claim or action against us, which settlement could be costly. We may also
be liable for any past infringement that we are not aware of. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

We could be adversely affected if we fail to keep pace with technical and technological developments in the
construction industry.

Our recent experience indicates that clients are increasingly developing larger, more technically complex
projects in the industrial, institutional, residential and other commercial sectors. To meet our clients’ needs,
we need to continuously update existing technology and equipment for our construction services. In addition,
rapid and frequent technology and market demand changes can often render existing technologies and
equipment obsolete, requiring substantial new capital expenditures and/or write downs of assets. Our failure
to anticipate or respond adequately to changing technical, market demands and/or client requirements could
adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Our future success will depend in part on our ability to respond to technological advances and emerging
industry standards and practices on a cost-effective and timely basis. The construction industry is evolving
with new technologies such as Building Information Modelling (BIM), automation and sustainable building
practices. The cost of upgrading and implementing new technologies, upgrading our existing equipment or
expanding our capacity could be significant. Our failure to anticipate or respond adequately to changing
technical, technological and market demands and/or client requirements can put us at a competitive
disadvantage and, as a result, could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results
of operations.

We are exposed to risks stemming from malfunctions, disruptions or breaches of our information
technology systems.

We rely on our information technology (“IT”) systems and infrastructure to help manage our operations.
Although our use of IT is intended to increase productivity and operating efficiencies, it may not yield
intended results. We may also be required to invest in other technological upgrades or deploy newer
technologies to remain competitive. Any new systems, infrastructure and technologies in which we may
invest may not perform satisfactorily, or be used effectively, and we may also fail to adapt our technology
platforms to reflect our increased size and scale, requirements or emerging trends and industry standards.

Our IT systems are potentially vulnerable to damage or interruption from a variety of sources, which could
result from (among other causes) cyber-attacks on or failures of such infrastructure or compromises to its
physical security, as well as from damaging weather or other acts of nature. If our IT systems malfunction or
experience extended periods of down time, we will not be able to run our operations safely or efficiently.
Moreover, due to our increasing reliance on digital tools and data, a large-scale IT malfunction may disrupt
our business or expose us to cybersecurity risks, including data breaches and the disclosure of sensitive
information. We may suffer losses in revenue, reputation and volume of business and our financial condition
and results of operation may be materially and adversely affected as a result of any such malfunctions or
disruptions. While we have not faced significant disruptions in our IT systems in past, any such malfunction
or disruptions in future could cause economic losses for which we could be held liable or cause damage to
our reputation. Any of these developments, alone or in combination, could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Further, unavailability of, or failure to retain, well trained employees capable of constantly servicing our IT
systems may lead to inefficiency or disruption of IT system thereby adversely affecting our ability to operate
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efficiently. If we do not effectively manage our growth and appropriately expand and upgrade our systems
and platforms, as appropriate, in a timely manner and at a reasonable cost, we may lose market opportunities,
increase our costs and lead to us being less competitive in terms of our prices or quality of services we render.
Any delays in completing or an inability to successfully complete these technology initiatives, or an inability
to achieve the anticipated efficiencies, may affect our result of operations and financial condition.

We have incurred indebtedness, and an inability to comply with repayment and other covenants in our
financing agreements could adversely affect our business and financial condition.

As at December 31, 2024, we had aggregate outstanding borrowings (including current borrowings and non-
current borrowings) of %1,379.69 million. The table below sets forth certain information on our total
borrowings, debt to equity ratio, finance cost and interest coverage ratio as at the dates indicated:

Particulars As at December As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
31, 2024 2024 2023 2022

Total Borrowings 1,379.69 1,244.78 969.95 707.55
(1) (% in million)
Debt to equity 1.38 1.60 1.40 1.23
ratio @
Finance Costs (R in 153.53 224.80 126.86 137.18
million)
Debt service 0.26 0.32 0.20 0.32
coverage ratio ®

@ Total borrowing is calculated as the sum of current and non-current borrowings.

@) Debt-Equity Ratio is calculated as Total Debt divided by total equity. Total Debt is calculated as the sum of (i) non-
current borrowings and (ii) current borrowings (including the current maturities of non-current borrowings).

) Debt service coverage ratio is calculated as EBITDA divided by total of interest and principal payments.

As at December 31, 2024, we had total secured borrowings (current and non-current borrowings) of ¥1,958.67
million. For further details, please see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 490, “Restated Consolidated
Financial Information — Note 22— Non-Current Borrowings” on page 351 and “Restated Consolidated
Financial Information — Note 27— Current Borrowings” on page 351. In the event we fail to service our debt
obligations, our lenders have the right to enforce the security in respect of our secured borrowings and dispose
of our assets to recover the amounts due from us. Any such shut down of our offices would adversely affect our
business, results operations and financial condition.

Furthermore, our loan agreements with our lenders also contain certain negative covenants, including but not
limited to, effecting any change in ownership, control, constitution and operating structure capital structure
or shareholding pattern and/or management of our Company, any amendment in the constitutional documents,
and restrictions on fund raising. Although we have not defaulted on our financial obligations and have been in
compliance with covenants in the past, we cannot assure you that we will be able to comply with all such
financial obligations and covenants in the future.

Any failure on our part to comply with these terms in our financing agreements including the security
agreements would generally result in events of default under these financing agreements. In such a case, the
lenders under each of these respective loan agreements may, at their discretion, accelerate payment and declare
the entire outstanding amounts under these loans due and payable, and in certain instances, enforce their security
which has been constituted.

We could incur losses under our projects and contracts with our clients or be subjected to disputes or
contractual penalties as a result of delays in delivery or failures to meet contract specifications or stipulated
project timelines which may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

We could incur losses under our projects and contracts with our clients or be subjected to disputes or
contractual penalties as a result of delays in delivery or failures to meet contract specifications or stipulated
project timelines. In the past, there have been instances of project delays, due to which we have been required
to re-negotiate some of the terms, such as the construction of the Faculty Housing and Hostel at IIM Udaipur,
due to a delay in meeting certain project timelines (owing to a combination of internal as well as external
factors beyond our control). For example, in Fiscal 2022, we were required to pay to the Central Public Works
Department, % 0.73 million as a penalty under the terms of our project contract, for time delay in completing
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the construction of the Faculty Housing and Hostel at IIM Udaipur. There can be no assurance that our clients
in the future will not rescind their contracts with us or invoke penalty clauses if there is a delay in a project
beyond the time stipulated in the contract or we may need to renegotiate some of our client contracts. This
may have an impact on our reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition. Further, payment of damages and renegotiation of terms of project
contracts could also have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our revenues from our projects are difficult to predict and are subject to seasonal variations. This may
restrict our ability to carry on activities related to our projects and fully utilise our resources.

Our business operations may be adversely affected by severe weather, which may require us to evacuate
personnel or curtail services, may result in damage to a portion of our fleet of equipment or facilities resulting
in the suspension of operations, and may prevent us from delivering materials to our project sites in
accordance with contract schedules or generally reduce our productivity. Our operations may also be
adversely affected by difficult working conditions and extremely high temperatures during summer months
and during the monsoon season, each of which may restrict our ability to carry on construction activities and
fully utilize our resources. These factors may make it difficult for us to prepare accurate internal financial
forecasts. In addition, since we record revenues using the percentage of completion method and revenues are
not recognized until there is reasonable progress on a contract, revenues recorded in the first half of our
financial year between April and September are traditionally less compared to revenues recorded during the
second half of our financial year. As a result, our revenues and profits may vary significantly during different
financial periods, and certain periods are not indicative of our financial position for the year.

There are outstanding legal proceedings against our Company, Promoters, and certain of our Directors.
Any adverse decision in such proceedings may render us/them liable to liabilities/penalties and may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Certain legal proceedings involving our Company are pending at different levels of adjudication before
various courts, tribunals and authorities. In the event of adverse rulings in these proceedings or consequent
levy of penalties, we may need to make payments or make provisions for future payments and which may
increase expenses and current or contingent liabilities.

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, as disclosed in “Qutstanding
Litigation and Material Developments” on page 493 in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as at the date
of this Red Herring Prospectus is provided below:

Name of Criminal Tax Statutory Disciplinary Material Aggregate
the Proceedings | Proceedings or actions by the Civil Amount
Entity Regulatory | SEBI or Stock | Litigations | Involved (R
Proceeding Exchanges in million)
against our
Promoter

Company
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil 5 1,337.80
Company
Against " 4% Nil Nil 1 170.86
our
Company
Directors (other than Promoters)
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
Against Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
our
Directors
Promoters
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Promoter
Against Nil Nil Nil Nil 2 3.03
our
Promoter
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#In accordance with the Materiality Policy
“Not ascertained at this stage
*Tax proceedings against the Company cover actions by regulatory and statutory authorities against the Company.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding litigation proceedings involving our
Group Company which may have a material impact on our Company as on the date of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

For further information, please see “Qutstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on page 493.

We cannot assure you that any of the outstanding litigation matters will be settled in our favour, or that no
(additional) liability will arise out of these proceedings. We are in the process of litigating these matters.
Further, such proceedings could divert management time and attention, and consume financial resources in
their defence. In addition to the foregoing, we could also be adversely affected by complaints, claims or legal
actions brought by persons, before various forums such as courts, tribunals, consumer forums or sector-
specific or other regulatory authorities in the ordinary course or otherwise, in relation to our products, our
technology, our branding or our policies or any other acts/omissions. Further, we may be subject to legal
action by our employees and/or ex-employees in relation to alleged grievances such as termination of their
employment with us. There can be no assurance that such complaints or claims will not result in
investigations, enquiries or legal actions by any courts, tribunals or regulatory authorities against us.

Various licenses and approvals are to be obtained by us and/or our clients for undertaking our business
and our construction activities, and the failure to obtain, retain and renew such licenses or approvals in a
timely manner, or at all, may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our business operations are subject to various laws, the compliance of which is supervised by multiple
regulatory authorities and government bodies in India. In order to conduct our business, we are required to
obtain multiple licenses, approvals, permits and consents. In some cases, our clients may also be required to
obtain licenses and approvals for the projects. For further information, please see “Government and Other
Approvals” on page 501. Additionally, our government approvals and licenses are subject to numerous
conditions, some of which are onerous including making an application for amending the existing approval.
If we are unable to comply with any or all of their applicable terms and conditions or seek waivers or
extensions of time for complying with such terms and conditions, our operations may be interrupted and
penalties may be imposed on us by the relevant authorities.

Although no proceedings have been initiated against us where a license or approval was not renewed during
the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 or Fiscal 2022, we may need to
apply for more approvals in the future including renewal of approvals that may expire from time to time. If
we fail to obtain, maintain and renew any of such approvals or licenses, in a timely manner or at all, the
projects for which such licenses are required and our business may be adversely affected. Furthermore, in our
construction business, government delays in obtaining approvals may result in cost increases in the price of
construction materials from original estimates which cannot generally be passed on to clients and may also
adversely affect our ability to mobilize our equipment and manpower. There can be no assurance that the
relevant authorities will issue these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof in a timely manner, or at all.
Our government approvals, licenses, clearances and consents are often also subject to numerous conditions,
some of which are onerous and require substantial expenditure. If we fail to comply, or a regulator claims we
have not complied, with these conditions, our business, financial conditions and results of operations would
be materially adversely affected.

After the completion of the Issue, our Promoters will continue to collectively hold substantial shareholding
in our Company.

Currently, our Promoters own an aggregate of 88.14% of our issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share
capital. Following the completion of the Issue, our Promoters will continue to hold approximately [®]% of
our post-Issue Equity Share capital. For details of their shareholding pre and post-Issue, please see “Capital
Structure” on page 130. By virtue of their shareholding, our Promoters will have the ability to exercise
significant control over the outcome of the matters submitted to our shareholders for approval, including the
appointment of Directors, the timing and payment of dividends, the adoption of and amendments to our
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the approval of a merger or sale of substantially all of our assets
and the approval of most other actions requiring the approval of our shareholders. The interests of our
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Promoters in their capacity as our Shareholders could be different from the interests of our other shareholders.
Any such conflict may adversely affect our ability to execute our business strategy or to operate our business.

Any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds would be subject to certain compliance requirements,
including prior shareholders’ approval.

Our proposed objects of the Issue are set forth under “Objects of the Issue” on page 148. At this stage, we
cannot determine with any certainty if we would require the Net Proceeds to meet any other expenditure or
fund any exigencies arising out of competitive environment, business conditions, economic conditions or
other factors beyond our control. In accordance with Sections 13(8) and 27 of the Companies Act 2013, we
cannot undertake any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds without obtaining the shareholders’
approval through a special resolution. Further, any variation in terms of change in objects or period of
deployment shall be considered as variation in utilisation of Net Proceeds. In the event of any such
circumstances that require us to undertake variation in the disclosed utilisation of the Net Proceeds, we may
not be able to obtain the shareholders’ approval in a timely manner, or at all. Any delay or inability in
obtaining such shareholders’ approval may adversely affect our business or operations.

Further, our Promoters would be required to provide an exit opportunity to Shareholders who do not agree
with our proposal to change the objects of the Issue or vary the terms of such contracts, at a price and manner
as prescribed by SEBI. Additionally, the requirement on Promoters to provide an exit opportunity to such
dissenting shareholders may deter our Promoters from agreeing to the variation of the proposed utilisation of
the Net Proceeds, even if such variation is in the interest of our Company. Further, we cannot assure you that
the Promoters or the controlling shareholders of our Company will have adequate resources at their disposal
at all times to enable them to provide an exit opportunity at the price prescribed by SEBI. In light of these
factors, we may not be able to undertake variation of objects of the Issue to use any unutilized proceeds of
the Issue, if any, or vary the terms of any contract referred to in this Red Herring Prospectus, even if such
variation is in the interest of our Company. This may restrict our Company’s ability to respond to any change
in our business or financial condition by re-deploying the unutilised portion of Net Proceeds, if any, or
varying the terms of contract, which may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Further, we will appoint a monitoring agency for monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of the Issue in
accordance with Regulation 41 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the monitoring agency will submit its
report to us on a quarterly basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Our funding requirements and the proposed deployment of Net Proceeds have not been appraised by any
bank or financial institution or any other independent agency and our management will have broad
discretion over the use of the Net Proceeds.

We intend to utilize the Net Proceeds of the Issue as set forth in “Objects of the Issue” on page 148. The
funding requirements mentioned as a part of the objects of the Issue are based on internal management
estimates, and have not been appraised by any bank or financial institution. This is based on current conditions
and is subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances, costs, business initiatives, other
financial conditions or business strategies. Various risks and uncertainties, including those set forth in this
section, may limit or delay our efforts to use the Net Proceeds to achieve profitable growth in our business.

Accordingly, use of the Net Proceeds for other purposes identified by our management may not result in
actual growth of our business, increased profitability or an increase in the value of our business and your
investment. If we are unable to deploy the Net Proceeds in a timely or an efficient manner, it may affect our
business and the results of operations.

The objects of the Issue include orders for equipment. We intend to utilise the Net Proceeds for funding
our capital expenditure requirements, for which we have received quotations from various vendors.
However, we have not yet placed orders or entered into any definitive agreements with any of the vendors,
and have relied on the quotations received from the vendors.

We propose to utilise our I142.55 million as capital expenditure towards purchase of construction
equipment/machineries. For further information, please see “Objects of the Issue” on page 148. We have not
entered into any definitive agreements with any of the vendors, and have relied on the quotations received
from vendors. Further, such total estimated cost and related fund requirements have not been appraised by
any bank or financial institution or any other independent agency. While we have obtained the quotations
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from various vendors in relation to such capital expenditure, most of these quotations are valid for a certain
period of time and may be subject to revisions, and other commercial and technical factors. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to undertake such capital expenditure within the cost indicated by such quotations,
that there will not be cost escalations and that we would be able to procure such equipment in a timely manner,
or that we will complete our expansion works within the estimated timelines, and if not, obtain extensions for
the quotations at reasonable cost to us, if at all. There is no assurance that we would be able to source such
upgradation in a timely manner or at commercially acceptable prices, which could adversely affect our
expansion plans and consequently, our business and results of operations.

Any downgrade of our credit ratings could adversely affect our business.

As of the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we have procured the following credit ratings on our debt and
credit facilities from Infomerics Valuation and Rating Private Limited:

Instrument or Rating Type % in million Date Ratings
Long Term Bank Facilities 260.00 | November 14, 2024 IVE BBB/Stable
Short Term Bank Facilities 840.00 November 14, 2024 IVR A3+
Total 1,100.00

Further, since the JVs forming part of the Restated Consolidated Financial Information of our Company have
not taken any loans from banks/ financial institutions, no credit ratings have been obtained for them.

These ratings assess our overall financial capacity to pay our obligations and are reflective of our ability to
meet financial commitments as they become due. Further, there can be no assurance that these ratings will
not be revised or changed by the above rating agencies due to various factors. Any downgrade, withdrawal
or rejection (nonacceptance) in our credit ratings may increase interest rates for refinancing our outstanding
debt, which would increase our financing costs, and adversely affect our future issuances of debt and our
ability to raise new capital on a competitive basis.

In addition, any downgrade in our credit ratings could increase the probability that our lenders impose
additional terms and conditions to any financing or refinancing arrangements we enter into in the future and
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Any such adverse development
may adversely affect our business operations, future financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

Our employees may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, including noncompliance with
regulatory standards and requirements.

We are exposed to the risk of employee fraud or other misconduct. Misconduct by employees could include
inventory loss and intentional failures to comply with any regulations applicable to us, to provide accurate
information to regulatory authorities, or to report financial information or data accurately or disclose
unauthorized activities to us. There can be no assurance that we will be able to identify and deter such
misconduct, and the precautions we take to detect and prevent this activity may not be effective in controlling
unknown or unmanaged risk. Although we have had no material incidents of employee misconduct during
the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2023 or Fiscal 2022, if our employees
engage in any such future misconduct, we could face criminal penalties, fines, revocation of regulatory
approvals and harm to our reputation, any of which could form a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

If we are unable to establish and maintain an effective internal controls and compliance system, our
business and reputation could be adversely affected.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal measures commensurate with the size
and complexity of operations. We periodically test and update our internal processes and systems and there
have been no past material instances of failure to maintain effective internal controls and compliance system.
However, we are exposed to operational risks arising from the potential inadequacy or failure of internal
processes or systems, and our actions may not be sufficient to ensure effective internal checks and balances
in all circumstances.

We take reasonable steps to maintain appropriate procedures for compliance and disclosure and to maintain
effective internal controls over our financial reporting so that we produce reliable financial reports and prevent
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financial fraud. As risks evolve and develop, internal controls must be reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Maintaining such internal controls requires human diligence and compliance and is therefore subject to lapses
in judgment and failures that result from human error.

Further, our operations are subject to anti-corruption laws and regulations. These laws generally prohibit us
and our employees and intermediaries from bribing, being bribed or making other prohibited payments to
government officials or other persons to obtain or retain business or gain some other business advantage. We
participate in collaborations and relationships with third parties whose actions could potentially subject us to
liability under these laws or other local anti-corruption laws. While our code of conduct requires our
employees and intermediaries to comply with all applicable laws, and we continue to enhance our policies
and procedures in an effort to ensure compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws and regulations, these
measures may not prevent the breach of such anti-corruption laws, as there are risks of such breaches in
emerging markets, such as India. There have been no instances of non-compliance in the past as regards anti-
corruption laws and regulations. However, if we are not in compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws,
we may be subject to criminal and civil penalties, disgorgement and other sanctions and remedial measures,
and legal expenses, which could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial
condition. Likewise, any investigation of any potential violations of anti-corruption laws by the relevant
authorities could also have an adverse impact on our business and reputation.

Certain sections of this Red Herring Prospectus contain information from the D&B Report which we
commissioned and purchased and any reliance on such information for making an investment decision in
the Issue is subject to inherent risks.

Certain sections of this Red Herring Prospectus include information based on, or derived from, the D&B
Report prepared by Dun & Bradstreet, which is not related to our Company, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel or Senior Management. We commissioned and paid for this report for the purpose of confirming
our understanding of the industry in connection with the Issue. We officially engaged Dun & Bradstreet in
connection with the preparation of the D&B Report pursuant to an engagement letter dated May 4, 2024, All
such information in this Red Herring Prospectus indicates the D&B Report as its source. Accordingly, any
information in this Red Herring Prospectus derived from, or based on, the D&B Report should be read taking
into consideration the foregoing.

Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates and may no
longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and publications may also base their information
on estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. Industry sources do not
guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the data. Further, the D&B Report is not a
recommendation to invest / disinvest in any company covered in the D&B Report. Accordingly, prospective
investors should not place undue reliance on, for base their investment decision solely on this information.

In view of the foregoing, you may not be able to seek legal recourse for any losses resulting from undertaking
any investment in the Issue pursuant to reliance on the information in this Red Herring Prospectus based on,
or derived from, the D&B Report. You should consult your own advisors and undertake an independent
assessment of information in this Red Herring Prospectus based on, or derived from, the D&B Report before
making any investment decision regarding the Issue. Please see “Industry Overview” on page 181. For the
disclaimers associated with the D&B Report, please see “Certain Conventions, Presentation of Financial,
Industry and Market Data and Currency of Presentation — Industry and Market Data” on page 22.

We have in this Red Herring Prospectus included certain Non-GAAP Measures that may vary from any
standard methodology that is applicable across the construction industry and may not be comparable with
financial information of similar nomenclature computed and presented by other companies.

Certain Non-GAAP Measures relating to our operations have been included in this Red Herring Prospectus.
For more information on the key performance indicators and non-GAAP financial measures used in this Red
Herring Prospectus, please see “Certain Conventions, Use of Financial Information and Market Data and
Currency of Presentation — Non-GAAP financial measures”, on page 22. We compute and disclose such
Non-GAAP Measures as we consider such information to be useful measures of our business and financial
performance, and because such measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors and others to
evaluate the operational performance of construction companies, many of which provide such Non-GAAP
Measures and other industry related statistical and operational information. Such supplemental financial and
operational information is therefore of limited utility as an analytical tool, and investors are cautioned against
considering such information either in isolation or as a substitute for an analysis of our audited and restated
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consolidated financial statements as reported under applicable accounting standards disclosed elsewhere in
this Red Herring Prospectus. These Non-GAAP Measures and such other industry related statistical and other
information relating to our operations and financial performance may not be computed on the basis of any
standard methodology that is applicable across the industry and are not measures of operating performance
or liquidity defined by generally accepted accounting principles, and therefore may not be comparable to
financial measures and industry related statistical information of similar nomenclature that may be computed
and presented by other EPC companies.

Long delays in the completion of our projects or cost overruns in the past could have an adverse effect
on our cash flows, business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our projects are required to be completed no later than the scheduled completion dates specified under the
specific project contract, or by the end of the extension period, if any, that may be granted to us. We are also
required to furnish bank guarantee and performance security for completion of the construction of our projects
within a specified timeframe. The client may also be entitled to terminate the project contract in the event of
delay in completion of the work if the delay is not on account of any of the agreed exceptions and deny
payment on account of escalation. Moreover, certain factors beyond our control may postpone and delay a
project, these factors include delays or failure to obtain necessary permits, authorizations, permissions, etc.
Our Company’s management considers delays in completion of projects beyond two years as long delays.
There have been no instances on long delays in the last 3 Fiscals and the nine months period ended December
31, 2024. However, in such an event of a delay including long delays in any of our ongoing or future projects,
we may only receive partial payments under such agreements and such payments may be less than our
estimated cash flows from such projects. Further, we may not be able to obtain extensions for projects on
which we face delays or time overruns could have an adverse effect on our cash flows, business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our Company’s growth rate may not be in line with the growth rate of our industry or our peers, which
could impact our competitive position and financial performance.

Various factors, including macroeconomic conditions, industry-specific developments, regulatory changes,
competitive pressures, and internal business strategies, may influence our growth trajectory. The details of
revenue from operations of our Company and that of our peers is as under:

Name of Companies FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 | CAGR Growth

PSP Projects Limited 17,480.63 19,378.06 | 25,057.89 19.7%

Ahluwalia Contracts India Limited 26,924.69 28,383.93 | 38,552.98 19.7%

B. L. Kashyap and Sons Limited 11,575.12 11,099.76 12,445.34 3.7%

Capacit’e Infraprojects Limited 13,398.28 17,985.87 19,316.38 20.1%

Ceigall India Limited 11,337.88 20,681.68 | 30,293.52 63.5%

Globe Civil Projects Limited 2,857.09 2,333.45 3,321.62 7.8%

Source: Audited financials of the respective companies

63.

Amongst peer companies considered for analysis excluding B. L. Kashyap and Sons Ltd., our Company’s
revenue growth during FY 2022-24 measured significantly low in single digit (7.8% CAGR) compared to
peer companies as well as broader financial performance of larger sample set considered. Ceigall India
Limited and B. L. Kashyap and Sons Ltd were the outliers with revenue growth measuring 63.7% and 3.7%
during FY 2022-24, respectively, while the three other peer companies recorded nearly 20% CAGR growth
during the period FY 2022-24. Considering the financial performance of broader industry players (24
companies), the consolidated sales of 24 large sample companies recorded a CAGR of 15.2%. Also, our
Company’s revenue has increased at relatively lower rate when compared with the broader construction
sector.

The Gross Value added by the construction sector (an indicator considered to reflect industry performance)
has increased at CAGR of 10.4% CAGR between FY 2022-24 while the Company’s revenue grew at CAGR
of 7.8%. While we continuously strive to enhance our operations and market position, there can be no
assurance that our growth will match or exceed that of our industry or comparable peers.

We have issued bonus shares in the past i.e., on July 20, 2024. However, there can no certainty on any
bonus issuances in the future.
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Our Company has issued bonus shares to the following persons in the one year preceding the date of this Red
Herring Prospectus as under:

Names of | Date of | Reason/ Number of | Face value | Issue price | Form of | Whether
allottees allotment Nature of Equity per per Equity | consideration | the
of Equity | allotment Shares Equity Share (in allottees
Shares allotted Share ) are
(in ) Promoters /
members of
the
Promoter
Group
Allotment of | July 20, Bonus issue 40,431,472 10 Nil | Not Yes, Ved
5,434,032 2024 in the ratio applicable Prakash
Equity of Khurana,
Shares to Ved sixteen (16) Nipun
Prakash Equity Khurana,
Khurana, Shares for Vipul
15,101,840 every one Khurana are
Equity (1) our
Shares to Equity Promoters
Vipul Share and Vimal
Khurana, held Khurana is a
15,101,840 member of
Equity our
Shares to Promoter
Nipun Group.

Khurana, 160
Equity Shares
to

Vimal
Khurana,
1,188,000
Equity
Shares to
Indubala
Mukeshchand
Jain,
1,188,000
Equity
Shares to
Palak
Mukesh Jain,
1,584,000
Equity
Shares to
Mukesh
Chand Jain,
500,000
Equity

Shares to
Chanakya
Opportunities
Fund

I, 166,880
Equity

Shares to
RPV
Holdings
Private
Limited,
83,360
Equity Shares
to

Raj
Trust*

Family
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and 83,360
Equity

Shares to
Harsh
Pareshkumar
Shah
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Our Company has complied with the conditions prescribed under section 63 of the Companies Act as regards
issuance of bonus shares. However, there can be no assurance that our Company will have sufficient reserves
for issuance of bonus shares in future.

Our construction projects are subject to factors/ challenges that can influence our costs. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to fully anticipate or mitigate all cost-related risks, and any adverse
effect on project costs could materially impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Execution of our construction projects involve certain challenges, including as under:

(i) Delay in project execution: Major impediments can be attributed to procedural formalities in land
acquisition, obtaining environment, foreign and wildlife clearances, clearance from Railways (for over
bridge and under bridge construction) and delays in financial closure. There are numerous government
agencies involved from which clearances/approvals/permissions are required to be obtained before the
utilities can be shifted or relocated. This takes a great deal of time. There are cumbersome procedures
involved and sometimes the relevant laws and regulations are also not very clear.

(ii) Budget constraint of the developer: Infrastructure projects typically have long gestation period and
with high breakeven period. Multiple construction projects in India have been facing approval and
execution delays leading to cost and time over runs. These delays have pushed breakeven period even
further affecting the revenue visibility from infra projects. On same times, with high outstanding
borrowing and declining revenue has been denting players profitability, which in many cases has
translated into surging losses too.

(iii) Complex legal and regulatory framework: Infrastructure projects in India face significant challenges
due to a complex web of approvals and regulatory requirements spanning from pre-tendering to post-
construction. Political and regulatory risks, such as unpredictable policy changes, delays in approvals,
and potential governmental noncompliance with financial commitments, can impede project progress
and deter private investment. Additionally, the legal and regulatory environment for urban development
is marked by restrictive land use policies, poorly structured public-private partnerships, and fragmented
responsibilities among various agencies, which discourages private capital and complicates project
execution and urban development.

Addressing these factors requires project planning, risk management, and monitoring during project
execution. While we employ cost estimation practices, provisions and risk mitigation strategies, certain
factors may remain beyond our control. Unforeseen developments during the project lifecycle, such as
changes in regulations, unexpected technical issues, or fluctuations in material costs, could lead to cost
variations and financial implications. During the bidding process, when preparing costs estimates for tenders,
we generally take into account provisions or contingencies including provision for anticipated increase in
material costs. Additionally, in many cases, tenders awarded by government entities also include price
escalation clauses that allow for adjustments in the contract value to account for any increase in raw material
costs. In the last three (3) financial years and the nine months period ended December 31, 2024, we have not
witnessed any significant financial impact due to the aforementioned factors. However, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to fully anticipate or mitigate all cost related risks, and any adverse effect on
project costs could materially impact our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

A significant portion of the projects executed by us are in the Social & Commercial Infrastructure
segment, more particularly construction of educational institutions. Focus on the Social & Commercial
Infrastructure segment may expose us to risks associated with business concentration and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operation.
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We derive a significant portion of our revenue from the execution of projects in the Social & Commercial
Infrastructure segment, more particularly in the construction of educational institutions (“Educational
Institutions Space”).

The break-up of project type revenues for last three (3) financial years and nine months period ended
December 31, 2024 are as under:

For the nine months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
period ended Fiscal 2022
December 31, 2024
%
Business contrib o o o
Vertical Revenu ution to Revenu % Revenu Y% Revenu %
e e contribution to e contribution to e contribution to
. revenue . . .
Rin from Rin revenue from Rin revenue from Rin revenue from
million) . million) operations million) operations million) operations
operatio
ns
Infrastructure
Logistics & Transportation
Railway
terminals 239.79 942 294.15 8.86 60.43 2.59 - -
infrastructure
Roads &
. 0.66 0.03 155.06 4.67 447.08 19.16 915.81 32.05
bridges
Social & Commercial Infrastructure
Education 1,577.60 61.95 | 1,564.22 47.09 | 927.48 39.75 | 1,397.25 48.90
Institutions
Hospitals 73.14 287 | 22644 6.82 | 396.47 16.99 71.49 2.50
(capital stock)
Sports 152.87 6.00 | 22832 6.87 - - - -
Infrastructure
Non-Infrastructure
Housing 253.00 9.94 83.04 2.50 115.78 4.96 141.81 4.96
Office and 169.67 6.66 | 381.43 11.48 38.03 1.63 9.80 0.34
others
Othe.r— 79.84 3.14 388.95 11.71 348.18 14.92 320.92 11.23
trading
Total 2,546.57 100.00 | 3,321.62 100.00 | 2,333.45 100.00 | 2,857.09 100.00

The details of contracts received for projects in Educational Institutions sector from where majority revenue
of issuer is generated is as under:

(% in millions)

Particulars g‘;z:::fb‘;ir“;l’:‘;(‘)‘;gs period ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

Education Institutions Amount % | Amount % | Amount % | Amount %
_CPWD 5.85 0.37% 223.95 14.32% 591.58 63.78% | 1,243.42 88.99%
- Government 1,367.61 86.69% | 1,109.64 70.94% 213.83 23.06% 71.20 5.10%
- Non-Government 204.15 12.94% 230.63 14.74% 122.07 13.16% 82.63 591%
Total 1,577.60 100.00% | 1,564.22 | 100.00% 927.48 | 100.00% | 1,397.25 | 100.00%

The details of budget allocation received for projects in Educational Institutions sector from where majority
revenue of issuer is generated is as under:

From Fiscal 2021 to Fiscal 2026, the Union budget has significantly ramped up its allocation toward education
sector. Education has been allocated a record capital expenditure (Capex) of 31,286 Bn for the financial year
2025-26, which has been increased by 12.80% over the Union Budget 2024-25 Revised estimates. The
allocation of 3200 Bn is to implement private sector driven Research, Development and Innovation. A total
of T5 bn has been allocated for the Centre of Excellence in Artificial Intelligence, and X1 crore has been

preserved for ‘Gyan Bharatam Mission’.

For the financial year 2025-26, Ministry of Education has outlined a comprehensive capital expenditure
(Capex) plan with specific allocations for various activities:
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Category Allocation (X in Bn) Description

Establishment Expenditure of the
Centre Institutions Abroad, Central Institute of Indian

Expenditure of the Centre Secretariat,
Directorate of Adult Education, Educational

Languages (CIIL), and others.

Central Sector Schemes/ Projects 56

Central Sector Schemes/Projects: Pradhan
Mantri Innovative Learning Programme
(DHRUYV), Merit Scholarship Scheme, Digital
India E-learning.

Central Sector Expenditure (IITs,
[IMs, and others)

Autonomous Bodies: 1ITs, IIMs, IIITs,
Kendriya Vidyalaya Sangathan (KVS),
582 Navodaya Vidyalaya Samiti (NVS), National
Council of Educational Research and Training
(NCERT), and other autonomous bodies.

Centrally Sponsored Schemes 645

Samagra Shiksha, Pradhan Mantri Poshan
Shakti Nirman (PM POSHAN), PM Schools
for Rising India (PM SHRI), and other
Centrally Sponsored Schemes.

66.

However, it is important to note that there is a risk that the government might not spend the allocated amounts
as planned. Factors such as budget reallocations, administrative delays, and unforeseen economic conditions
could impact the actual expenditure. This potential under-spending could affect the anticipated benefits and
progress in the education sector.

We have historically focused on bidding for projects in the Educational Institutions Space. The concentration
of our business in the said space exposes us to various risks, including but not limited to, the slowdown in
construction activities or reduction in such projects; vulnerability to change in laws, policies and regulations.
Furthermore, existing and potential competitors to our business in the Educational Institutions Space may
increase their focus on these projects, which could reduce our market share. While we strive to diversify our
project portfolio and reduce our concentration risk, we cannot assure you that adverse developments
associated with the segment will not impact on our business. If we are unable to mitigate the concentration
risk, we may not be able to develop our business as planned and our business, financial condition and results
of operation could be adversely affected.

There are certain outstanding material litigations involving our Company, which, if determined
adversely, may affect our business operations and reputation.

There are certain outstanding material litigations filed by our Company, wherein the aggregate amount
involved is ¥1,337.80 million. These legal proceedings are pending at different stages before various courts,
tribunals and forums. The outcome of these legal proceedings is uncertain and could lead to adverse orders
against our Company. A brief description about the cases filed by our Company is included as under:

1.  Globe Civil Projects Private Limited (“Petitioner”/ “Company”) vs. Union of India, Ministry of
Finance (“Respondent 1), Union of India (Superintending Engineer, AIIMS Rishikesh, Ministry
of Health and Family Welfare (“Respondent 2”) and Union of India, Ministry of Commerce
(“Respondent 3”) (collectively referred to as “Respondents”) Pending Before the High Court of
Delhi, New Delhi, W.P. (C) 16629/ 2023

Respondent 2 issued a Notice inviting Tender bearing Tender No. MOHFW/PMSSY/ INMC Aligarh
HLL/ID/2011 for construction of new emergency and trauma centre, OPD and OBG Blocks at Jawahar
Lal Nehru Medical College, Aligarh Muslim University, Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh (“Project”) amounting to
2679.66 million. Our Company was awarded the said Project. Certain disputes and differences arose
between the Petitioner and Respondent 2, after completion of the Project on March 31, 2016, which
culminated into arbitration proceedings and an Award in favour of the Petitioner dated February 28, 2022
(“Award”) amounting to ¥144.20 million. The said Award was then corrected due to a typographical error
on April 13, 2022 (“Corrected Award”). Thereafter, Respondent 1 issued the Office memorandum dated
May 29, 2023 with the subject “Vivad Se Vishwas-II (Contractual Disputes)” (“Scheme”) to clear backlog
of old litigation cases/ to effectively settle pending disputes. Respondent 3 was entrusted with the
responsibility of implementation of the Scheme. The Scheme was subject to fulfilment of certain
conditions. It is pertinent to note that since the Petitioner fulfilled all the eligibility conditions under the
Scheme, it filed an application for payment of 95% of the Corrected Award calculated in terms of the
Scheme. The Petitioner claimed I83.60 million being 95% of the principal amount awarded along with
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interest at the rate of 9% per annum, aggregating to ¥129.44 million (“Settlement Amount”). However,
Respondent 2 failed to evaluate the Settlement Amount due and offer it to the Petitioner for acceptance,
within two weeks of receipt of claims, on the portal of Respondent 3. Due to inaction on Respondent 2’s
part, the Petitioner issued a letter to the project management consultant of Respondent 2 to process the
application pertaining to the Settlement Amount. Thus, being aggrieved by inaction on Respondent 2’s
part, our Company filed the present petition, which included certain prayers including payment of the
Settlement Amount by Respondent 2. The matter is pending.

2. Globe Civil Projects Private Limited (“Petitioner”/ “Company”) vs. Union of India
(“Respondent”) before the High Court of Delhi, New Delhi, O.M.P. (COMM) 15/2024

Our Company was awarded a tender/ work for construction of Office Building for NCTE at Dwarka, New
Delhi, amounting to ¥284.14 million (“Project”). Thereafter, our Company furnished performance bank
guarantee to the tune of 18.65 million on March 30, 2015. Since inception, the Project was delayed on
account of reasons attributable solely to the Respondent. While the stipulated time period for completion
of the Project was 540 days, there was a delay of 548 days (it is to be noted that extension of time was
granted without levy of compensation). Certain disputes arose between the Petitioner and the Respondent
on certain issues i.e., lesser rates being paid for extra items, non-payment of incentive, extra expenses
incurred on account of extension of contract. Therefore, for adjudication of the said disputes, arbitration
proceedings were invoked by the Petitioner. The Petitioner stated/ submitted that it has claims amounting
to 56 million from the Respondent. However, the Ld. Sole Arbitrator, Sudhir Kumar Chawla vide Award
dated September 1, 2023 directed the Respondent to pay a sum of 35.91 million (“Impugned Award”).
Aggrieved by the said Impugned Award, the Petitioner filed the petition under section 34 of the Arbitration
Act before the High Court of Delhi, New Delhi. Per the Petitioner, the said Impugned Award is without
reasons. The matter is currently pending.

3. Globe Civil Projects Private Limited (“Claimant”/ “Company”) vs. Government of NCT of Delhi
(“Respondent™)

The Respondent invited a Tender for “Construction of 200 Bedded Hospital at Kaushik Enclave, Burari,
Delhi” on November 27, 2012 (“Project”). Our Company submitted its bid on November 30, 2012 and
emerged as the successful bidder for the Project, for the tendered amount of *951.54 million. The Project
commenced on February 7, 2013 and was due for completion on August 6,2015. However, due to breaches
solely attributable to the Respondent, there was a delay of 2,171 days in completing the Project. The work
was completed on July 16, 2021 to the satisfaction of the Respondent. The site was handed over to the
Respondent on April 25, 2022. However, due to rejection of claims made by the Claimant amounting to
%672.52 million, the Claimant was constrained to file a Petition under Section 11(6) of the Arbitration &
Conciliation Act, 1996 before the Delhi High Court (“DHC”) bearing Arb. P. No. 1337/2024. The matter
is currently pending.

4. Globe Civil Projects Limited (“Company”/ “Petitioner”) vs. Union of India (“Respondent”)-
Before the High Court of Delhi, Ordinary Original Civil Jurisdiction [OMP (ENF) (COMM) No.
267 of 2024]

Our Company was awarded the work for expansion of “Nehru Hospital and C/o National Institute of
Paramedical Science I/c water supply, sanitary installation, drainage and internal electrical installations
of PGIMER, Sector 12, Chandigarh” by the Respondent for tendering amount of X527.14 million
(“Project”). The said Project was to be completed within 540 days, however, our Company applied for
extension of time and completed the Project after a delay of 1,665 days. During the currency of the Project,
disputes arose between the Parties. Subsequently, after approaching the Sole Arbitrator for redressal of
disputes, the Sole Arbitrator passed an award in favour of the Petitioner to the tune of ¥258.67 million
(“Impugned Award”). It is against the said Impugned Award that the Respondent filed an objection
petition under section 34 of the A&C Act. The Petitioner submitted that the objection petition filed by the
Respondent in the District Court, Chandigarh stood barred by virtue of section 42 of the A&C Act, as the
same lacked territorial jurisdiction. The matter is currently pending.

5. Arvind Techno Globe JV (“Joint Venture”/ “Petitioner”) vs. Delhi Metro Rail Corporation

(“Respondent”)- Before the High Court of Delhi at New Delhi, Ordinary Original Civil
Jurisdiction
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Our Joint Venture was awarded the work for “Part Design and Construction of elevated viaduct including
architectural finishing viz. Johri Enclave and Shiv Vihar stations including architectural finishing, water
supply, sanitary installations and drainage works of stations from chainage 55121.184 m to 57357.623 m of
line 7 Mukundpur-Yamuna Vihar Corridor of Phase- III Delhi MTRS in Delhi and Uttar Pradesh”
(“Project”). Thereafter, disputes arose between the Parties and our Joint Venture filed an application under
section 11(6) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 (“A&C Act”) for appointment of an independent
sole arbitrator. The following claims were raised by the Petitioner in the arbitration proceedings- (i)
compensation on account of onsite expenses during prolongation period due to delay on the part of the
Respondent along with interest @18% p.a. w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- 261.79 million (“Claim 17);
(i1) compensation on account of offsite expenses during prolongation period along with interest @18% p.a.
w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- 260.61 million (“Claim 2”); (iii) compensation for expenditure incurred
for the repair and maintenance of the roads during the prolongation period along with interest @18% p.a.
w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- X 11.89 million (“Claim 3”); (iv) extra cost incurred on account of
erection of extra/ additional OHE walls over and above the tendered amounts along with interest @18% p.a.
w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- X2.82 million (“Claim 4”); (v) refund of alleged penal recoveries made
in the final bill along with interest @18% p.a. w.e.f. 01.11.2018 till date of award- ¥30.46 million (“Claim
5”); (vi) extra interest recovered on mobilization advance, special advance and plant and machinery advance
due to prolongation of work beyond updated stipulated date of completion along with interest @ 18% per
annum with effect from 01.11.2018 till the date of award- 23.12 million (“Claim 6”); (vii) Reimbursement
of NGT Tax along with interest @ 18% per annum with effect from 01.11.2018 till the date of award- X 3.26
million (“Claim 7”); (viii) refund/ recovery of illegal and unjustified liquidated damages imposed along with
interest @ 18% per annum with effect from 01.11.2018 till the date of award- %5.46 million (“Claim 8”);
(ix) charges incurred on account of renewal of bank guarantees, CAR policies and insurance policies in
extended period- %3.56 million (“Claim 9”); (x) refund of GST along with interest @ 18% per annum with
effect from 01.11.2018 till the date of award- %3.43 million (“Claim 10”). Vide award dated August 03,
2024, the Sole arbitrator rejected the aforesaid Claims of the Petitioner (“Impugned Award”). Our Joint
Venture has filed the present objection petition under section 34 of the A&C Act, against the Impugned
Award. The matter is pending.

Legal expenses, regulatory challenges and potential sanctions arising from these proceedings may put a strain
on our financial resources and impact our profitability. In the event of adverse rulings in these proceedings
or levy of penalties / fines, our Company may need to make payments or make provisions for future payments.
Furthermore, adverse publicity and negative perceptions associated with criminal litigations can affect our
reputation, leading to potential loss of customer trust and business opportunities. It may also impact our ability
to secure contracts, licenses, or permits required for our operations.

Our Company operates in a regulated environment, and any non-compliance with key regulations and
policies applicable to our operations may adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Our operations are subjected to environmental, health and safety and other regulatory and/or statutory
requirements in the jurisdictions we operate in. For details, please see “Key Regulations and Policies” on
page 310. We are subject to the laws and regulations governing employees, labour, including in relation to
minimum wage and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions, maternity leave, hiring and
termination of employees, contract labour and work permits. Further, construction activities in India are also
subject to various health and safety laws and regulations. We have incurred and expect to continue incurring
costs for compliance with such laws and regulations. These laws and regulations have, however, become
increasingly stringent and it is possible that they will become significantly more stringent in the future. If we
are unable to remain in compliance with all applicable environmental, health and safety and labour laws,
including pursuant to either any inadvertent actions or inaction by our Company or factors that may be outside
the direct control of our Company, our business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and
future prospects may be adversely affected.

We cannot assure you that compliance with such laws and regulations will not result in delays in completion,
an increase in our costs or otherwise have an adverse effect on our financial condition, cash flows and results
of operations. Accidents, in particular fatalities, may adversely affect our reputation and may result in fines
and/or investigations by public authorities as well as litigation from injured workers or their dependents.
While there have been no instances in the past, if there is any failure by us to comply with the applicable
regulations or if the regulations governing our business are amended, we may incur increased costs, be subject
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to penalties, have our approvals and permits revoked or suffer a disruption in our operations, any of which
could adversely affect our business.

We may face the risk of orders awarded pursuant to issuance of a Letter of Acceptance (LOA) or Letter
of Intent (LOI) being cancelled by clients in the future, due to unforeseen circumstances, for instance
due to non-receipt of material approvals, which may affect our business, results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition.

We may face the risk of orders awarded pursuant to issuance of LOA or LOI being cancelled by clients in
future on account of a number of risks and unforeseen events, including, without limitation: (i) failure to
submit performance security deposit; (ii) occurrence of a force majeure event, such as an act of god, act of
war, industrial strikes; (iii) administrative reasons; (iv) any assignment of rights, obligations or assets by our
Company or the relevant joint venture; (v) bankruptcy, insolvency, initiation of liquidation, dissolution,
winding up or amalgamation of our Company or the relevant joint venture; (vi) changes in applicable
regulations, terms and conditions; (vii) an inability or delay in securing necessary statutory or regulatory
approvals for projects.

While there have been no such instances faced by our Company in the past, if any of the foregoing occur, our
clients may terminate the LOA or LOI awarded to us, which will adversely affect our business, financial
condition, cash flows and results of operations.

External Risks

69.

70.

71.

A slowdown in economic growth in India could have a negative impact on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Our performance and the growth of our business are dependent on the health of the overall Indian economy.
Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy or future volatility in global commodity prices
could adversely affect our business. Additionally, an increase in trade deficit, or a decline in India’s foreign
exchange reserves could negatively affect liquidity, which could adversely affect the Indian economy and our
business. In particular, the COVID-19 pandemic caused an economic downturn in India and globally. Any
downturn in the macroeconomic environment in India could also adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

India’s economy could be adversely affected by a general rise in interest rates or inflation, adverse weather
conditions affecting agriculture, commodity and energy prices as well as various other factors. A slowdown
in the Indian economy could adversely affect the policy of the Gol towards the construction industry, which
may in turn adversely affect our financial performance and our ability to implement our business strategy.

If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our services at a proportional
rate thereby reducing our margins.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India
has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest
rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of transportation, wages, raw materials
and other expenses relevant to our business. High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult
for us to accurately estimate or control our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses,
which we may not be able to adequately pass on to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and may
adversely affect our business and financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs
or entirely offset any increases in costs with increases in prices for our products. In such case, our business,
results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. Further, the Government has
previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is unclear whether these
measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the
future.

Our business is substantially affected by prevailing economic, political and other conditions in India.

We are incorporated in India, and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India. We derive and
expect to continue to derive in the foreseeable future, most of our revenues and operating profits from India.
Consequently, our business, operations and financial performance may be affected by changes in and other
factors affecting India, some of which may be beyond our control. These include changes in investment
patterns, budget announcements, policy announcements, political changes, changes in interest rates,
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inadequate monsoons, health pandemics, terrorist attacks, natural calamities and other acts of violence or war,
which may adversely affect worldwide financial and Indian markets, including lowering investors’ confidence
in India’s economy. Consequently, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows may
be adversely affected.

India has, from time to time, experienced instances of civil unrest and terrorist attacks, regional or
international hostilities and other acts of violence as well as other adverse social, political and economic
events. India has also experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunamis, floods and droughts in
the past. If such events occur and lead to overall political and economic instability, it could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. Further, any such
events could lead to a shutdown of certain of our operations, which could result in a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

Other factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy and, hence, our results of operations may include:

* any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right to
convert or repatriate currency or export assets;

* international trade wars or uncertain or unfavorable policies on international trade or (whether or not
directly involving the Government of India);

* any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic conditions
in India and scarcity of financing for our expansions;

* prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;

* macroeconomic factors and central bank regulations, including in relation to interest rates movements
which may in turn adversely impact our access to capital markets and increase our borrowing costs;

« volatility in, and actual or perceived trends in trading activity on India’s principal stock exchanges,
that is, on the NSE and the BSE;

* decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

* political instability, including terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or
globally, including in India’s various neighbouring countries;

e civil unrest, acts of s or situations or war, which may adversely affect the financial markets;

* international business practices that may conflict with other customs or legal requirements in India
and to which we are subject, including anti-bribery and anti-corruption laws;

* logistical and communication challenges;

* downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating;

* changes in government policies, including taxation policies, social and civil unrest and other political,
social and economic developments in or affecting India;

* the occurrence of natural calamities and force majeure events;

e fluctuations in commodity and electricity prices; and

* aslowdown or recession in the economic growth of other major countries and regions or volatility in
international securities markets, especially in the United States, Europe and China.

The occurrence of any of the above factors may lead to financial instability and increased volatility in the
Indian financial markets and adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and us. Negative
economic developments, such as rising fiscal or trade deficits, or a default on national debt, in other emerging
market countries, may also affect investor confidence and cause increased volatility in Indian securities
markets and indirectly affect the Indian economy in general. While recent Indian governments have been
focused on encouraging private participation in the industrial sector, any adverse change in policy could result
in a slowdown of the Indian economy and the Gol may introduce policy changes in response. In addition,
these policies will need continued support from stable regulatory regimes that stimulate and encourage the
investment of private capital into industrial development. Additionally, an increase in trade deficit, a
downgrading in India’s sovereign debt rating or a decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves could
negatively impact interest rates and liquidity, which could adversely impact the Indian economy and our
business. Any downturn in the macroeconomic environment in India, or any slowdown or perceived
slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the Indian economy, could materially adversely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Changing regulations in India could lead to new compliance requirements that are uncertain.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and is subject to change. Our business
and financial performance could be materially adversely affected by changes in the laws, rules, regulations
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or directions applicable to us, or the interpretations of such existing laws, rules and regulations, or the
promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations. The Gol has notified the Finance Act, 2024 (“Finance
Act”), which has introduced various amendments to the Income Tax Act. We have not fully determined the
impact of these recent and proposed laws and regulations on our business. We cannot predict whether any
amendments made pursuant to the Finance Act would have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the
promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations, including foreign investment and stamp duty laws
governing our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws
and may require us to apply for additional approvals. The Finance Act proposes various amendments to
taxation laws in India. Any such and future amendments may affect certain benefits such as exemption for
income earned by way of dividend from investments in other domestic companies and units of mutual funds,
exemption for interest received in respect of tax-free bonds, and long-term capital gains on equity shares if
withdrawn by the statute in the future, and the same may no longer be available to us. Furthermore,
unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations
including foreign investment laws governing our business, operations, and group structure could result in us
being deemed to be in contravention of such laws or may require us to apply for additional approvals. We
may incur increased costs relating to compliance with such new requirements, which may also require
management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results
of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any
amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a
limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent, may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve
and may affect the viability of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.
Similarly, the Finance Act, 2020, had notified changes and provided a number of amendments to the direct
and indirect tax regime, including, without limitation, a simplified alternate direct tax regime and exemption
from dividend distribution tax (“DDT”), in respect of dividends declared, distributed or paid by a domestic
company after March 31, 2020. We cannot predict whether any new tax laws or regulations impacting our
operations will be enacted, what the nature and impact of the specific terms of any such laws or regulations
will be or whether, if at all, any laws or regulations would have an adverse effect on our business.

Additionally, the Government has recently introduced (a) the Code on Wages, 2019 (“Wages Code”); (b) the
Code on Social Security, 2020 (“Social Security Code”); (c) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working
Conditions Code, 2020; and (d) the Industrial Relations Code, 2020, which consolidate, subsume and replace
numerous existing central labour legislations. While the rules for implementation under these codes have not
been notified, we are yet to determine the impact of all or some such laws on our business and operations
which may restrict our ability to grow our business in the future and increase our expenses. Uncertainty in
the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law,
regulation or policy in the jurisdictions in which we operate, including by reason of an absence, or a limited
body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and
may impact the viability of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. We
may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such new requirements, which may
also require significant management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely affect
our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability,
interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy,
including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time
consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict
our ability to grow our businesses in the future. For instance, the Supreme Court of India has in a decision
clarified the components of basic wages which need to be considered by companies while making provident
fund payments, which resulted in an increase in the provident fund payments to be made by companies. Any
such decisions in future or any further changes in interpretation of laws may have an impact on our results of
operations.

Natural calamities, climate change and health epidemics and pandemics in India could adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil
unrest and other acts of violence could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

India has experienced natural calamities, such as earthquakes and floods in recent years. Natural calamities
could have an adverse impact on the Indian economy which, in turn, could adversely affect our business, and
may damage or destroy our machinery and equipment located at our project. Any of these natural calamities
could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Our construction operations may be materially disrupted as a result of natural calamities. Such events also
may lead to the disruption of information systems, electrical systems and telecommunication services for
sustained periods. They also may make it difficult or impossible for employees to reach our project sites.
Damage or destruction that interrupts our operations could adversely affect our reputation, our relationships
with our customers, our senior management team’s ability to administer and supervise our business or it may
cause us to incur substantial additional expenditure to repair or replace damaged equipment. Any of the above
factors may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

India has from time-to-time experienced instances of social, religious and civil unrest and hostilities between
neighbouring countries. Military activity or terrorist attacks in the future could influence the Indian economy
by disrupting communications and making travel more difficult. Such political tensions also could create a
greater perception that investments in Indian companies involve higher degrees of risk. Events of this nature
in the future, as well as social and civil unrest within other countries in Asia and Europe, could influence the
Indian economy and could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies.

Any downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative
impact on our business, results of operations and cash flows.

Our borrowing costs and our access to the debt capital markets depend significantly on the credit ratings of
India. Any adverse revisions to credit ratings for India and other jurisdictions we operate in by international
rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such funding is available. A downgrading of India’s credit ratings may occur, for
example, upon a change of government tax or fiscal policy, which is outside our control. This could have an
adverse effect on our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms and consequently adversely affect our
business and financial performance and the price of the Equity Shares.

Land is subject to compulsory acquisition by the government and compensation in lieu of such acquisition
may be inadequate.

The right to property ownership in India comes with limitations that can be enforced by the Government,
specifically under the Right to Fair Compensation and Transparency in Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and
Resettlement Act, 2013 (“Land Acquisition Act”). This act allows the Government to compulsorily acquire
land for public use, provided it compensates the landowner. However, this compensation may not fully cover
the owner’s losses from the property's loss. As central and state governments continue to procure land for
infrastructure projects like roads, railways, airports, and townships, the frequency of these acquisitions might
increase. Additionally, interpreting and adhering to the Land Acquisition Act can be challenging due to scant
jurisprudence, potential discrepancies between our understanding and judicial decisions, or governmental
clarifications. Future regulatory measures or necessary corrective actions could negatively impact our
business, financial stability, or operational results.

The extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure, to the extent insufficient, could adversely impact our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

India’s physical infrastructure is less developed than that of many developed nations. Any congestion or
disruption with its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any other public
facility could disrupt our normal business activity. Any deterioration of India’s physical infrastructure would
harm the national economy, disrupt the transportation of goods and supplies including the raw materials and
engineering items we require for our projects, and add costs to doing business in India. These problems could
interrupt our business operations, which could have adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Financial difficulty and other problems relating to financial institutions in India could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are exposed to the risks of the Indian financial system which may be affected by the financial difficulties
faced by certain Indian financial institutions whose commercial soundness may be closely related as a result
of credit, trading, clearing or other relationships. This risk, which is sometimes referred to as a “systemic
risk”, may adversely affect financial intermediaries, such as credit rating agencies, banks, security trustees,
and stock exchanges with which we interact on a daily basis. Any such difficulties or instability of the Indian
financial system in general could create adverse market perceptions about the Indian financial institutions and
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banks and adversely affect our ability to obtain financing and consequently, our business. In addition, we deal
with various financial institutions in our business. Any one of them could be negatively affected by financial
difficulty as a result of occurrences over which we have no control. If one or more of our financial institutional
counterparties or intermediaries suffers economic difficulty, this could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other
countries, including, but not limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe and Asia. Financial turmoil
or instability and loss of investor confidence in Asia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has adversely
affected the Indian economy in the past. Any worldwide financial instability may cause increased volatility
in the Indian financial markets and, directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial
sector and its business.

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging economy
may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in other parts of
the world could have a global influence and thereby adversely impact the Indian economy. Financial
disruptions in the future could adversely affect our business, future financial condition and results of
operations.

The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity disruptions and
market corrections. These developments, and the uncertainty of the economic impact such developments may
have may continue to have a material adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global
financial markets, and may significantly reduce global market liquidity, restrict the ability of key market
participants to operate in certain financial markets or restrict our access to capital.

Further, trade tensions between the U.S. and major trading partners, most notably China, continue to escalate
following the introduction of a series of tariff measures in both countries. Although China is the primary
target of U.S. trade measures, value chain linkages mean that other emerging markets, primarily in Asia, may
also be impacted. China’s policy response to these trade measures also presents a degree of uncertainty.

In response to such developments, legislators and financial regulators in the United States and other
jurisdictions, including India, have implemented a number of policy measures designed to add stability to the
financial markets. However, the overall long-term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts
on the global financial markets is uncertain, and they may not have had the intended stabilizing effects. Any
significant financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our cost of funding, business, and financial
performance.

Our business is capital intensive and is significantly dependent on the availability of real estate and
infrastructure financing in India. Difficult conditions in the global capital markets and the global economy
generally may adversely affect our business and results of operations and may cause us to experience
limited availability of funds. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise sufficient financing on
acceptable terms, or at all.

Our business requires substantial capital investment, primarily due to its reliance on the availability of real
estate and infrastructure financing in India. The global capital markets and overall economic conditions
significantly influence our ability to secure necessary funding. Adverse developments in these areas, such as
economic downturns, increased volatility, or tightened credit markets could restrict our access to capital. This
limited availability of funds may hinder our operational capabilities and delay or altogether halt our planned
projects, which in turn could adversely affect our business performance and results of operations.

There is no guarantee that we will be able to obtain adequate financing needed for our projects on terms
favourable to us, or even at all. Our failure to secure sufficient financing on acceptable terms could constrain
our growth and strategic initiatives, forcing us to modify our business plans accordingly. This inability to
raise capital could also impair our ability to sustain operations, fulfil contractual obligations, or expand our
business ventures, thereby negatively impacting our financial condition and future prospects.

Significant differences exist between Ind-AS and other accounting principles, such as U.S. GAAP and
IFRS, which may be material to the financial statements prepared and presented in accordance with Ind-
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AS contained in this Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Restated Consolidated Financial Information has been compiled from our audited financial statements
prepared and presented in accordance with Ind-AS and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Ind-AS differs from accounting principles with which prospective investors may be familiar in
other countries, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Significant differences exist between Ind-AS, U.S. GAAP and
IFRS, which may be material to the financial statements prepared and presented in accordance with Ind-AS
contained in this Red Herring Prospectus. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included
in this Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful information is dependent on the prospective investor’s
familiarity with Ind-AS and the Companies Act. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Ind-AS on the
financial disclosures presented in this Red Herring Prospectus should accordingly be limited. In addition,
some of our competitors may not present their financial statements in accordance with Ind AS and their
financial statements may not be directly comparable to ours, and therefore reliance should accordingly be
limited.

We may be affected by competition law in India and any adverse application or interpretation of the
Competition Act may in turn adversely affect our business.

The Competition Act, 2002, of India, as amended (“Competition Act”), regulates practices having an
appreciable adverse effect on competition in the relevant market in India (“AAEC”). Under the Competition
Act, any formal or informal arrangement, understanding, or action in concert, which causes or is likely to
cause an AAEC, is considered void and may result in the imposition of substantial penalties. Further, any
agreement among competitors which directly or indirectly involves the determination of purchase or sale
prices, limits or controls production, supply, markets, technical development, investment, or the provision of
services, or shares the market or source of production or provision of services in any manner, including by
way of allocation of geographical area or number of customers in the relevant market or directly or indirectly
results in bid-rigging or collusive bidding is presumed to have an AAEC and is considered void. The
Competition Act also prohibits abuse of a dominant position by any enterprise.

On April 11, 2023, the Competition (Amendment) Bill 2023 received the assent of the President of India to
become the Competition (Amendment) Act, 2023 (“Competition Amendment Act”), amending the
Competition Act and giving the CCI additional powers to prevent practices that harm competition and the
interests of consumers. It has been enacted to increase the ease of doing business in India and enhance
transparency. The Competition Amendment Act, inter alia, modifies the scope of certain factors used to
determine AAEC, reduces the overall time limit for the assessment of combinations by the CCI and empowers
the CCI to impose penalties based on the global turnover of entities, for anti-competitive agreements and
abuse of dominant position.

The Competition Act aims to, among others, prohibit all agreements and transactions which may have an
AAEC in India. Consequently, all agreements entered by us could be within the purview of the Competition
Act. Further, the CCI has extraterritorial powers and can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct, or
combination occurring outside India if such agreement, conduct, or combination has an AAEC in India.
However, the impact of the provisions of the Competition Act on the agreements entered by us cannot be
predicted with certainty at this stage. We may be affected, directly or indirectly, by the application or
interpretation of any provision of the Competition Act, or any enforcement proceedings initiated by the CCI,
or any adverse publicity that may be generated due to scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI or if any prohibition
or substantial penalties are levied under the Competition Act, it would adversely affect our business, results
of operations, cash flows, and prospects.

Investors may not be able to enforce a judgment of a foreign court against us.

Our Company is a company incorporated under the laws of India. Our Board of Directors comprises members
all of whom are Indian citizens. All of our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management are residents
of India and all of the assets of our Company and such persons are located in India. As a result, it may not be
possible for investors outside India to effect service of process upon our Company or such persons in India,
or to enforce against them judgments obtained in courts outside India.

India has reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters with only a
limited number of jurisdictions, which includes, among others, the United Kingdom, Singapore, United Arab
Emirates and Hong Kong. In order to be enforceable, a judgment from a jurisdiction with reciprocity must
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meet certain requirements of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908. Judgments or decrees from jurisdictions,
which do not have reciprocal recognition with India, cannot be executed in India. Therefore, a final judgment
for the payment of money rendered by any court in a non-reciprocating territory for civil liability, whether or
not predicated solely upon the general laws of the non-reciprocating territory, would not be enforceable in
India. Even if an investor obtained a judgment in such a jurisdiction against us or our officers or directors, it
may be required to institute a new proceeding in India and obtain a decree from an Indian court. However,
the party in whose favour such final judgment is rendered may bring a new suit in a competent court in India
based on a final judgment that has been obtained in a non-reciprocating territory within three years of
obtaining such final judgment in the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India.
If, and to the extent that, an Indian court were of the opinion that fairness and good faith so required, it would,
under current practice, give binding effect to the final judgment that had been rendered in the non-
reciprocating territory, unless such a judgment contravenes principles of public policy in India. It is unlikely
that an Indian court would award damages on the same basis or to the same extent as was awarded in a final
judgment rendered by a court in another jurisdiction if the Indian court believed that the amount of damages
awarded was excessive or inconsistent with Indian practice. In addition, any person seeking to enforce a
foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval of the RBI to repatriate any amount recovered
pursuant to the execution of such a judgment.

Risks Relating to the Issue and the Equity Shares

83. The Issue Price, market capitalization to revenue from operations multiple and price to earnings ratio
based on the Issue Price of our Company, may not be indicative of the market price of the Company on
listing or thereafter.

Set forth below are details regarding our revenue from operations and restated profit / (loss) after tax for the
periods indicated.

(% in million)
Particulars December 31, Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
2024
Revenue from operations 2,546.57 3,321.62 2,333.45 2,857.09
Restated profit/(loss) for
the year 177.89 153.78 48.51 52.01

Our market capitalization to revenue from operations (Fiscal 2024) multiple is [®] times and our price to
earnings ratio (based on Fiscal 2024 restated profit / (loss) after tax for the year) is [®] at the upper end of the
Price Band and [e] at the lower end of the Price Band. The Issue Price of the Equity Shares is proposed to be
determined on the basis of assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares offered through a book-
building process, and certain quantitative and qualitative factors as set out in “Basis for Issue Price” on page
166, and the Issue Price, multiples and ratios may not be indicative of the market price of the Company on
listing or thereafter. Investors are advised to make an informed decision while investing in our Company
taking into consideration the price per share that will be published in price advertisement, the revenue
generated per share in the past and the market capitalization of our company vis-a-vis the revenue generated
per share.

Prior to the Issue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares, and an active trading market on the
Stock Exchanges may not develop or be sustained after the Issue. Listing and quotation do not guarantee that
a market for the Equity Shares will develop, or if developed, the liquidity of such market for the Equity
Shares.

Accordingly, any valuation exercise undertaken for the purposes of the Issue by our Company would not be
based on a benchmark with our industry peers. The relevant financial parameters based on which the Price
Band would be determined, shall be disclosed in the advertisement that would be issued for publication of the
Price Band.

The market price of the Equity Shares may be subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among other
factors, variations in our operating results, market conditions specific to the construction industry in which
we operate, developments relating to India, announcements by us or our competitors of significant
acquisitions, strategic alliances, our competitors launching significant new projects, announcements by third

103



84.

85.

86.

parties or governmental entities of significant claims or proceedings against us, volatility in the securities
markets in India and other jurisdictions, variations in the growth rate of financial indicators, variations in
revenue or earnings estimates by research publications, and changes in economic, legal and other regulatory
factors.

The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and the Issue Price of
the Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after the Issue.

The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and will be determined by
our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager. Furthermore, the Issue Price of the
Equity Shares will be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager
through the Book Building Process. These will be based on numerous factors, including factors as described
under “Basis for Issue Price” on page 166 and may not be indicative of the market price for the Equity
Shares after the Issue.

The factors that could affect the market price of the Equity Shares include, among others, broad market trends,
financial performance and results of our Company post-listing, and other factors beyond our control. We
cannot assure you that an active market will develop or sustained trading will take place in the Equity Shares
or provide any assurance regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing.

Subsequent to listing of the Equity Shares, we may be subject to pre-emptive surveillance measures like
Additional Surveillance Measures and Graded Surveillance Measures by the Stock Exchanges in order to
enhance market integrity and safeguard the interest of investors.

SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, in the past, have introduced various pre-emptive surveillance measures with
respect to the shares of listed companies in India (the “Listed Securities”) in order to enhance market
integrity, safeguard the interests of investors and potential market abuses. In addition to various surveillance
measures already implemented, and in order to further safeguard the interest of investors, the SEBI and the
Stock Exchanges have introduced additional surveillance measures (“ASM”) and graded surveillance
measures (“GSM”).

ASM is conducted by the Stock Exchanges on Listed Securities with surveillance concerns based on certain
objective parameters such as price-to-earnings ratio, percentage of delivery, client concentration, variation in
volume of shares and volatility of shares, among other things. GSM is conducted by the Stock Exchanges on
Listed Securities where their price quoted on the Stock Exchanges is not commensurate with, among other
things, the financial performance and financial condition measures such as earnings, book value, fixed assets,
net worth, other measures such as price-to-earnings multiple and market capitalization.

Upon listing, the trading of our Equity Shares would be subject to differing market conditions as well as other
factors which may result in high volatility in price, and low trading volumes as a percentage of combined
trading volume of our Equity Shares. The occurrence of any of the abovementioned factors or other
circumstances may trigger any of the parameters prescribed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges for placing
our securities under the GSM and/or ASM framework or any other surveillance measures, which could result
in significant restrictions on trading of our Equity Shares being imposed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges.
These restrictions may include requiring higher margin requirements, limiting trading frequency or freezing
of price on the upper side of trading, as well as mentioning of our Equity Shares on the surveillance
dashboards of the Stock Exchanges. The imposition of these restrictions and curbs on trading may have an
adverse effect on the market price, trading and liquidity of our Equity Shares and on the reputation and
conditions of our Company. Any such instance may result in a loss of our reputation and diversion of our
management’s attention and may also decrease the market price of our Equity Shares which could cause you
to lose some or all of your investment.

Rights of shareholders of companies under Indian law may be more limited than under the laws of other
Jjurisdictions.

Our Articles of Association, composition of our Board, Indian laws governing our corporate affairs, the
validity of corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties, responsibilities and liabilities, and shareholders’
rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction. Shareholders’ rights under
Indian law may not be as extensive and widespread as shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries
or jurisdictions. Investors may face challenges in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company
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than as a shareholder of an entity in another jurisdiction.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may have an adverse
effect on the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends in
respect of our Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant
foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the
time taken for such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign investors. In addition, any adverse
movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares
outside India, for example, because of a delay in regulatory approvals that may be required for the sale of
Equity Shares, may reduce the proceeds received by Shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between
the Indian Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate
substantially in the future, which may have an adverse effect on the returns on our Equity Shares, independent
of our operating results.

Our Company’s Equity Shares have never been publicly traded and may experience price and volume
fluctuations following the completion of the Issue, an active trading market for the Equity Shares may not
develop, the price of our Equity Shares may be volatile and may not be indicative of the market price of
Equity Shares after the Issue, and you may be unable to resell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue
Price or at all.

Prior to the Issue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares, and an active trading market for our
Equity Shares may not develop. Listing and quotation does not guarantee that a market for our Equity Shares
will develop, or if developed, the liquidity of such market for our Equity Shares. Investors might not be able
to rapidly sell the Equity Shares at the quoted price if there is no active trading in the Equity Shares. The Issue
Price of our Equity Shares will be determined through a book-building process and may not be indicative of
the market price of our Equity Shares at the time of commencement of trading of our Equity Shares or at any
time thereafter.

There has been significant volatility in the Indian stock markets in the recent past, and the trading price of
our Equity Shares after this Issue could fluctuate significantly as a result of market volatility or due to various
internal or external risks, including but not limited to those described in this Red Herring Prospectus. These
broad market fluctuations and industry factors may materially reduce the market price of our Equity Shares,
regardless of our Company’s performance. In addition, following the expiry of the six-month locked-in period
on certain portions of the pre-Issue Equity Share capital, our Promoters may sell its shareholding in our
Company, depending on market conditions and its investment horizon. Any perception by investors that such
sales might occur could additionally affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Consequently, the price of
our Equity Shares may be volatile, and you may be unable to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue
Price, or at all. A decrease in the market price of our Equity Shares could cause investors to lose some or all
of their investment.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our future earnings, financial condition, cash
flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in our financing
arrangements. We cannot assure payment of dividends on the Equity Shares in the future.

Our Company has a formal dividend policy as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. Our Company,
however, has not declared dividends on our Equity Shares during the current Fiscal Year and the last three
Fiscal Years. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our dividend policy, future results
of operations, financial condition, cash flows, working capital requirements and capital expenditure
requirements and other factors considered relevant by our directors and shareholders. Our ability to pay
dividends may also be restricted under certain financing arrangements that we may enter into. We may retain
all future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of the business. As a result, we cannot
assure you that we will be able to pay dividends on the Equity Shares at any point in the future. For details
pertaining to dividend policy, please see “Dividend Policy” on page 350.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of income arising on the sale of and dividend on the
Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity
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shares held as investments in an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Securities transaction tax
(“STT”) will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold.
Any capital gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares on a Stock Exchange held for more than 12 months
immediately preceding the date of transfer will be subject to long term capital gains in India at the specified
rates depending on certain factors, such as whether the sale is undertaken on or off the Stock Exchanges, STT
paid, the quantum of gains and any available treaty relief. Further, any capital gains realized on the sale of
listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less immediately preceding the date of transfer will be
subject to short term capital gains tax in India. The capital gains tax applicable at the time of sale of equity
shares, on a stock exchange or off-market sale, is subject to amendments from time to time.

Further, the Finance Act, 2019 has made various amendments in the taxation laws and has also clarified that,
in the absence of a specific provision under an agreement, the liability to pay stamp duty in case of sale of
securities through stock exchanges will be on the buyer, while in other cases of transfer for consideration
through a depository, the onus will be on the transferor. The stamp duty for transfer of securities other than
debentures, on a delivery basis is specified at 0.015% and on a non-delivery basis is specified at 0.003% of
the consideration amount. These amendments have come into effect from July 1, 2020. Capital gains arising
from the sale of the Equity Shares will be exempt from taxation in India in cases where the exemption from
taxation in India is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a resident.
Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents
of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on a gain upon the sale of
Equity Shares.

Additionally, the Finance Act, 2020, has, amongst others things, notified changes and provided a number of
amendments to the direct and indirect tax regime, including, without limitation, a simplified alternate direct
tax regime and that dividend distribution tax will not be payable in respect of dividends declared, distributed
or paid by a domestic company after March 31, 2020 and accordingly, such dividends would not be exempt
in the hands of the shareholders, both resident as well as non-resident, and are subject to tax deduction at
source. We may or may not grant the benefit of a tax treaty (where applicable) to a non-resident sharcholder
for the purposes of deducting tax at source from such dividend. Investors should consult their own tax advisors
about the consequences of investing or trading in the Equity Shares.

Further, the Government of India has notified the Finance Act, 2024 (“Finance Act”), which has introduced
various amendments to the Income-tax Act, 1961. We cannot predict whether any amendments to the Finance
Act, or any tax laws or other regulations impacting it will be enacted or predict the nature and impact of any
such laws or regulations or whether, if at all, any laws or regulations would have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are not permitted to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity
of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a Bid, and Retail Individual Bidders are
not permitted to withdraw their Bids after Bid/Issue Closing Date.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders are required to pay the Bid
Amount on submission of the Bid and are not permitted to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity
of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a Bid. Retail Individual Bidders can revise
their Bids during the Bid/Issue Period and withdraw their Bids until Bid/Issue Closing Date. While our
Company is required to complete all necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading of the
Equity Shares on all Stock Exchanges where such Equity Shares are proposed to be listed including Allotment
pursuant to the Issue within three Working Days from the Bid/Issue Closing Date, or such other time period
as required under the applicable laws, events affecting the Bidders’ decision to invest in the Equity Shares,
including material adverse changes in macro-economic conditions, our business, results of operation or
financial condition may arise between the date of submission of the Bid and Allotment. Our Company may
complete the Allotment of the Equity Shares even if such events occur, and such events limit the Bidders’
ability to sell the Equity Shares Allotted or cause the trading price of the Equity Shares to decline on listing.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed on the BSE and NSE in a timely manner or at
all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing and trading of our Equity Shares will not

be granted until after certain actions have been completed in relation to this Issue and until Allotment of
Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue. In accordance with current regulations and circulars issued by SEBI, our
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Equity Shares are required to be listed on the BSE and NSE within such time as mandated under UPI
Circulars, subject to any change in the prescribed timeline in this regard. However, we cannot assure you that
the trading in our Equity Shares will commence in a timely manner or at all. Any failure or delay in obtaining
final listing and trading approvals may restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares.

Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian
law and could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, a company having share capital and incorporated in India must offer holders of its
Equity Shares pre-emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of Equity Shares to maintain
their existing ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive
rights have been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the Equity
Shares who have voted on such resolution. However, if the laws of the jurisdiction that holders are in does
not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive rights without us filing an offering document or registration
statement with the applicable authority in such jurisdiction, the holders will be unable to exercise such pre-
emptive rights unless we make such a filing. The Company may elect not to file a registration statement in
relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by Indian law to the holders. To the extent that the holders
are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, they may suffer future
dilution of their ownership position and their proportional interests in our Company would be reduced.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares or convertible securities or other equity linked securities by our
Company may dilute holders’ shareholding and sales of the Equity Shares by our Promoters or other
shareholders may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

We may be required to finance our growth through future equity offerings. Any future equity issuances by us,
including a primary offering, may lead to the dilution of investors’ shareholdings in us. Any disposal of Equity
Shares by our shareholders, or the perception that such issuance or sales may occur, including to comply with
the minimum public shareholding norms applicable to listed companies in India may adversely affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares, which may lead to other adverse consequences including difficulty in
raising capital through offering of the Equity Shares or incurring additional debt. Additionally, the disposal,
pledge or encumbrance of the Equity Shares by our Promoters or other shareholders, or the perception that
such transactions may occur, may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. There can be no assurance
that we will not issue further Equity Shares or that the shareholders will not dispose of the Equity Shares.
Such securities may also be issued at prices below the Issue Price.

A third party could be prevented from acquiring control of our Company because of anti-takeover
provisions under Indian law.

There are provisions in Indian law that may delay, deter or prevent a future takeover or change in control of
our Company, even if a change in control would result in the purchase of your Equity Shares at a premium to
the market price or would otherwise be beneficial to you. Although the SEBI Takeover Regulations have
been formulated to ensure that interests of investors/shareholders are protected, these provisions may also
discourage a third party from attempting to take control of our Company. Consequently, even if a potential
takeover of our Company would result in the purchase of the Equity Shares at a premium to their market price
or would otherwise be beneficial to its stakeholders, it is possible that such a takeover would not be attempted
or consummated.

Shareholders’ rights under Indian law and our Articles of Association may not be as extensive and widespread
as shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may face more challenges
in asserting their rights as a shareholder in an Indian company than as a shareholder of an entity in another
jurisdiction.

Non-resident investors are subject to investment restrictions under Indian laws, which limit the ability to
attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of Equity Shares.

Foreign ownership of Indian securities is subject to Government regulation. Under the foreign exchange
regulations currently in force in India, transfer of shares between non-residents and residents are freely
permitted (subject to compliance with sectoral norms and certain other restrictions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought
to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or does not fall
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under any of the exceptions specified by the RBI, then prior approval of the RBI will be required. Further,
unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of the Indian economy up
to any extent and without any prior approvals, but the foreign investor is required to follow certain prescribed
procedures for making such investment. The RBI and the concerned ministries/departments are responsible
for granting approval for foreign investment.

Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Indian Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into
foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India require a no objection or a tax clearance
certificate from the Indian income tax authority. We cannot assure investors that any required approval from
the RBI or any other Indian government agency can be obtained on any particular terms, or at all.

Further, pursuant to Press Note No. 3 (2020 Series), dated April 17, 2020 issued by the DPIIT and the Foreign
Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Amendment Rules, 2020 which came into effect from April
22,2020, any investment, subscription, purchase or sale of equity instruments by entities of a country which
shares a land border with India or where the beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a
citizen of any such country, can only be made through Government approval route, as prescribed in the
Consolidated FDI Policy and the FEMA Rules. These investment restrictions shall also apply to subscribers
of offshore derivative instruments. The Company cannot assure investors that any required approval from the
RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terms, or at all. For further details,
please see “Restriction on Foreign Ownership of Indian Securities” on page 547.

The Issue Price, market capitalisation to revenue multiple and price to earnings ratio based on the Issue
Price of our Company, may not be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares on listing.

Our total income, Restated Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) and
Restated Profit/(Loss) for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 was 32,567.37 million, 3392.98
million, and X177.89 million on Restated Consolidated Financials Statement basis. Our market capitalisation
(based on the Issue Price) to revenue (Fiscal 2024) multiple is [®] times; our market capitalisation (based on
the Issue Price) to price to earnings ratio (based on profit after tax for Fiscal 2024) is [e] at the upper end of
the Price Band; and our enterprise value to EBITDA ratio (based on EBITDA for Fiscal 2024) is [e]. The
Issue Price will be determined by our Company in consultation with BRLM based on various factors and
assumptions. Furthermore, the Issue Price of the Equity Shares will be determined by our Company in
consultation with Book Running Lead Manager through the Book Building Process, and will be based on
numerous factors, including factors as described under “Basis for the Issue Price” beginning on page 151
and may not be indicative of the market price for the Equity Shares after the Issue. Accordingly, the Issue
Price, multiples and ratio may not be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares on listing or
thereafter. The factors that could affect the market price of the Equity Shares include, among other, broad
market trends, our financial performance and results post-listing, and other factors beyond our Company’s
control. Our Company cannot assure you that an active market will develop, or sustained.
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SECTION III - INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

The following table summarizes details of the Issue:

Up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares of face value of *10/-

i (O]
IS Gy R each, aggregating up to X [e] million

Issue comprises of:
A. QIB Portion® ®® Not more than [e]* Equity Shares of face value of
%10/- each, aggregating to X [e#] million

of which:
(1) Anchor Investor Portion @® Up to [e]* Equity Shares of face value of 210/- each
(ii) Net QIB Portion (assuming Anchor Investor Up to [e]* Equity Shares of face value of *10/- each

Portion is fully subscribed)

of which:
(a) Available for allocation to Mutual Funds only | [e]* Equity Shares of face value of *10/- each
(5% of the Net QIB Portion)

(b) Balance for all QIBs including Mutual Funds | [e]* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10/- each

B. Non-Institutional Portion ¥ Not less than [@]* Equity Shares of face value of 10/-
each, aggregating to X [e®] million

of which:
One-third of the Non-Institutional Portion available | [®]* Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each
for allocation to Bidders with an application size of
more than X 200,000 to ¥1.00 million

Two-third of the Non-Institutional Portion available | [®]* Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each
for allocation to Bidders with an application size of
more than %1.00 million

C. Retail Portion @ Not less than [@]* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10/-
each, aggregating to X [e] million

Pre and post-Issue Equity Shares
Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Issue (as at the | 42,958,439 Equity Shares of face value of ¥10/- each
date of this Red Herring Prospectus)

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue [e]* Equity Shares
Please see “Objects of the Issue” on page 148 for
Use of Net Proceeds details regarding the use of Net Proceeds arising from
the Issue.

* Subject finalisation of the Basis of Allotment.
Notes:

1. The Issue has been authorised by our Board pursuant to its resolution dated August 20, 2024 and by our Shareholders’
vide special resolution dated August 21, 2024. Subsequently, our Board vide its resolution dated May 21, 2025 approved
the revised Issue size i.e., up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares.

2. Our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, may allocate up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a
discretionary basis. The QIB Portion will accordingly be reduced for the Equity Shares allocated to Anchor Investors.
One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-
subscription in the Anchor Investor Portion, the remaining Equity Shares shall be added to the Net QIB Portion. Further,
5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the
remainder of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders (other
than Anchor Investors), including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.
However, if the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than as specified above, the balance Equity Shares
available for Allotment in the Mutual Fund Portion will be added to the Net QIB Portion and allocated proportionately
to the QIB Bidders (other than Anchor Investors) in proportion to their Bids. For details, please see “Issue Procedure”
on page 526.
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3. Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, under-subscription, if any, in any category except the
QIB Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories, as
applicable, at the discretion of our Company, in consultation with the BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange,
subject to applicable laws.

4. Allocation to Bidders in all categories, except Anchor Investors, if any, Non-Institutional Bidders and Retail Individual
Bidders, shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid Bids received at or above the Issue Price. The allocation
to each Non-Institutional Bidder and Retail Individual Bidder shall not be less than the minimum Bid Lot, subject to
availability of Equity Shares in the Non-Institutional Portion and the Retail Portion and the remaining available Equity
Shares, if any, shall be allocated on a proportionate basis. The Equity Shares available for allocation to Non-
Institutional Bidders under the Non-Institutional Portion, shall be subject to the following: (i) one-third of the Non-
Institutional Portion shall be reserved for Bidders with application size of more than ¥ 200,000 and up to Z1.00 million;
and (ii) two-thirds of the Non-Institutional Portion shall be reserved for Bidders with an application size of more than
Z1.00 million and the unsubscribed portion in either of the above sub-categories may be allocated to Bidders in the
other sub-category of Non-Institutional Bidders. The allocation of Equity Shares to each Non-Institutional Bidders shall
not be less than X 200,000, subject to the availability of Equity Shares in the Non-Institutional Portion, and the remaining
Equity Shares, if any, shall be allocated on a proportionate basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
Allocation to Anchor Investors shall be on a discretionary basis, in accordance with conditions specified in this regard
in Schedule XIII of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For details, please see “Issue Procedure” on page 526.

For details, including in relation to grounds for rejection of Bids, please see “Issue Procedure” on page 526. For
details of the terms of the Issue, please see “Terms of the Issue” on page 515.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables set forth summary financial information derived from our Restated Consolidated Financial
Information. The summary financial information presented below should be read in conjunction with *“ Financial
Information” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
on pages 351 and 453, respectively.

The effect of our Company’s increase / decrease in revenue on the corresponding line items in balance sheet,
profit and loss and cash flow statement for last 3 Financial Years:

Profit & Loss Statement

. Revenue from Operations: Our revenue from operations decreased by 18.33% from %2,857.09 million in
Fiscal 2022 to %2,333.45 million in Fiscal 2023, primarily due to a decrease in construction project receipts,
by 21.72% from  2,536.17 million in Fiscal 2022 to % 1,985.27 million in Fiscal 2023. This was partially
offset by an increase in sale of trading goods, specifically construction materials, from % 320.92 million in
Fiscal 2022 to X 348.18 million in Fiscal 2023. The primary reason for this decrease in revenue of the
Company from Fiscal 2022 to Fiscal 2023 is attributed to the considerable delay in commencement of a
work (“Project”) awarded in January 2022, by the Central Public Works Department, Government of India,
Executive Engineer and Superintending Engineer (Civil), Bangalore- [, amounting to 31,429.22 million. The
Project involved constructing an office building for the Income Tax Department in Bengaluru, featuring 18
floors and comprehensive civil, electrical, and mechanical services, including advanced systems for water
supply, firefighting, HVAC, security, and external infrastructure. This was executed on an Engineering,
Procurement, and Construction (EPC) basis. The delay was primarily due to the late receipt of statutory
approvals from the concerned authority. The Company generated a turnover of only ¥37.26 million from the
said Project in Fiscal 2023, while it had anticipated a turnover of around ¥500.00 million. Our revenue from
operations increased by 42.35%, from %2,333.45 million in Fiscal 2023 to %3,321.62 million in Fiscal 2024.
This growth was primarily driven by a 47.72% increase in construction project receipts, which rose from
%1,985.27 million in Fiscal 2023 to %2,932.67 million in Fiscal 2024. Additionally, the sale from trading of
goods, increased by 11.71%, from X348.18 million to ¥388.95 million during the same period.

. Cost of Materials Consumed: Increased from %¥775.38 million in Fiscal 2022 to ¥818.47 million in Fiscal
2023, a 5.56% increase due to market fluctuation in the rates of raw materials. Then, it further increased
from X818.47 million in Fiscal 2023 to ¥941.75 million in Fiscal 2024, a 15.06% rise, due to increase in
purchase of raw materials, such as bitumen, steel, aggregates and cement, for the purpose of construction of
our ongoing projects.

. Construction Costs: The cost of construction decreased by 39.61%, from 1,435.69 million in Fiscal 2022
to X867.00 million in Fiscal 2023. It then increased by 73.82%, from ¥867.00 million in Fiscal 2023 to
%1,507.06 million in Fiscal 2024. The cost of construction primarily consists of expenses incurred at our
project sites towards electricity, power, and water charges, generator running expenses, wages and sub-
contractors cost, and project construction consultancy. Additionally, it covers repair and maintenance of
plant and machinery, site maintenance and security expenses, as well as hiring charges for construction
equipment. The fluctuation in cost of construction depends on portions of our projects to various sub-
contractors, who are responsible for providing for their own supplies of labour with raw materials or without
raw material. Our arrangements with our various subcontractors are based on item-rate contracts, with rates
calculated on a basis that will ensure predetermined margins

. PAT: The net profit of the Company has been decreased by 6.73% from ¥52.01 million in Fiscal 2022 to
%48.51 million in Fiscal 2023, due to considerable delay in commencement of a work (“Project”) awarded
in January 2022 by the Central Public Works Department, Government of India, Executive Engineer and
Superintending Engineer (Civil), Bangalore- I. However, it increased from 348.51 million in Fiscal 2023 to
%153.78 million in Fiscal 2024, up by 217.03%, supported by successfully completion of several
longstanding construction contracts based on pre-COVID bids. In addition to these, we secured three new
large projects, which together contributed over 50% of our revenue from operations (construction project
receipts) in Fiscal 2024.

Balance Sheet
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. Trade Receivables: Increased from ¥367.89 million in Fiscal 2022 to X680.50 million in Fiscal 2023, an
increase of 84.97%. It further increased to 970.00 million in Fiscal 2024, a 42.54% rise. In terms of holding
period, the increase in trade receivable cycle for Fiscal 2023, compared to earlier years, was on account of:
(i) the Company’s shift in the nature of contracts to EPC. Earlier all our contracts were of Item Rate or
Percentage Rate types, which typically had shorter trade receivable cycles. However, post Fiscal 2022, the
projects awarded were mostly EPC contracts. EPC projects generally have a longer trade receivable cycle,
as billing for executed work is often concentrated in the later stages of the project; (ii) the Company’s
classification as a Class-1 Super contractor with the CPWD, which enables us to tender for projects up to
26,500 million. With this eligibility to bid higher value projects, our Company was able to secure longer
duration contracts, which generally tend to have higher milestones for revenue recognition as compared to
the shorter projects executed in earlier years.

. Trade Payables: Increased from 3342.29 million in Fiscal 2022 to ¥423.06 million in Fiscal 2023, a 23.60
% increase, followed by a decrease to ¥356.81 million in Fiscal 2024, reflecting a 15.66% drop. In terms of
holding levels, our Company’s trade payable holding period has steadily decreased in recent years. Over the
past three Fiscals, our Company has focused on reducing the trade payable days to take advantage of
favourable pricing from suppliers.

o  Total Assets: Increased from 2,297.88 million in Fiscal 2022 to %2,750.43 million in Fiscal 2023, reflecting
a 19.69% growth due to increase in trade receivables and other current assets. Further expanded to 3,178.29
million in Fiscal 2024, a 15.56% rise, driven by increase in trade receivables.

° Total Equity: Rose from 3574.52 million in Fiscal 2022 to 624.41 million in Fiscal 2023, a 8.68% increase
due to retained earnings of Fiscal 2023. Strengthened further from ¥624.41 million in Fiscal 2023 to 3776.69
million in Fiscal 2024, a 24.39% rise, showcasing improved profitability and retained earnings.

. Total Liabilities: Increased from %1,723.36 million in Fiscal 2022 to 2126.02 million in Fiscal 2023, a
23.36 % rise due to increase in short term borrowing. Rose from 2,126.02 million in Fiscal 2023 to
%2,401.60 million in Fiscal 2024, a 12.96 % increase, mainly due to increase in short term borrowing.

Cash Flow Statement

. Operating Cash Flow: Decreased from ¥74.10 million in Fiscal 2022 to (X112.22) million in Fiscal 2023
majorly due to increase in trade receivable. Then, it improved to %41.99 million in Fiscal 2024 driven by
better collections and better payments and increase in profits.

. Investing Cash Flow: Changed from %1.84 million in Fiscal 2022 to (334.54) million in Fiscal 2023,
reflecting a increase in purchase of Property plant and equipment. It further, it widened to (X113.06) million
in Fiscal 2024, indicating higher capital expenditure for the execution of new projects which is reflected
from increase in revenue.

. Financing Cash Flow: Expanded from (%95.51) million in Fiscal 2022 to ¥147.69 million in Fiscal 2023 and
%70.12 million in Fiscal 2024 due to increase in short-term borrowings.”

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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SUMMARY OF RESTATED CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(< in million, unless otherwise stated)

As at for the As at Fiscal Ended
nine months
Particulars B:Zle(:gtf :rd;f’ 2024 2023 2022
2024

ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 257.85 276.15 195.89 189.72
b. Investment Property 9.13 9.48 9.97 10.48
c. Other Intangible Assets 0.04 0.04 0.07 0.10
d. Right of Use Assets - 1.44 3.36 -
e. Financial Assets

i. Investments 0.25 0.28 0.28 0.32

ii. Other Financial Assets 122.93 30.39 142.63 48.81
f. Deferred Tax Assets (net) 14.93 12.35 9.23 9.72
g. Other Non Current Assets 1.69 1.90 2.24 1.67
Total Non Current Assets 406.82 332.03 363.66 260.83
2 Current Assets
a. Inventories 1,104.58 936.16 805.14 801.77
b. Financial Assets

i. Trade Receivables* 1,413.35 970.00 680.50 367.89

ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.60 2.03 2.98 2.04

ii. B'ank Balances other than 50.34 83.32 313 16.82

(ii) above

iv. Other Financial Assets 295.21 340.35 268.16 296.27
c. Income Tax Assets (Net) 49.99 64.29 71.25 65.09
d. Other Current Assets 423.13 450.11 555.61 487.17
Total Current Assets 3,339.20 2,846.26 2,386.77 2,037.06
Total Assets 3,746.02 3,178.29 2,750.43 2,297.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 429.58 24.75 24.75 24.75
b. Other Equity 568.71 751.94 599.66 549.77
Total Equity 998.29 776.69 624.41 574.52
2 Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 86.05 121.07 129.31 14591

ii. Lease Liabilities - - 1.63 -

iii. Other Non-Current - 3.85 - -

Financial Liabilities
b. Provisions 7.03 5.01 4.13 5.23
¢. Other Non-Current Liabilities 321.10 354.74 298.17 142.77
414.18 484.67 433.24 293.91
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As at for the As at Fiscal Ended
nine months

Particulars gzzz:glf;d;i 2024 2023 2022
2024
Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 1,293.63 1,123.71 840.64 561.64
ii. Lease Liabilities - 1.63 2.28 -

iii. Trade Payables**
(A) Total outstanding dues
of micro enterprise and 151.16 68.88 27.52 59.22
small enterprises
(B) Total outstanding dues
of creditors other than

micro enterprises and 386.17 287.94 395.54 283.07

small enterprises
iv. Other Financial Liabilities 73.73 33.19 34.12 37.94
b. Other Current Liabilities 413.37 394.00 389.84 483.26
c. Provisions 15.49 7.57 2.83 4.31
Total Liabilities 2,333.55 1,916.93 1,692.78 1,429.45
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,746.02 3,178.29 2,750.43 2,297.88

*Trade Receivables

Trade receivables increased from ¥367.89 million in Fiscal 2022 to ¥970.00 million in Fiscal 2024. This increase
is primarily due to the shift in the nature of contracts. Until March 31, 2022, all our contracts were of Item Rate
or Percentage Rate types, which typically had shorter trade receivable cycles. In Fiscal 2022, 100% of our revenue
from operations (construction project receipts) was generated through these contract types.

However, post Fiscal 2022, the projects awarded were mostly EPC contracts. In Fiscal 2024, EPC contracts
accounted for 62% of our total revenue from operations (construction project receipts). EPC projects generally
have a longer trade receivable cycle, as billing for executed work is often concentrated in the later stages of the
project.

Please refer Risk Factor 12 on page 57, elaborating the reasons for the extended trade receivables period and the
risks involved thereto. Further, please note that the classification of unbilled revenue under the head ‘Trade
Receivables’ is made in accordance requirement of ICAI guidance note on preparation of financial statement
under Division IT — IND AS Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

The increase in trade receivable cycle for Fiscal 2023, compared to earlier years, was on account of: (i) the
Company’s shift in the nature of contracts to EPC. Earlier all our contracts were of Item Rate or Percentage Rate
types, which typically had shorter trade receivable cycles. However, post Fiscal 2022, the projects awarded were
mostly EPC contracts. EPC projects generally have a longer trade receivable cycle, as billing for executed work
is often concentrated in the later stages of the project; (ii) the Company’s classification as a Class-1 Super
contractor with the CPWD, which enables us to tender for projects up to 26,500 million. With this eligibility to
bid higher value projects, our Company was able to secure longer duration contracts, which generally tend to have
higher milestones for revenue recognition as compared to the shorter projects executed in earlier years. As a result,
the trade receivables holding period for Fiscal 2023 was 116 days and it remained at a similar level of 117 days
in Fiscal 2024.

**Trade Payables
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Our Company’s trade payable holding period has steadily decreased in recent years, from 97 days in Fiscal 2022
to 83 days in Fiscal 2023, and further to 73 days in Fiscal 2024. Over the past three Fiscals, our Company has
focused on reducing the trade payable days to take advantage of favourable pricing from suppliers.
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SUMMARY OF RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(< in million, unless stated otherwise)

As at for the For the Fiscal Ended
nine months 2024 2023 2022
Particulars period ended
December 31,
2024
Income
I. Revenue from Operations* 2,546.57 3,321.62 2,333.45 2,857.09
II. Other Income 20.80 26.52 18.24 10.75
III. Total Income (I —II) 2,567.37 3,348.14 2,351.69 2,867.84
IV. Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 552.29 941.75 818.47 775.38
Purchase of Traded Goods 78.07 381.52 346.20 318.83
Changes in Inventory of work (13.08) (121.03) (3.94) (6.14)
-in-progress
Cost of Construction** 1,361.25 1,507.06 867.00 1,435.69
Employee Benefit Expense 74.87 77.98 50.42 58.01
Finance Costs*** 153.53 224.80 126.86 137.18
Depreciation and 27.76 38.37 32.03 32.48
Amortisation Expense
Other Expenses 100.16 87.82 47.27 46.21
Total expenses (IV) 2,334.86 3,138.27 2,284.31 2,797.65
V. Restated Profit/(Loss)
before share of Profit/(Loss) 209.88 67.38 70.19

of Joint Venture & 232.51
Associates (ITII-1V)
VI. Share in the Profit/(Loss) of
the Associate (net of tax) (0.02)
VII. Exceptional Items - - - -
VIII. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
(VII-VIII)
IX. Income Tax Expense
Current Tax Expense 56.90 58.71 18.80 21.12

Deferred Tax (2.30) (2.61) 0.02 (2.95)
Total Income Tax Expense 54.60 56.09 18.82 18.17

X. Restated Profit/(Loss) for 177.89 153.78 48.51 52.01
the year (IX-X)

XI. Other Comprehensive
Income/ Expenses
A. Ttems that will not be (1.21) (2.01) 1.84 1.42
reclassified to profit or loss
Income Tax on above 0.31 0.51 (0.46) (0.36)
B. Items to be reclassified to - - - -
Profit & Loss
Income Tax on above - - - -
Restated Other (0.90) (1.51) 1.38 1.06
Comprehensive Income for
the year, net of tax

XII. Restated Total

Comprehensive Income for 176.99 152.28 49.89 53.07
the year (XI+XII))

- (0.04) (0.01)

232.49 209.88 67.33 70.18
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As at for the For the Fiscal Ended

nine months 2024 2023 2022
Particulars period ended
December 31,
2024
XIII. Profit/(Loss) attributable to
Equity Sharcholders of 177.89 153.78 48.51 52.01
Holding Company
Non Controlling Interest - - - -
177.89 153.78 48.51 52.01
XIV. Other Comprehensive
Income attributable to
Equity Shareholders of
Holding Company (0.90) (1.51) 1.38 1.06
Non Controlling Interest - - - -
(0.90) (1.51) 1.38 1.06
Restated Total Comprehensive
Income attributable to
Equity Shareholders of Holding 176.99 152.28 49 89 5307
Company ' ' '
Non Controlling Interest - - - -
176.99 152.28 49.89 53.07
Earning per equity share
Equity shares of face value * 10/-
each
--- Basic (%) 4.14 3.58 1.13 1.21
--- Diluted () 4.14 3.58 1.13 1.21

*Revenue from operations (Fiscal 2023 to Fiscal 2024)

Further, during Fiscal 2024, our Company successfully completed several longstanding construction contracts
based on pre-COVID bids. In addition to these, we secured three new large projects, which together contributed
over 50% of our revenue from operations (construction project receipts) in Fiscal 2024.

Revenue from operations (Fiscal 2022 to Fiscal 2023)

The primary reason for this decrease in revenue of the Company from Fiscal 2022 to Fiscal 2023 is attributed to
the considerable delay in commencement of a work (“Project”) awarded in January 2022, by the Central Public
Works Department, Government of India, Executive Engineer and Superintending Engineer (Civil), Bangalore-
I, amounting to %¥1,429.22 million. The Project involved constructing an office building for the Income Tax
Department in Bengaluru, featuring 18 floors and comprehensive civil, electrical, and mechanical services,
including advanced systems for water supply, firefighting, HVAC, security, and external infrastructure. This was
executed on an Engineering, Procurement, and Construction (EPC) basis. The delay was primarily due to the late
receipt of statutory approvals from the concerned authority. The Company generated a turnover of only 337.26
million from the said Project in Fiscal 2023, while it had anticipated a turnover of around ¥500.00 million.

**Cost of Construction

The cost of construction primarily consists of expenses incurred at our project sites towards electricity, power,
and water charges, generator running expenses, wages and sub-contractors cost, and project construction
consultancy. Additionally, it covers repair and maintenance of plant and machinery, site maintenance and security

expenses, as well as hiring charges for construction equipment.

The cost of construction decreased by 39.61% from X 1,435.69 million in Fiscal 2022 to ¥ 867.00 million in Fiscal
2023 and increased by 73.82% from X867.00 million in Fiscal 2023 to %¥1,507.06 million in Fiscal 2024.
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The fluctuation in cost of construction depends on portions of our projects to various sub-contractors, who are
responsible for providing for their own supplies of labour with raw materials or without raw material. Our
arrangements with our various subcontractors are based on item-rate contracts, with rates calculated on a basis
that will ensure predetermined margins.

***Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased by 77.20% from 3126.86 million in Fiscal 2023 to 3224.80 million in Fiscal 2024
primarily due an increase in interest on Borrowings by 64.39% from %91.18 million in Fiscal 2023 to 3149.89
million in Fiscal 2024, an increase in interest on advances by 494.39% from Z7.82 million in Fiscal 2023 to 346.46
million in Fiscal 2024 on account of interest paid on mobilisation advances. This was partially offset by a decrease
in processing and commission charges by 4.63% from X 27.17 million in Fiscal 2023 to ¥ 25.91 million in Fiscal
2024 and in other borrowings and finance cost 8.75% from % 0.41 million in Fiscal 2023 to % 0.38 million in Fiscal
2024. The Company, in line with its core business, undertakes Engineering Procurement and Construction
(“EPC”) projects, which requires high working capital requirements on account of high deployment of funds and
longer trade receivables cycle. Hence, the overall increase in finance cost is on account of increase in mobilisation
advances and increase in quantum of banking loan facilities.
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SUMMARY OF RESTATED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(< in million, unless stated otherwise)

As at for the For the Fiscal Ended
nine months 2024 2023 2022
. period
Particulars ended
December
31, 2024
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Net Profit before tax and extraordinary items 232.49 209.88 67.33 70.18
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 27.76 38.37 32.03 32.48
Profit on sale of Property Plant & Equipment (1.66) (0.16) (1.92) -
Liabilities written back (1.76)
Provision for maintenance 1.98
Loss on sale of Property Plant & Equipment - - - 4.68
Finance cost 153.53 222.56 126.24 136.62
Rental Income from Investment Property (2.23) (2.98) (0.71) -
Interest Income (12.96) (20.12) (11.47) (7.39)
Re-Measurement (Profit) / Loss on Defined 0.91) (1.51) 1.38 1.06
Benefit Plan
Provision for Bad Debts and Expected 7.09 6.12 - -
Credit Loss (ECL)
Share in (Profit)/ Loss of Associate (Net of 0.02 - 0.04 0.01
Tax)
Opefratlng Profit/(Loss) before working 403.34 452.16 212.92 237.65
capital changes
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ decrease in Trade Receivables (450.44) (295.62) (312.61) 249.21
Decrease/(increase) in Other Current Assets 26.98 105.50 (68.43) (66.65)
Decrease/(Increase) in Current Financial 4514 (72.19) 2811 (138.91)
Assets
Decrease/(Increase) in  Non  Current
Financial Assets (92.54) 112.24 (93.81) (22.29)
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories (168.42) (131.01) (3.37) (54.53)
;)Szzzase/(lncrease) in Other Non current 0.22 033 (0.56) 0.46
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Bank Balance* 32.99 (80.20) 13.69 (9.05)
Decrease/(increase) in  Current  Tax
Assets(Net) (14.29) 6.96 (6.16) (3.15)
Decrease/(Increase) in Long term provisions 0.99 0.88 (1.10) (0.06)
Decrease/(Increase) in Short term provisions 6.97 4.74 (1.48) (0.31)
](?]Zi)rease/(lncrease) in Deferred Tax Assets (2.58) (3.12) 0.49 (2.59)
Increase/(decrease) in Other Non Current
Financial Liabilities (3.85) 3.8 ) )
chr§a§§/(decrease) in Other Non Current (33.65) 56.57 155.40 4263
Liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payable 182.27 (66.25) 80.77 (114.10)
Increase/(decrease) in  Other Current
Financial Liabilities 40.54 (0.93) (3.82) (4.00)
Increase/(decrease) in  Other Current 19.37 417 (93.42) (22.03)

Liability
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As at for the For the Fiscal Ended

nine m-ogths 2024 2023 2022
. erio
Particulars I:,n ded
December
31, 2024
Cash Generated from operations 21.63 98.09 (93.40) 92.27
Direct Taxes paid / Refund (54.60) (56.09) (18.82) (18.17)
Net Cash from operating activities (32.99) 41.99 (112.22) 74.10
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Eg(ﬁ;(:;iznffom Sales of Property Plant & 220 0.18 401 2275
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment
(Including CWII;) Y qup (8.19) (116.22) (39.26) (20.91)
Rental Income from Investment Properties 2.23 2.98 0.71 -
Net Cash from Investing Activities (3.76) (113.06) (34.54) 1.84
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Payment of Lease Liability (1.63) (2.58) - -
Net Increase / Decrease in Short Term 169.93 283.07 279.00 20.39
Borrowing
Net Increase / Decrease in Long Term (35.02) (8.24) (16.60) (16.70)
Borrowing
Finance Cost (153.53) (222.26) (126.17) (136.62)
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares 44.62 - - 30.04
Interest Income 12.96 20.12 11.47 7.39
Net cash from Financing Activities 37.32 70.12 147.69 (95.51)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH 0.57 (0.95) 0.94 (19.57)
EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 1st April 2.03 2.98 2.04 21.61
(Opening Balance)
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at 31st 2.60 2.03 2.98 2.04
March (Closing Balance)
*Note:

Other Bank Balance pertains to Fixed Deposits (“FD "), which are held as margin monies by banks, for providing
bank guarantees and letters of credit to the Company for execution of its projects undertaken as its principal
business activity.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as “Globe Civil Projects Private Limited” at New Delhi, as a private limited company
under the Companies Act, 1956, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated May 22, 2002 issued by the Registrar of
Companies, N.C.T. of Delhi and Haryana, New Delhi. Thereafter, our Company was converted to a public limited
company, approved vide Shareholders’ resolution dated February 22, 2024, pursuant to which the name of our Company
was changed to “Globe Civil Projects Limited” and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name
on conversion to public limited company was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Central Processing Centre, Gurgaon,

Haryana dated June 4, 2024.

Company Registration Number and Corporate Identity Number

The registration number and corporate identity number of our Company are as follows:

(1) Corporate Identity Number: U45202DL2002PLC115486

(i)
Registered and Corporate Office of our Company

Company Registration Number: 115486

Globe Civil Projects Limited
D-40, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-1,

New Delhi-110020, India

For details in relation to the changes in the registered office of our Company, please see “History and Certain Corporate
Matters- Changes in the Registered Office of our Company” on page 317.

Address of the Registrar of Companies

Our Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana, New Delhi, which is situated at the

following address:

The Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana at New Delhi

4t Floor, IFCI Tower,
61, Nehru Place
New Delhi-110019, India

Board of Directors

Our Board comprises of the following Directors, as on the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Name Designation DIN Address
Chairman and Whole- House no. B-123, Malviya Nagar, South Delhi,
Ved Prakash Khurana | iine Director 00513510 | Dethi- 110017, India
. . . House no. B-123, Malviya Nagar, South Delhi,
Nipun Khurana Managing Director 00513517 Delhi- 110017, India
. . . House no. B- 123, Malviya Nagar, South Delhi,
Vipul Khurana Managing Director 00513522 Delhi- 110017, India
2061, Engineers Apartments, Plot No- 11, Sector-
Dayal Sarup Sachdev Independent Director | 05111450 | 18A, Dwarka, N.S..T Dwarka, South West Delhi,
Delhi- 110078, India
.. . . . C-11-A, Block C, D.D.A Flats, Munirka, South West
Nalini Shastri Vanjani Independent Director | 00996242 Delhi, JN.U.. Delhi- 110067, India
. . . 3 C, Pocket — 10, Kohinoor Apartment, Kalkaji Extn,
Radhakrishna Nagarajan | Independent Director | 00701892 Kalkaji, South Delhi, Delhi- 110019, India
Rajender Pal Chandel Independent Director | 09523927 | H- No- 171-E, Pocket 4, Mayur Vihar Phase 1, East

Delhi, Delhi- 110091, India
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For further details of our Board of Directors, please see “QOur Management- Board of Directors” on page 325.
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Vineet Rattan is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. His contact details are set forth below:

Vineet Rattan

D-40, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I,

New Delhi-110020, India
Telephone: +91 11 46561560
Email: cs@globecivilprojects.com

Investor Grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, the BRLM or the Registrar to the Issue in
case of any pre-Issue or post-Issue related matters, such as non-receipt of letters of Allotment, non-credit of Allotted
Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account, non-receipt of refund orders or non-receipt of funds by
electronic mode, etc.

All Issue-related grievances, other than that of Anchor Investors, may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy
to the relevant Designated Intermediary(ies) to whom the Bid cum Application Form was submitted, giving full details
such as name of the sole or first Bidder, Bid cum Application Form number, Bidder’s DP ID, Client ID, UPI ID, PAN, date
of submission of the Bid cum Application Form, address of the Bidder, number of Equity Shares applied for, the name and
address of the Designated Intermediary(ies) where the Bid cum Application Form was submitted by the Bidder, the date
of Bid cum Application Form and ASBA Account number (for Bidders other than UPI Bidders) in which the amount
equivalent to the Bid Amount was blocked or the UPI ID (in case of UPI Bidders).

Further, the Bidder shall also enclose a copy of the Acknowledgment Slip or provide the acknowledgement number
received from the Designated Intermediaries in addition to the documents or information mentioned hereinabove. All
grievances relating to Bids submitted through Registered Brokers may be addressed to the Stock Exchanges with a copy
to the Registrar to the Issue. The Registrar to the Issue shall obtain the required information from the SCSBs for addressing
any clarifications or grievances of ASBA Bidders.

All Issue-related grievances of the Anchor Investors may be addressed to the BRLM, giving full details such as the name
of the sole or first Bidder, Anchor Investor Application Form number, Bidders’ DP ID, Client ID, PAN, date of the Anchor
Investor Application Form, address of the Bidder, number of the Equity Shares applied for, Bid Amount paid on submission
of the Anchor Investor Application Form and the name and address of the BRLM where the Anchor Investor Application
Form was submitted by the Anchor Investor.

Book Running Lead Manager

Mefcom Capital Markets Limited

5% Floor, 77, Sanchi Building,

Nehru Place,

New Delhi-110019, India

Telephone: +91 11 4650 0500

Email: gcepl.ipo@mefcomcap.in

Investor Grievance ID: investor.grievance@mefcom.in
Website: www.mefcomcap.in

Contact Person: Akhil Mohod/ Sushant Sonawane
SEBI Registration number: INM000000016

Mefcom Capital Markets Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue, and accordingly, there is no inter-
se allocation of responsibilities in the Issue. The details of responsibilities of the BRLM are as follows:
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Sr.
No.

Activity

Capital structuring, positioning strategy and due diligence of the Company including the
operations/management/business plans/legal etc. Drafting and design of the DRHP, RHP and Prospectus
and of statutory advertisements and publicity material including media monitoring, corporate advertising,
brochure, etc. and filing of media compliance report, application form and abridged prospectus

Ensuring compliance with stipulated requirements and completion of prescribed formalities with the Stock
Exchanges, RoC and SEBI including finalisation of Prospectus and RoC filing.

Appointment of intermediaries- Banker(s) to the Issue, Sponsor Bank, Monitoring Agency, Registrar to
the Issue, advertising agency, Printer and other intermediaries, including co-ordination for agreements.

Domestic institutional marketing including banks/ mutual funds, preparation of publicity budget, and
allocation of investors for meetings and finalizing road show schedules.

Preparation of road show presentation and FAQs

International institutional marketing of the Issue, which will cover, inter alia:

¢ Finalising media, marketing, public relations strategy and publicity budget including list of frequently
asked questions at retail road shows

Finalising collection centres

Finalising application form

Finalising centres for holding conferences for brokers etc.

Follow - up on distribution of publicity; and

Issue material including form, RHP / Prospectus and deciding on the quantum of the Issue material

Non-Institutional and Retail marketing of the issue, which will cover, inter alia:

e  Formulating marketing strategies, preparation of publicity budget;

Finalise media and public relation strategy;

Finalising centres for holding conferences for stock brokers, investors, etc;

Finalising collection centres as per Schedule III of the SEBI ICDR Regulations; and

Follow-up on distribution of publicity and issue material including application form, red herring
prospectus, prospectus and brochure and deciding on the quantum of the issue material.

Managing anchor book related activities including anchor co-ordination, Anchor CAN, intimation of
anchor allocation and submission of letters to regulators post completion of anchor allocation, and
coordination with Stock Exchanges for anchor intimation, book building software, bidding terminals and
mock trading

Managing the book and finalization of pricing in consultation with Company

10.

Post bidding activities including management of escrow accounts, coordinate non-institutional allocation,
coordination with Registrar, SCSBs and Bankers to the issue, intimation of allocation and dispatch of
refund to Bidders, etc.

Post-Issue activities, which shall involve essential follow-up steps including allocation to Institutional
Investors including Anchor Investors, follow-up with Bankers to the Issue and SCSBs to get quick
estimates of collection and advising the Issuer about the closure of the Issue, based on correct figures,
finalisation of the basis of allotment or weeding out of multiple applications, listing of instruments,
dispatch of certificates or demat credit and refunds and coordination with various agencies connected with
the post-issue activity such as Registrar to the Issue, Bankers to the Issue, SCSBs including responsibility
for underwriting arrangements, as applicable.

Syndicate Members

Mefcom Securities Limited

Address: 5" Floor, 77, Sanchi Building,

Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019, India

Telephone: +91 011 46500500

Email: secretarial@mefcom.in/ invest@mefcom.in
Investor Grievance ID: investor.grievance@mefcom.in
Website: www.mefcom.in

Contact Person: Harshpal Singh Negi

SEBI Registration number: INZ000252932
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Legal Counsel to our Company as to Indian law

M/s. Crawford Bayley & Co.

State Bank Building, 4th Floor

NGN Vaidya Marg

Fort, Mumbai — 400 023

Mabharashtra, India.

Telephone: +91 22 2266 3353

Email: sanjay.asher@crawfordbayley.com

Statutory Auditors of our Company

Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants
H-20, LGF, Green Park Main,

New Delhi- 110016, India

Telephone: +011 26533626/ 41759467

Contact Person: Praveen Kumar Jain

Email: mail@jcandco.org

Firm Registration Number: 000129N

Peer Review Certificate Number: 016197

Changes in Statutory Auditors

Expect as disclosed below, there has been no change in our Statutory Auditors in the three years preceding the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus:

Particulars of statutory auditors Date of the change Reason for change

Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered September 30, 2024 Appointment for a term of five (5)
Accountants years i.e., April 1, 2024 till March 31,
H-20, LGF, Green Park Main, 2029

New Delhi- 110016, India

Telephone: +011 26533626/ 41759467
Contact Person: Praveen Kumar Jain
Email: mail@jcandco.org

Firm Registration Number: 000129N
Peer Review Certificate Number:
016197

Registrar to the Issue

KFin Technologies Limited

Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad, Rangareddy- 500032

Telangana, India

Telephone: +91 40 67162222/ 18003094001
Email: gepl.ipo@kfintech.com

Investor Grievance Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: www .kfintech.com

Contact Person: M. Murali Krishna

SEBI Registration No.: INR000000221

CIN: L72400TG2017PLC117649

Banker to the Issue
Escrow Collection Bank, Public Issue Bank, Sponsor Bank and Refund Bank
Axis Bank Limited

Axis House, 7™ Floor, C-2,
Wadia International Centre,
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Worli, Mumbai- 40025

Telephone: +91 22 43253669

Email: vishal.lade@axisbank.com

Website: www.axisbank.com

Contact Person: Vishal Lade

SEBI Registration number: INBI00000017
CIN: L65110GJ1993PLC020769

Bankers to our Company

HDFC Bank Limited

3" Floor, Ace Capitol, Tower B,
Sector-132, Noida- 201301,

Uttar Pradesh, India

Telephone: +91 8252803662
Website: www.hdfcbank.com
Contact person: Anish Kumar

Email: anish.kumarl3@hdfcbank.com

ICICI Bank Limited

E-568, Greater Kailash- I,

New Delhi- 110048, India
Telephone: +91 8527393601
Website: www.icicibank.com
Contact person: Kunal Sinha
Email: kunal.sinha@icicibank.com

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

2™ Floor, Epicah Mall,

Near Moti Nagar Metro Station, Moti Nagar,
New Delhi- 110015, India

Telephone: +91 9780624216

Website: www.kotak.com

Contact person: Ujwal Garg

Email: ujwal.garg@kotak.com

Canara Bank

Address: B-39, 1% Floor, Mid Corporate Branch,
Connaught Place,

Delhi-110001, India

Telephone: +91 7829420381

Website: www.canarabank.com

Contact person: Kajal Awasthi

Email: cb19042@canarabank.com

Designated Intermediaries
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of SCSBs notified by SEBI  for the ASBA  process is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35, or at such other website as
may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. A list of the Designated Branches of the SCSBs with which an ASBA Bidder
(other than UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism), not Bidding through Syndicate/Sub Syndicate or through a Registered
Broker, RTA or CDP may submit the Bid cum Application Forms, is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34, or at such other websites as
may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks and mobile applications enabled for UPI Mechanism
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In accordance with the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 and the SEBI ICDR
Master Circular, UPI Bidders bidding using the UPI Mechanism may only apply through the SCSBs and mobile
applications whose names appear on the website of SEBI, which may be updated from time to time. A list of SCSBs and
mobile applications, using the UPI handles, which are live for applying in public issues using UPI mechanism, is provided
as ‘Annexure A’ for SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 and specified on the
website of the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40 and
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=43 respectively, as updated from
time to time and at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks Branches

In relation to Bids (other than Bids by Anchor Investor and RIIs) submitted under the ASBA process to a member of the
Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the Specified Locations named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits
of Bid cum Application Forms from the members of the Syndicate is available on the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35) and updated from time to
time or any other website prescribed by SEBI from time to time. For more information on such branches collecting Bid
cum Application Forms from the Syndicate at Specified Locations, please see the website of the SEBI
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35, as updated from time to time
or any other website prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Registered Brokers

Bidders can submit ASBA Forms in the Issue using the stock broker network of the Stock Exchanges i.e., through the
Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. The list of the Registered Brokers eligible to accept ASBA Forms from Bidders
(other than RIIs), including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites
of the Stock Exchanges- BSE and the NSE at https://www.bseindia.com/ and https://www.nseindia.com, as updated from
time to time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as address,
telephone  number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites of the SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=10 and Stock Exchanges at
https://www.bseindia.com/Static/PublicIssues/RtaDp.aspx and
https://www.nseindia.com/products/consent/equities/ipos/asba-procedures.htm or any such other websites as updated from
time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as name and
contact details, is provided on the website of the Stock Exchanges at
http://www.bseindia.com/Static/Markets/Publiclssues/RtaDp.aspx? and
http://www.nseindia.com/products/content/equities/ipos/asba_procedures.htm, or any such other websites as updated from
time to time.

Experts
Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

(1) Our Company has received written consent dated June 14, 2025 from Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants
to include their name as required under section 26 of the Companies Act read with SEBI ICDR Regulations, in this
Red Herring Prospectus, and as an “expert” as defined under section 2(38) of the Companies Act to the extent and
in their capacity as our Statutory Auditors, and in respect of their (i) certificate on Key Performance Indicators dated
June 14, 2025; (ii) examination report dated June 14, 2025 on the Restated Consolidated Financial Information; and
(i1) their report dated June 14, 2025 on the statement of possible special tax benefits, included in this Red Herring
Prospectus and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. However, the
term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.
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(i)  Our Company has also received written consent dated September 25, 2024 from Umesh Ved & Associates,
Company Secretaries to include their name as required under section 26 of the Companies Act read with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, in this Red Herring Prospectus, and as an “expert” as defined under section 2(38) of the
Companies Act to the extent and in their capacity as secretarial expert in respect to their certificate dated September
25,2024.

The abovementioned consents have not been withdrawn as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Monitoring Agency

Our Company has in compliance with Regulation 41 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, appointed CARE Ratings Limited, a
monitoring agency prior to filing of this Red Herring Prospectus, for monitoring utilisation of the Gross Proceeds. For
details in relation to the proposed utilisation of proceeds from the Issue, please see “Objects of the Issue” on page 148.

Appraising Entity

None of the objects of the Issue for which the Net Proceeds will be utilised have been appraised by any agency.
Accordingly, no appraising entity has been appointed in the Issue.

Credit Rating

As this is an Issue consisting of only Equity Shares, there is no requirement to obtain credit rating.

IPO Grading

No credit rating agency registered with SEBI has been appointed in respect of obtaining grading for the Issue.

Debenture Trustees

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, there is no requirement to appoint a debenture trustee.

Green Shoe Option

No green shoe option is contemplated under the Issue.

Filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus

A copy of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been filed electronically through the SEBI Intermediary portal at
https://siportal.sebi.gov.in, as required under Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Master Circular. It has also been filed with SEBI at the following address:

Securities and Exchange Board of India

Corporation Finance Department, Division of Issues and Listing

SEBI Bhavan, Plot No. C4 A, ‘G’ Block,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),

Mumbai- 400051

Mabharashtra, India

Filing of the Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus

A copy of this Red Herring Prospectus, along with the material contracts and documents required to be filed under section
32 of the Companies Act, has been filed with the RoC, Delhi & Haryana, New Delhi and a copy of the Prospectus to be
filed under section 26 of the Companies Act, would be filed with the RoC, Delhi & Haryana, New Delhi at its office, and
through the electronic portal at https://www.mca.gov.in/content/mca/global/en/home.html.

Book Building Process

Book building, in the context of the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids from Bidders on the basis of this Red

Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Forms (and the Revision Forms) within the Price Band and the minimum
Bid Lot. The Price Band and the minimum Bid Lot which will be decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM,
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and if not disclosed in this Red Herring Prospectus, will be advertised in all editions of Financial Express (a widely
circulated English national daily newspaper), and all editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national daily
newspaper, Hindi also being the regional language of New Delhi, where our Registered Office is located), at least two
Working Days prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date and shall be made available to the Stock Exchanges, for the purpose
of uploading on their respective websites. Pursuant to the Book Building Process, the Issue Price shall be determined by
our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, after the Bid/Issue Closing Date, in accordance with applicable law. For
further details, please see “Issue Procedure’ on page 526.

All Bidders, except Anchor Investors, shall only participate in this Issue mandatorily through the ASBA process by
providing the details of their respective ASBA Account in which the corresponding Bid Amount will be blocked by
the SCSBs and Sponsor Banks, as the case may be. In addition to this, the RIIs, NIIs may participate through the
ASBA process, either by (i) providing the details of their respective ASBA Account in which the corresponding Bid
Amount will be blocked by the SCSBs; or (ii) using the UPI Mechanism. Anchor Investors are not permitted to
participate in the Issue through the ASBA process.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to withdraw or
lower the size of their Bids (in terms of the quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail
Individual Investors can revise their Bid(s) during the Bid/ Issue Period and withdraw their Bid(s) until the Bid/
Issue Closing Date. Further, Anchor Investors are not allowed to revise and withdraw their Bids after the Anchor
Investor Bidding Date. Allocation to QIBs (other than Anchor Investors) and Non-Institutional Investors will be on
a proportionate basis while allocation to Anchor Investors will be on a discretionary basis. For further details, please
see “Terms of the Issue”, “Issue Structure” and “Issue Procedure” on pages 515, 522 and 526respectively.

The Book Building Process under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Bidding process are subject to change from
time to time. Bidders are advised to make their own judgement about an investment through this process prior to
submitting a Bid in the Issue.

Bidders should note the Issue is also subject to: (i) filing of the Prospectus by our Company with the RoC and receipt of
final approval of the RoC; and (ii) obtaining final listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges, which our
Company shall apply for after Allotment as per the prescribed timelines under applicable law. For further details, please
see “Terms of the Issue” and “Issue Procedure” on pages 515 and 526 respectively.

Each Bidder, by submitting a Bid in the Issue, will be deemed to have acknowledged the above restrictions and the terms
of the Issue.

For further details on the method and procedure for Bidding, please see “The Issue”, “Issue Structure”’, “Issue
Procedure” and “Terms of the Issue” on pages 109, 522, 526 and 515respectively.

Ilustration of Book Building and Price Discovery Process

For an illustration of the Book Building Process and the price discovery process, please see “Issue Procedure” on page
526.

Underwriting Agreement

The Underwriting Agreement has not been executed as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. After the determination
of the Issue Price, but prior to the filing of the Prospectus with the RoC, our Company will enter into an Underwriting
Agreement with the Underwriters for the Equity Shares proposed to be offered through the Issue. The extent of underwriting
obligations and the Bids to be underwritten in the Issue shall be as per the Underwriting Agreement. It is proposed that
pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the obligations of the Underwriters will be several and will be subject
to certain conditions to closing, as specified therein.

The Underwriting Agreement is dated [e]. The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following
number of Equity Shares:

(The Underwriting Agreement has not been executed as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus and will be executed

after determination of the Issue Price and allocation of the Equity Shares, but prior to filing of the Prospectus with the
RoC. This portion has been intentionally left blank and will be filled in before the filing of the Prospectus with the RoC.)
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Name, Address, Telephone
Number and Email Address of
the Underwriters

[e] [e] [e]

Indicative Number of Equity Amount Underwritten (in
Shares to be Underwritten million)

The abovementioned underwriting commitment is indicative and will be finalised after determination of the Issue Price
and Basis of Allotment and will be subject to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

In the opinion of our Board (based on representations made to our Company by the Underwriters), the resources of the
Underwriters are sufficient to enable them to discharge their respective underwriting obligations in full. The Underwriters
are registered with SEBI under section 12(1) of the SEBI Act or registered as merchant bankers with SEBI or as brokers
with the Stock Exchange(s). Our Board/ IPO Committee, at its meeting held on [e], has accepted and entered into the
Underwriting Agreement mentioned above on behalf of our Company.

Allocation among the Underwriters may not necessarily be in proportion to their underwriting commitment set forth in the
table above. Notwithstanding the above table, the Underwriters shall be severally responsible for ensuring payment with
respect to the Equity Shares allocated to Bidders respectively procured by them, in accordance with the Underwriting
Agreement.

Subject to the applicable laws and pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the BRLM will be responsible for

bringing in the amount devolved in the event that the Syndicate Members do not fulfil their underwriting obligations.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, is set forth below.

(in 3, except share data or indicated otherwise)

Sr. . Aggregate Aggregate value
No. Particulars nominal value at Issue Price*
A. AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL®Y

65,000,000 Equity Shares of face value of 310/- each 650,000,000 [e]
B. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

BEFORE THE ISSUE

42,958,439 Equity Shares of face value of R10/- each 429,584,390
C. PRESENT ISSUE®

Issue of up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each, [®] [e]

aggregating up to X [@] million ®@®
D. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

AFTER THE ISSUE®

[e] Equity Shares of face value 210 each [o] [e]
E. SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT

Before the Issue Nil

After the Issue®” [e]

Notes:

*To be updated upon finalization of the Issue Price.

(0

2

For details in relation to the change in the authorised share capital of our Company in the last ten years, please see “History
and Certain Corporate Matters- Amendments to our Memorandum of Association in the last ten years” on page 317.

The Issue has been authorised by our Board pursuant to its resolution dated August 20, 2024 and by our Shareholders’ vide
special resolution dated August 21, 2024. Subsequently, our Board vide its resolution dated May 21, 2025 approved the revised
Issue size i.e., up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares.

Notes to the Capital Structure
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1.

(a)

Equity share capital

Share capital history of our Company

The following table sets forth the history of the equity share capital of our Company:

Date of
allotment

Number of
Equity
Shares
allotted

Face
value per
Equity
Share
®

Issue Price
per Equity
Share
including
premium ()

Form of
consideration

Reason/
Nature
allotment

of

Name of allottees along with the
number of Equity Shares allotted
to each allottee

Cumulative
Number of
Equity Shares

Cumulative Paid-
up Equity Share

Capital )

May 22, 2002

30,000

10

10

Cash

Initial
subscription to
the MoA

Allotment of 10,000 Equity Shares to
Ved Prakash Khurana, 10,000 Equity
Shares to Prabhu Dayal Sachdeva and
10,000 Equity Shares to Geeta
Khurana

30,000

300,000

October 30, 2002

210,000

10

10

Other
cash

than

Takeover of
partnership
firm- M/s Globe
Construction

Co.*

Allotment of 70,000 Equity Shares to
Ved Prakash Khurana, 70,000 Equity
Shares to Prabhu Dayal Sachdeva and
70,000 Equity Shares to Geeta
Khurana

240,000

2,400,000

October 30, 2002

480,000

10

10

Other
cash

than

Takeover of
partnership
firm- M/s Globe
Construction

Co.*

Allotment of 160,000 Equity Shares
to Ved Prakash Khurana, 160,000
Equity Shares to Prabhu Dayal
Sachdeva and 160,000 Equity Shares
to Geeta Khurana

720,000

7,200,000

October 01, 2005

240,000

10

Nil

Not applicable

Bonus issue in
the ratio of one
(1) Equity Share
for every three
3) Equity
Shares held

Allotment of 80,000 Equity Shares to
Ved Prakash Khurana, 80,000 Equity
Shares to Prabhu Dayal Sachdeva and
80,000 Equity Shares to Geeta
Khurana*

960,000

9,600,000

October 01, 2008

960,000

10

Nil

Not applicable

Bonus issue in
the ratio of one
(1) Equity Share
for every one
(1) Equity Share
held

Allotment of 320,000 Equity Shares
to Ved Prakash Khurana, 320,000
Equity Shares to Prabhu Dayal
Sachdeva and 320,000 Equity Shares
to Geeta Khurana

1,920,000

19,200,000
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Equity Shares
for every one
(1) Equity Share
held

Khurana, 15,101,840 Equity Shares
to Nipun Khurana, 160 Equity Shares
to Vimal Khurana, 1,188,000 Equity
Shares to Indubala Mukeshchand
Jain, 1,188,000 Equity Shares to
Palak Mukesh Jain, 1,584,000 Equity
Shares to Mukesh Chand Jain,
500,000 Equity Shares to Chanakya
Opportunities Fund I, 166,880 Equity
Shares to RPV Holdings Private
Limited, 83,360 Equity Shares to Raj
Family Trust* and 83,360 Equity
Shares to Harsh Pareshkumar Shah

Date of Number of Face Issue Price |Form of | Reason/ Name of allottees along with the| Cumulative | Cumulative Paid-
allotment Equity value per | per Equity |consideration | Nature of \[number of Equity Shares allotted| Number of up Equity Share
Shares Equity Share allotment to each allottee Equity Shares Capital )
allotted Share including
(€3) premium (3)
November 18, 400,000 10 10| Cash Further issue Allotment of 300,000 Ved Khurana 2,320,000 23,200,000
2008 and 100,000 Vipul Khurana
November 18, 12,500 10 400 | Cash Further issue Allotment of 12,500 Equity Shares to 2,332,500 23,325,000
2008 Dilip Kumar
December 15, 142,367 10 211 | Cash Rights issue Allotment of 19,637 Equity Shares to 2,474,867 24,748,670
2021 Ved Prakash Khurana and 122,730
Equity Shares to Vipul Khurana
July 09, 2024 52,100 10 960 | Cash Preferential Allotment of 31,250 Equity Shares to 2,526,967 25,269,670
allotment™** Chanakya Opportunities Fund I,
10,430 Equity Shares to RPV
Holdings Private Limited, 5,210 Raj
Family Trust** and 5,210 Equity
Shares to Harsh Pareshkumar Shah
July 20, 2024 40,431,472 10 Nil | Not Bonus issue in|Allotment of 5,434,032 Equity 42,958,439 429,584,390
applicable the ratio of|Shares to Ved Prakash Khurana,
sixteen (16)| 15,101,840 Equity Shares to Vipul

Note:

*We have been unable to trace the filing pertaining to (i) allotment of 240,000 Equity Shares issued on October 01, 2005, (ii) Slump Sale arrangement and valuation report for take-over of M/s.
Globe Construction Co.- a partnership firm. Accordingly, we have placed reliance on the RoC Search Report issued by Umesh Ved & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries dated September
25, 2024, on the statutory register, form filings and minutes. For details, please see “Risk Factors” on page 42.
**Shares held by trustee- Rakesh Baluram Lahoti for the benefit of Raj Family Trust.
***The proceeds of the preferential allotment dated July 9, 2024 have been utilised by our Company for working capital purposes.
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Our Company confirms that is in compliance with the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to issuance of its Equity Shares since incorporation of
the Company till the date of filing of the Red Herring Prospectus.
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(b)

Preference Share capital

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any outstanding preference shares.

2. Equity shares issued for consideration other than cash or by way of bonus issue

Except as detailed below, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares (i) by way of bonus issue; or (ii) for
consideration other than cash at any time, since incorporation.

Date of
allotment

No of

Equity
Shares

Face
value

®

Issue
price
per
equity
share

Q)

Reason/
Nature of
Allotment

Name of allottees

Form of
consideration

Benefits
accrued to
our
Company

October
30,2002

210,000

10

10

Takeover of
partnership
firm- M/s Globe
Construction

Co.

Allotment of 70,000 Equity
Shares to Ved Prakash
Khurana, 70,000 Equity
Shares to Prabhu Dayal
Sachdeva and 70,000 Equity
Shares to Geeta Khurana

Other than
cash

October
30, 2002

480,000

10

10

Takeover of
partnership
firm- M/s Globe
Construction

Co.

Allotment of 160,000 Equity
Shares to Ved Prakash
Khurana, 160,000 Equity
Shares to Prabhu Dayal
Sachdeva and 160,000 Equity
Shares to Geeta Khurana

Other than
cash

October
01, 2005

240,000

10

Nil

Bonus issue in
the ratio of one
) Equity
Share for every
three (3) Equity
Shares held

Allotment of 80,000 Equity
Shares to Ved Prakash
Khurana, 80,000 Equity
Shares to Prabhu Dayal
Sachdeva and 80,000 Equity
Shares to Geeta Khurana

Nil

October
01, 2008

960,000

10

Nil

Bonus issue in
the ratio of one
) Equity
Share for every
one (1) Equity
Share held

Allotment of 320,000 Equity
Shares to Ved Prakash
Khurana, 320,000 Equity
Shares to Prabhu Dayal
Sachdeva and 320,000 Equity
Shares to Geeta Khurana

Nil

July 20,
2024

40,431,472

10

Nil

Bonus issue in
the ratio of
sixteen (16)
Equity  Shares
for every one
1 Equity
Share held

Allotment of 5,434,032 Equity
Shares to Ved Prakash
Khurana, 15,101,840 Equity
Shares to Vipul Khurana,
15,101,840 Equity Shares to
Nipun Khurana, 160 Equity
Shares to Vimal Khurana,
1,188,000 Equity Shares to
Indubala Mukeshchand Jain,
1,188,000 Equity Shares to
Palak Mukesh Jain, 1,584,000
Equity Shares to Mukesh
Chand Jain, 500,000 Equity
Shares to Chanakya
Opportunities Fund I, 166,880
Equity Shares to RPV
Holdings Private Limited,
83,360 Equity Shares to Raj
Family Trust* and 83,360
Equity Shares to Harsh
Pareshkumar Shah

Nil
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*Shares held by trustee- Rakesh Baluram Lahoti for the benefit of Raj Family Trust.

Issue of Equity Shares out of revaluation reserves

Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of its revaluation reserves, since incorporation.

the Companies Act, 2013

Issue of Equity Shares pursuant to sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or sections 230 to 234 of

Our Company has not issued or allotted any Equity Shares pursuant to any schemes of arrangement approved under
sections 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or sections 230- 234 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Issue of Equity Shares at a price lower than the Issue Price during the preceding one year

Except as disclosed below, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares at a price lower than the Issue price,
during the one year immediately preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Names of allottees | Date  of | Reason/ Number of | Face Issue price | Form of | Whether the
allotment | Nature of | Equity value per Equity | consider | allottees are
of Equity | allotment Shares per Share (in %) | ation Promoters /
Shares allotted Equity members of

Share the Promoter
(inX) Group

Allotment of | July 20, | Bonus issue | 40,431,472 10 Nil | Not Yes, Ved

5,434,032 Equity | 2024 in the ratio applicabl | Prakash

Shares to Ved of sixteen e Khurana,

Prakash Khurana, (16) Equity Nipun

15,101,840 Equity Shares for Khurana,

Shares to Vipul every one Vipul

Khurana, (1) Equity Khurana are

15,101,840 Equity Share held our Promoters

Shares to Nipun and Vimal

Khurana, 160 Khurana is a

Equity Shares to member of our

Vimal  Khurana, Promoter

1,188,000 Equity Group.

Shares to Indubala
Mukeshchand Jain,
1,188,000 Equity
Shares to Palak
Mukesh Jain,
1,584,000 Equity
Shares to Mukesh

Chand Jain,
500,000 Equity
Shares to
Chanakya

Opportunities Fund
I, 166,880 Equity
Shares to RPV
Holdings Private
Limited, 83,360

Equity Shares to
Raj Family Trust*
and 83,360 Equity
Shares to Harsh
Pareshkumar Shah

*Shares held by trustee- Rakesh Baluram Lahoti for the benefit of Raj Family Trust.
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Issue of Equity Shares under employee stock option schemes
As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any employee stock options scheme.
Shareholding pattern of our Company

The table below presents the shareholding pattern of our Company, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:
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Shareholdi Number of
o .
Number of voting rights held in each class :sgs’u?;i: % Elclll;zer i(i]f El(::;ltzdShars:
Num Shareholdi | of securities Number g . pecged
o ., | full Equity Shares | otherwise
ber ngasa % of IX) of Equity .
of Numb total Shares conversion (XII) encumbered
artl | L Total number of underlyi L (XIIn
? Equity number  of | Equity Number of Voting Rights g ym convertible Number of Equity
Category Number of|” . | Shares X . | securities .
of Number of fully paid-u paid- underl Equity Shares outstandi o a Shares held in
Category Sharehold | oo PACUP |y M Shares held | (calculated ng Asa Asa | dematerialized
Sharehold Equity . | ying . . | percentage
@ ers Equi . as per convertibl . % of % of |form
er am) Shares held ty Deposi (VID= |SCRR, Clas Total o of diluted total total
o .
an ) Shar ;gergei AVYHV)+ |1957) As a|Class eg. s 2:3 % securities ]S‘:E::,Zy Numb | Equit | Numb | Equit (XIV)
s | p (VD) % of | (Equity ?(%t Total (A+B+ (including | © ital) er(@ |y er(a |y
held D) (A+B+C2) | Shares) hers 0 warrants) | <P Share Share
) XI)= s held s held
V) (VI (0.4 (VITYHX) ®) b)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
Promoters 4 37,865,239 - - 37,865,239 88.14 37,865,239 37,865,239 88.14 - - - - - - 37,865,239
and
(A) Promoter
Group
B Public 20 5,093,200 - 5,093,200 11.86 5,093,200 5,093,200 11.86 - - - - - - 5,093,200
®)
Non - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
© Promoter-
Non Public
Shares - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
underlying
€D depository
receipts
Shares held - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
by
€2 Employee
Trusts
Total (A)+ 24 42,958,439 - 42,958,439 100.00 42,958,439 -| 42,958,439 100.00 - - - - - - 42,958,439
B)+(©)
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Details of shareholding of the major Shareholders of our Company

(a)  As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has twenty-four Shareholders.
(b)  Set forth below are details of Shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company,
as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:
Sr. | Name of the Number of Equity Shares held of face Percentage of pre-Issue Equity
No. | Shareholder value of X10/- each Share capital (%)
1 Vipul Khurana 16,045,705 37.35
2 Nipun Khurana 16,045,705 37.35
3 Ved Prakash Khurana 5,773,659 13.44
4 Mukesh Chand Jain 1,683,000 3.92
5 Indubala Mukesh Jain 1,262,250 2.94
6 Palak Mukesh Jain 1,262,250 2.94
7 Chanakya 486,850 1.13
Opportunity Fund I
Total 4,25,59,419 99.07
(¢)  Set forth below are details of Shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company,
as of ten days prior to the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:
Sr. | Name of the Number of Equity Shares held of face Percentage of pre-Issue Equity
No. | Shareholder value of X10/- each Share capital (%)
1 Vipul Khurana 16,045,705 37.35
2 Nipun Khurana 16,045,705 37.35
3 Ved Prakash Khurana 5,773,659 13.44
4 Mukesh Chand Jain 1,683,000 3.92
5 Indubala Mukesh Jain 1,262,250 2.94
6 Palak Mukesh Jain 1,262,250 2.94
7 Chanakya 531,250 1.24
Opportunity Fund I
Total 42,603,819 99.17
(d)  Set forth below are details of Shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company,
as of one year prior to the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:
Sr. | Name of the Number of Equity Shares held of face Percentage of pre-Issue Equity
No. | Shareholder value of ¥10/- each Share capital (%)
1 Ved Prakash 339,627 13.72
Khurana
2 Vipul Khurana 943,865 38.14
3 Nipun Khurana 943,865 38.14
4 Mukesh Chand Jain 99,000 4.00
5 Indubala Mukesh 74,250 3.00
Jain
6 Palak Mukesh Jain 74,250 3.00
Total 2,474,857 100.00%
(e)  Set forth below are details of Shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up equity share capital of our Company

as of two years prior to the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:
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Sr. | Name of the Number of Equity Shares held of face Percentage of pre-Issue Equity

No. | Shareholder value of X10/- each Share capital (%)

1 Ved Prakash 292,987 11.84
Khurana

2 Vipul Khurana 1,122,730 45.37

Nipun Khurana 1,000,000 40.41

Total 2,415,717 97.62

9. Shareholding of our Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management in our Company

Expect as disclosed below, none of our Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management hold any Equity
Shares of our Company:

Sr. | Name of the Director / Key Number of Equity Shares Percentage of Pre- Percentage of Post-
No. | Managerial Personnel / of face value X10/- each | Issue Equity Share Issue Equity Share
Senior Management capital (%) capital (%)*

1. | Ved Prakash Khurana 5,773,659 13.44 [e]

. | Nipun Khurana 16,045,705 37.35 [e]

3. | Vipul Khurana 16,045,705 37.35 [e]
Total 37,865,069 88.14 [e]

*To be updated at Prospectus stage

For further details, please see “Our Management- Shareholding of our Directors in our Company” and “Our
Management- Shareholding of our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of our Company” on
pages 325 and 325.

10. History of build-up of Promoters’ shareholding and lock-in of Promoters’ shareholding (including
Promoters’ contribution)

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters- Ved Prakash Khurana, Nipun Khurana and Vipul Khurana
collectively hold 37,865,069 Equity Shares in aggregate, equivalent to 88.14% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity
Share capital of our Company. All Equity Shares held by our Promoters are in dematerialised form, as on the date of this

Red Herring Prospectus.

(1) Build-up of our Promoters’ equity shareholding in our Company

Set forth below is the build-up of the equity shareholding of our Promoters, since incorporation of our
Company:

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)

139



Percentage | Percentage
Cumulative | Date of pre- | of  post-
number of | when the Issue/ Issue Issue
Number of . 5 Face value | Transfer/ 5 5
eSO Equity Shares Equity Equity er Acquisition | Nature of Equity Equity
allotment/ quity Shares Shares per d . . Nature of Transaction Share Share
allotted/ Equity price per | consideration . q
transfer were . capital of | capital of
transferred Share ) | Equity
made Share () the the
fully paid- Company | Company
up (%) (%)
Ved Prakash Khurana
May 22, 10,000 10,000 | May 22, | 10 10 Cash Initial subscription to the MoA 0.02 [e]
2002 2002
October 70,000 80,000 | October 10 10 Other than Allotment of 70,000 Equity Shares 0.16 [e]
30, 2002 30,2002 cash pursuant to takeover of partnership
firm- M/s. Globe Construction Co.
October 160,000 240,000 | October 10 10 Other than Allotment of 160,000 Equity 0.37 [e]
30, 2002 30, 2002 cash Shares pursuant to takeover of
partnership firm- M/s. Globe
Construction Co.
October 80,000 320,000 | October 10 Not Not Allotment of 80,000 Equity Shares 0.19 [e]
01, 2005 01, 2005 applicable applicable pursuant to Bonus issue
October 320,000 640,000 | October 10 Not Not Allotment of 320,000 Equity 0.74 [e]
01, 2008 01, 2008 applicable applicable Shares pursuant to Bonus issue
November 300,000 940,000 | November | 10 10 Cash Allotment of 300,000 Equity 0.70 [e]
18, 2008 18, 2008 Shares pursuant to further issue
March 23, (620,000) 320,000 | March 23, | 10 Not Gift Transfer of 620,000 Equity Shares (1.44) [e]
2013 2013 applicable to Nipun Khurana by way of gift
December 19,637 339,637 | December | 10 211 Cash Allotment of 19,637 Equity Shares 0.05 [e]
15,2021 15,2021 pursuant to Rights issue
May 26, (23,325) 316,312 | May 26, | 10 Not Gift Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares to (0.05) [e]
2022 2022 applicable Subhash Chandra Pahwa by way of
gift
May 26, (23,325) 292,987 | May 26, | 10 Not Gift Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares to (0.05) [e]
2022 2022 applicable Surbhi Khurana by way of gift
January 23,325 316,312 | January 10 Not Gift Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares 0.05 [e]
18,2024 18,2024 applicable from Subhash Chandra Pahwa by
way of gift
January 23,325 339,637 | January 10 | Not Gift Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares 0.05 [e]
18, 2024 18,2024 applicable from Shanti Pahwa by way of gift
January (10) 339,627 | January 10 | Not Gift Transfer of 10 Equity Shares to | Negligible [e]
18,2024 18,2024 applicable Vimal Khurana by way of gift
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Percentage | Percentage
Cumulative | Date of pre- | of  post-
number of | when the Issue/ Issue Issue
Number of . 5 Face value | Transfer/ 5 5
eSO Equity Shares Equity Equity er Acquisition | Nature of Equity Equity
allotment/ quity Shares Shares per 4 . . Nature of Transaction Share Share
allotted/ Equity price per | consideration . q
transfer were . capital of | capital of
transferred Share ) | Equity
made Share () the the
fully paid- Company | Company
up (%) (%)
July 20, 5,434,032 5,773,659 | July 20, 10 | Not Not Allotment of 5,434,032 Equity 12.65 [e]
2024 2024 applicable applicable Shares pursuant to Bonus issue
Sub-total 13.44 [e]
(A) 5,773,659
Nipun Khurana
March 23, 380,000 380,000 | March 23, | 10 Not Gift Transfer of 380,000 Equity Shares 0.88 [e]
2013 2013 applicable from Geeta Khurana by way of gift
March 23, 620,000 1,000,000 | March 23, | 10 Not Gift Transfer of 620,000 Equity Shares 1.44 [e]
2013 2013 applicable from Ved Prakash Khurana by way
of gift
August 29, (56,135) 943,865 | August29, | 10 269 Cash Transfer of 56,135 Equity Shares to (0.13) [e]
2023 2023 Mukesh Chand Jain
July 20, 15,101,840 | 16,045,705 | July 20, | 10 Not Not Allotment of 15,101,840 Equity 35.15 [e]
2024 2024 applicable applicable pursuant to Bonus issue
Sub-total 16,045,705 - ; ; 37.35 [e]
B)
Vipul Khurana
November 100,000 100,000 | November 10 10 | Cash Allotment of 100,000 Equity 0.23 [e]
18, 2008 18, 2008 Shares
January 640,000 740,000 | January 10 10 | Cash Transfer of 640,000 Equity Shares 1.49 [e]
18,2012 18,2012 from Prabhu Dayal Sachdeva
March 23, 260,000 1,000,000 | March 23, 10 Not | Cash Transfer of 260,000 Equity Shares 0.61 [e]
2013 2013 applicable from Geeta Khurana
December 122,730 1,122,730 | December 10 211 | Cash Allotment of 122,730 Equity 0.29 [®]
15,2021 15,2021 Shares pursuant to Rights issue
August 29, (74,250) 1,048,480 | August 29, 10 269 | Cash Transfer of 74,250 Equity Shares to (0.17) [®]
2023 2023 Palak Mukesh Jain
August 29, (74,250) 974,230 | August 29, 10 269 | Cash Transfer of 74,250 Equity Shares to (0.17) [e]
2023 2023 Indubala Mukeshchand Jain
August 29, (30,365) 943,865 | August 29, 10 269 | Cash Transfer of 30,365 Equity Shares to (0.07) [e]
2023 2023 Mukesh Chand Jain
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Percentage | Percentage
Cumulative | Date of pre- | of  post-
Issue/
number of | when the Issue Issue
Number of . 5 Face value | Transfer/ 5 5
eSO Equity Shares Equity Equity er Acquisition | Nature of Equity Equity
allotment/ q Shares Shares per d . . Nature of Transaction Share Share
allotted/ Equity price per | consideration . q
transfer were . capital of | capital of
transferred Share ) | Equity
made Share () the the
fully paid- Company | Company
up (%) (%)
July 20, 15,101,840 | 16,045,705 | July 20, 10 Not | Not Allotment of 15,101,840 Equity 35.15 [e]
2024 2024 applicable | applicable pursuant to Bonus issue
Sub-total [e]
16,045,705 - - - - 37.35
©
Total 37,865,069 - ) ) ) [e]
(A+B+C) 88.14
(il))  All Equity Shares held by our Promoters were fully paid-up on the respective dates of allotment of such Equity Shares. As on the date of this Red Herring

(iii)

(iv)

Prospectus, none of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are subject to any pledge. Our Promoters do not hold any preference shares, as on the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus.

Except as stated above under “Build-up of Promoters’ equity shareholding in our Company ”, none of the members of our Promoter Group, our Promoters, our
Directors, or any of their respective relatives, as applicable, have purchased or sold any securities of our Company during the period of six months immediately
preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of our Promoter Group, our Directors and/or their relatives have financed the
purchase of Equity Shares of our Company, by any other person (other than in the normal course of business of the financing entity), during the six months
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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(v)  Shareholding of our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group
Set forth below is the equity shareholding of our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group as on the
date of this Red Herring Prospectus:
Sr. |[Name Pre-Issue Equity Share capital Post-Issue Equity Share capital*
No. Number of Percentage of | Number of Equity | Percentage of
Equity Shares of | Equity Share |Shares of face|Equity Share
face value of T | capital (%) value of X 10 each | capital (%)
10 each
Promoters
1 |Ved Prakash 5,773,659 13.44 [e] [e]
Khurana
2 | Nipun Khurana 16,045,705 37.35 [e] [eo]
3 | Vipul Khurana 16,045,705 37.35 [e] [o]
Total (A) 37,865,069 88.14 [e] [e]
Promoter Group
1 | Vimal Khurana 170 Negligible [e] [o]
Total (B) 170 Negligible [e] [e]
Total (A) + (B) 37,865,239 88.14 [e] [e]
*To be updated at Prospectus stage
# Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment
11.  Lock-in requirements
(1) Details of minimum Promoters’ contribution locked in for eighteen months
(a)  Pursuant to regulations 14 and 16 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, an aggregate of 20% of the fully
diluted post-Issue Equity Share capital of our Company held by the Promoters, shall be locked in
for a period of eighteen months as minimum Promoters’ contribution (“Minimum Promoters’
Contribution”) from the date of Allotment. Our Promoters’ shareholding in excess of the Minimum
Promoters’ Contribution shall be locked in for a period of six months from the date of Allotment.
(b)  The Promoters have given consent pursuant to their letters dated [e], to include such number of
Equity Shares held by them, in aggregate, as may constitute 20% of the fully diluted post-Issue
Equity Share capital of our Company, as Minimum Promoters’ Contribution.
(¢)  Set forth below are the details of Equity Shares that will be locked-in for eighteen months as
Minimum Promoters’ Contribution from the date of Allotment*:
Name of the | Number | Number | Date of | Face Allotment/ Nature of | Dateup | % of | % of
Promoter of Equity | of Equity | allotmen t | value Acquisition Transactio to fully fully
Shares Shares of Equity | per price per | n which diluted diluted
held locked- Shares/ Equity | Equity Share the pre- post-
in® Transfer of | Share | (%) Equity Issue Issue
Equity ® Shares paid-up | paid-up
Shares and are capital capital
when made subject
Fully to lock-
Paid-up / in
Transfer
[e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e]
[e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e]
[e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e]
Total [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e]
(d)  Our Promoters have agreed not to dispose of, sell, transfer, charge, pledge or otherwise encumber

in any manner, the Minimum Promoter’s Contribution from the date of filing of this Red Herring
Prospectus, until the expiry of the lock-in period specified above, or for such other time as required
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

under SEBI ICDR Regulations, except as may be permitted, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

(e)  Our Company undertakes that the Equity Shares that are being locked-in are not and will not be,
ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoters’ contribution in terms of regulation 15 of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations. In this connection, we confirm the following:

(1) The Equity Shares offered for Minimum Promoters’ Contribution do not include Equity
Shares acquired during the three immediately preceding years before filing of the Red
Herring Prospectus (a) for consideration other than cash and revaluation of assets or
capitalisation of intangible assets involved in such transactions; or (b) which have resulted
from bonus issue by utilisation of revaluation reserves or unrealised profits of our Company
or from bonus issue against Equity Shares which are otherwise ineligible for computation of
Minimum Promoters’ Contribution;

(il))  The Minimum Promoters’ Contribution does not include any Equity Shares acquired during
the during the one immediately preceding year, at a price lower than the price at which the
Equity Shares are being offered to the public in the Issue;

(i)  Our Company has not been formed by conversion of one or more partnership firms or limited
liability partnership firm and there is no change in management;

(iv)  The Equity Shares forming part of the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution are not pledged
with any creditor.

Details of Equity Shares locked-in for six months

Except for the Equity Shares held by Chanakya Opportunities Fund I (a Category II AIF, registered with
SEBI) which will be locked in for six (6) months from the date of purchase, the entire pre-Issue Equity
Share capital of our Company (excluding those Equity Shares forming part of the Minimum Promoters’
Contribution) (“Promoters’ Six month Lock-in") shall be locked-in for a period of six (6) months from
the date of Allotment or such other minimum lock-in period as may be prescribed under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Details of Equity Shares locked-in for six months

The entire pre-Issue Equity Share capital of our Company (excluding the Minimum Promoters’
Contribution and Promoters’ Six month Lock-in) will be locked-in for a period of six (6) months from the
date of Allotment.

Lock-in of Equity Shares Allotted to Anchor Investors

Fifty percent of the Equity Shares Allotted to each of the Anchor Investors in the Anchor Investors Portion
shall be locked-in for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of Allotment and the remaining 50% shall
be locked-in for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of Allotment.

Recording on non-transferability of Equity Shares locked-in

As required under Regulation 20 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall ensure that the details
of the Equity Shares locked-in are recorded by the relevant Depository.

Other requirements in respect of lock-in

Pursuant to regulation 21 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the locked-in Equity Shares held by our
Promoters (as mentioned above) may be pledged as a collateral security for a loan granted by a scheduled
commercial bank or a public financial institution or a systemically important non-banking finance company
or a housing finance company, subject to the following:

(a) Ifthe Equity Shares are locked-in in terms of sub-regulation (a) of Regulation 16(1) of the SEBI ICDR

Regulations, the loan has been granted for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects of the
Issue and the pledge of Equity Shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan;
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(b) Ifthe Equity Shares are locked-in in terms of sub-regulation (b) of Regulation 16(1) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and the pledge of Equity Shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

Provided that such lock-in shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall
not be eligible to transfer the Equity Shares till the lock-in period stipulated in the SEBI ICDR Regulations
has expired.

Pursuant to regulation 22 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and
locked-in, may be transferred to another Promoter or any person of our Promoter Group or to a new
promoter, subject to continuation of lock-in in the hands of transferees for the remaining period and
compliance of SEBI Takeover Regulations, as applicable.

Further, in terms of regulation 22 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares held by persons other
than our Promoters prior to the Issue and locked-in for a period of six (6) months, may be transferred to
any other person holding Equity Shares which are locked-in along with the Equity Shares proposed to be
transferred, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period
and compliance with the SEBI Takeover Regulations, as applicable.

12.  Except for any Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue, there is no proposal or intention,
negotiations and consideration of our Company to alter its capital structure, within a period of six months
from the Bid/Issue Opening Date, by way of split or consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares,
or issue of specified securities on a preferential basis or issue of bonus or rights or by way of further public
offer of Equity Shares (including issue of securities convertible into or exchangeable for, directly or
indirectly into Equity Shares). However, if our Company enters into acquisitions, joint ventures or other
arrangements, our Company may, subject to necessary approvals, consider raising additional capital to
fund such activity or use Equity Shares as consideration for acquisitions or participation in such joint
ventures or other arrangements.

13.  There will be no further issue of Equity Shares whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential
allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from filing of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus with SEBI until the Equity Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchanges or refund
of application monies other than in connection with the Issue.

14.  All Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue shall be fully paid-up at the time of Allotment and there are
no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

15.  As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the BRLM- Mefcom Capital Markets Limited, and its
associates (as defined under the SEBI Merchant Bankers Regulations), do not hold any Equity Shares of
our Company. However, the BRLM and its associates may engage in the transactions with, and perform
services for our Company in the ordinary course of business or may in the future engage in commercial
banking and investment banking transactions with our Company for which they may in the future receive
customary compensation.

16.  Details of price at which specified securities were acquired in the three years preceding the date of
this Red Herring Prospectus

The details of the price at which specified securities were acquired in the three years preceding the date of
this Red Herring Prospectus, by our Promoters, Promoter Group and Shareholders with the right to
nominate a director or with other rights, are disclosed below:

Sr. Date of acquisition | Number of | Face Nature of acquisition Acquisition
No. / Equity value price per
allotment/Transfer Shares (in %) Equity
of the Equity acquired/ Share* (in
Shares transferred %)
Promoters
Ved Prakash Khurana
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares to .
! May 26, 2022 (23,325) | 10| g\ bhash Chandra Pahwa by way of gift Nil

145



Sr. | Date of acquisition | Number of | Face Nature of acquisition Acquisition
No. / Equity value price per
allotment/Transfer Shares (in%) Equity
of the Equity acquired/ Share* (in
Shares transferred %)
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares to .
2 May 26,2022 (23,325) | 10 | g\ iphi Khurana by way of gift Nil
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares from .
3 January 18, 2024 23,325 10 Shanti Pahwa by way of gift Nil
Transfer of 23,325 Equity Shares from .
4 | January 18,2024 23,325 1 101 g\ bhash Chandra Pahwa by way of gift Nil
Transfer of 10 Equity Shares to Vimal .
5 January 18, 2024 (10) 10 Khurana by way of gift Nil
6 July 20, 2024 5,434,032 10 Allotment of 5,434,032 Equity Shares Nil
pursuant to Bonus Issue
Nipun Khurana
Transfer of 56,135 Equity Shares to
1 August 29, 2023 (56,135) 10 Mukesh Chand Jain 269
) July 20, 2024 15,101,840 10 Allotment of 1.5,101,840 Equity Nil
pursuant to Bonus issue
Vipul Khurana
10 | Transfer of 74,250 Equity Shares to
1 August 29, 2023 (74,250) Palak Mukesh Jain 269
10 | Transfer of 74,250 Equity Shares to
2 August 29, 2023 (74,250) Indubala Mukesh Chand Jain 269
10 | Transfer of 30,365 Equity Shares to
3 August 29, 2023 (30,365) Mukesh Chand Jain 269
4 July 20, 2024 15,101,840 10 | Allotment of 15,101,840 Equity Nil
Shares pursuant to Bonus Issue
Promoter Group
Vimal Khurana
Transfer of 10 Equity Shares from Ved .
1 August 29, 2023 10 10 Khurana by way of gift Nil
) July 20, 2024 160 10 Allotment of 169 Equity Shares Nil
pursuant to Bonus issue

*A4s certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, the Company does not have any shareholders entitled with right to
nominate Directors or any other rights.

17.  Our Company shall ensure that all transactions in the Equity Shares by our Promoters and the members of
our Promoter Group during the period between the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus with SEBI
and the date of closure of the Issue shall be reported to the Stock Exchanges within twenty-four hours of
such transactions.

18.  Our Company, Directors and the Book Running Lead Manager have not entered into any buy-back
arrangements for the purchase of specified securities of our Company being offered through the Issue.

19.  Our Company has no outstanding warrants, options to be issued or rights to convert debentures, loans or
other convertible instruments into, or which would entitle any person any option to receive Equity Shares
of our Company, as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus

20.  There shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law. Our
Company will comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from time

to time.

21.  The Promoters and members of our Promoter Group will not participate in the Issue and will not receive
any proceeds from the Issue.
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22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

No person connected with the Issue, including, but not limited to, the Book Running Lead Manager, the
members of the Syndicate, our Company, our Directors, our Promoters, members of our Promoter Group,
shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner, whether in cash or kind or services or
otherwise to any Bidder for making a Bid, except for fees or commission for services rendered in relation
to the Issue.

Neither the (i) BRLM or any associate of the BRLM (other than the Mutual Funds sponsored by entities
which are associate of the BRLM or insurance companies promoted by entities which are associates of the
BRLM or AIFs sponsored by entities which are associates of the BRLM or FPIs (other than individuals,
corporate bodies and family offices) nor (ii) pension funds sponsored by entities which are associates of
the BRLM, can apply in the Issue. Further, no person related to our Promoters or members of our Promoter
Group shall apply in the Issue under the Anchor Investors Portion.

Except as disclosed in this section, our Company has not undertaken any public issue of securities or any
rights issue of any kind or class of securities in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations, since its incorporation.

The Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares, as on the date of this
Red Herring Prospectus. The Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue shall be fully paid-up at the
time of Allotment.

Our Company is in compliance with the Companies Act, 1956 and/or the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable, with respect to the issuances of securities from the date of incorporation of our Company,
as applicable, until the date of filing of this Red Herring Prospectus.

The public shareholders of the Company are not related to the directors/ promoters/ promoter group/ group
companies/ any other entities controlled or influenced by the promoters or directors of the Company; and

The public shareholders are not related to each other in any manner, save and except (i) Mukesh Chand
Jain, Indubala Mukesh Jain and Palak Mukesh Jain (being family members); and (ii) Harsh Paresh Shah
and Hanuman Ingrow LLP (where Harsh Paresh Shah is a designated partner).

No Equity Shares of our Company held by our Promoters, members of our Promoter Group have been
pledged.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Issue comprises of an issue of up to 16,760,560 Equity Shares, aggregating up to X [e] million. The proceeds
of the Issue, after deducting the Issue related expenses, are estimated to be X [@] million (“Net Proceeds”).

Objects of the Issue
Our Company proposes to utilise the Net Proceeds from the Issue towards the following objects:

The net proceeds of the Issue, i.e., gross proceeds of the Issue less the Issue expenses apportioned to our Company
(“Net Proceeds”) are proposed to be utilised for the following objects:

1. Funding working capital requirements of our Company;
2. Funding capital expenditure requirements towards purchase of equipment/machineries; and
3. General corporate purposes.

(Collectively, referred to herein as the “Objects”).

The main objects and objects incidental and ancillary to the main objects as set out in the Memorandum of
Association enable us: (i) to undertake our Company’s existing business activities; and (ii) to undertake the
activities proposed to be funded from the Net Proceeds. Further, our Company expects to receive the benefits of
listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges, including enhancement of its visibility and brand name
amongst our existing and potential customers and creation of a public market for its Equity Shares.

Net Proceeds

The details of the Net Proceeds from the Issue are summarised in the table below:

(< in million)
Particulars Estimated amount
Gross proceeds from the Issue [e]
(Less) Estimated Issue related expenses® [o]
Net Proceeds [o]

@) To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus at the time of filing with the RoC.
2 Please see “Issue Expenses” on page.161

Utilization of Net Proceeds
The Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilised in the following manner:

(< in million)

Particulars Amount
Funding working capital requirements of our Company 750.00
Capital expenditure towards purchase of construction equipment/machineries 142.55
General corporate purposes'V® [e]

[Total Net Proceeds [e]

() To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC.
) The amount utilised for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds of the Issue, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Schedule of Implementation, Utilisation and Deployment of Net Proceeds

We propose to utilise and deploy the Net Proceeds towards the Objects in accordance with the estimated schedule
of implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below:

(< in million)
Sr. Particulars Amount to be Amount to be Amount to be
No. funded from | deployed from the | deployed from the
Net Proceeds Net Proceeds in Net Proceeds in
Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2026
1. | Funding working capital requirements of 750.00 Nil 750.00
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Sr. Particulars Amount to be Amount to be Amount to be
No. funded from | deployed from the | deployed from the
Net Proceeds Net Proceeds in Net Proceeds in
Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2026
our Company
2. | Capital expenditure towards purchase of 142.55 Nil 142.55

construction equipment/machineries
3. | General corporate purposes® [o] [o]
Total Net Proceeds [e] [e]
@ To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC.

) The amount utilised for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

[e]
[e]

The fund requirements, proposed deployment of funds and the intended use of the Net Proceeds set out above is
based on our current business plan, internal management estimates, valid quotations received from third parties,
current circumstances of our business, prevailing market conditions and other commercial considerations.
However, these fund requirements and proposed deployment of Net Proceeds have not been appraised by any
bank or financial institution. We may have to revise our funding requirement on account of various factors, such
as financial and market conditions, delay in procuring and operationalizing assets or necessary licenses and
approvals, competition, price fluctuations, interest rate fluctuations and other external factors, which may not be
within the control of our management. This may also entail rescheduling of the proposed deployment of the Net
Proceeds at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with applicable laws. Further, in the event,
the Net Proceeds are not utilized (in full or in part) for the objects of the Issue during the period stated above due
to any reason, including (i) the timing of completion of the Issue; (ii) market conditions outside the control of our
Company; and (iii) any other economic, business and commercial considerations, the remaining Net Proceeds
shall be utilized in subsequent periods as may be determined by our Company, in accordance with applicable
laws. This may also entail rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including
the expenditure for a particular purpose at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with applicable
law. For further details, please see “Risk Factors- Any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds would be
subject to certain compliance requirements, including prior shareholders’ approval”’ on page 87.

Subject to compliance with applicable laws, if the actual utilisation towards any of the Objects, as set out above,
is lower than the proposed deployment, such balance will be used towards any other Object including general
corporate purposes, provided that the total amount to be utilised towards general corporate purposes will not
exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In case of a shortfall in raising
requisite capital from the Net Proceeds towards meeting the Objects of the Issue, we may explore a range of
options including utilising our internal accruals, any additional equity or debt arrangements or both. We believe
that such alternate arrangements would be available to fund any such shortfalls. Further, in case of any variations
in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for the purposes set forth above, increased fund requirements for a
particular purpose may be financed by surplus funds, including from internal accruals, if any, available in respect
of the other purposes for which funds are being raised in the Issue. To the extent our Company is unable to utilise
any portion of the Net Proceeds towards the aforementioned Objects, as per the estimated schedule of deployment
specified above, our Company shall deploy the Net Proceeds in subsequent Fiscals towards the aforementioned
Objects as may be determined by our Company, in accordance with applicable law. Our Company may also utilise
any portion of the Net Proceeds, towards the aforementioned Objects of the Issue, ahead of the estimated schedule
of deployment specified above

Based on the anticipated timeline for the Issue and ongoing project activities in Fiscal 2025, the Company expects
to meet its working capital needs through internal accruals in the last quarter of Fiscal 2025. However, as the
operations grow, working capital requirements are expected to increase in Fiscal 2026. To meet this rise, the
Company plans to use IPO proceeds to ensure adequate liquidity and operational continuity.

Means of finance

The fund requirements for the Objects are proposed to be met from the Net Proceeds and our internal accruals.
Accordingly, we confirm that there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable
means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the Fresh

Issue and internal accruals as required under Regulation 7(1)(e) the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Details of the Objects
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The details of the Objects of the Issue are set out below:

1.

Funding working capital requirements of our Company

Our Company proposes to utilize T750.00 million from the Net Proceeds in Fiscal 2026 towards funding its
working capital requirements. Basis our audited standalone financials, our revenue from operations has
changed from ¥1,972.98 million in Fiscal 2022 to ¥1,860.54 million in Fiscal 2023 and then increased to
%2,965.77 million in Fiscal 2024.

Our industry is highly working capital intensive and therefore growth in revenue entails growth in working
capital requirements. Basis our audited standalone financials, our working capital requirement has grown
from X 974.30 million in Fiscal 2022 to %1,279.09 million in Fiscal 2023 and further to ¥1,706.16 million in
Fiscal 2024. Our Company is further estimating a growth in its business in Fiscal 2025 and Fiscal 2026.

Our Company’s expertise lies in the construction project receipts business (EPC) and the Government’s
initiative in this sector may bring a wide array of business opportunities for our Company. The Order Book
of our Company for the nine months period ended December 31, 2024 was X7,785.27 million. Moreover, our
Company is planning to bid not only for higher number of projects but also for higher value projects. In order
to execute higher value projects, the Company would be requiring higher working capital.

The year-wise breakup of the Order Book of the Company, number of projects (ongoing and completed),
revenue from operations (construction project receipts) and book to bill ratio for the nine months period ended
December 31, 2024 and the last 3 FYSs is as follows:

Particulars For the nine Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
months period
ended
December 31,
2024
Order Book (% in million) 7,785.27 9,808.56 9,378.00 3,090.50
A)
Number of  ongoing 13 12 12 11
projects
Number of completed 1 1 2 1
projects
Revenue from operations - 2,466.73 2,932.67 1,985.27 2,536.17
construction project
receipts® (¥ in million) (B)
Book to Bill Ratio” (A)/(B) 3.16 3.34 4.72 1.22

*Value of contracts executed during the year is basically Revenue from construction project receipts
#Book-to-Bill Ratio is calculated as the Order Book at a particular period divided by the Revenue from operations
(construction project receipts) for that period.

The Company holds a valid Class I (Super) license as an enlisted contractor, issued by the Superintending
Engineer (C&M), Directorate, CPWD (“License”). The said License is valid for a period of five (5) years
from date of order i.e., November 24, 2022. The License empowers the Company to bid for projects up to
26,500 million, without pre-qualification criteria.

For Non-CPWD works, the Company is eligible for project up to 34,000 million and based on its current
work order book, by the third quarter of 2025, the Company shall be eligible for projects up to 35,000 million.

Typically, a criterion for eligibility requires the completion of at least three (3) projects valued at more than
40% of the estimated tender value in the last seven (7) years. This requirement is generally applicable across
all government departments. The eligibility for tenders gradually increases with the successful completion of
higher-value projects. So, the Company will continue to become eligible for higher value tenders as they
successfully complete larger projects

We fund our working capital requirements in the ordinary course of business from our internal accruals and
financing from various banks and financial institutions. For details of borrowings and working capital
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facilities availed by us, please see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 490.

(a)  Basis of estimation of working capital requirement
The details of our Company’s working capital as at December 31, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022, derived from the audited standalone financial statements of our Company and source
of funding of the same are provided in the table below:
(< in million)
Sr. Particulars Amount as on Amount as Amount as Amount as
No December 31, on March on March on March
2024 31, 2024 31, 2023 31, 2022
1 | Current Assets
A | Trade Receivables 1,414.42 964.16 598.38 169.59
B | Raw Material 583.50 428.16 418.17 418.74
C | Work in Progress 521.08 508.00 386.92 374.50
D | Loans and Advances
Advance Tax & TDS recoverable 30.16 50.05 50.10 44.01
(net of provision)
Advance to Contractors 123.51 231.15 165.40 141.26
Advance to Suppliers 146.41 114.85 130.03 143.00
Other Loans & Advances 58.15 30.86 67.09 205.59
E | Other current assets
Interest accrued but not due on 1.07 1.75 2.41 2.03
deposits
Prepaid Expenses 8.00 8.21 7.90 5.96
Earnest Money Deposits 6.77 0.99 3.48 7.83
Security Deposits 133.39 81.59 41.34 68.96
Balance with Government 29.71 24.72 97.34 117.18
Authorities
Total current assets (A) 3,056.16 2,444.49 1,968.57 1,698.64
2 | Current Liabilities
A | Trade Payables 464.29 268.97 254.75 307.33
B | Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 108.18 176.07 132.98 80.02
Advance received for Joint Venture - 5.80 20.90 20.90
Projects
Retention Money/ Security 47.13 22.72 29.98 29.52
Deposits
Other statutory liabilities 21.86 15.22 8.15 5.48
Acceptances 279.94 240.84 234.40 261.33
Others 6.43 2.35 5.53 15.44
C | Short-term provisions 15.49 6.35 2.80 4.31
Total current liabilities (B) 943.35 738.33 689.48 724.33
3 | Net working capital
requirements (C = A-B) 2,112.82 1,706.16 1,279.09 974.30
4 | Existing funding pattern
Borrowings from banks, financial
instifutions  and ~ non-banking 123536 1,008.69 730.19 556.38
financial companies (including bill
discounting)
Internal accruals / Existing Net 77 46 697 47 548 90 417.93
Worth
Total 2,112.82 1,706.16 1,279.09 974.30

As certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.
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(b)

Future Working Capital

The details of our Company’s expected working capital requirements for the Fiscal 2025 and Fiscal 2026 and
funding of the same are as provided in the table below:

(< in million)
Sr. Particulars Estimated
No. Amount as Amount as
on on March 31,
March 31, 2026
2025
1 | Current Assets
A | Trade Receivables 1,075.24 1,263.61
B | Raw Material 496.58 775.74
C | Work in Progress 591.15 767.10
D | Loans and Advances
Advance Tax & TDS recoverable (net of provision) 54.04 72.01
Advance to Contractors 249.61 332.61
Advance to Suppliers 124.02 165.26
Other Loans & Advances 33.32 44.40
E | Other current assets
Interest accrued but not due on deposits 4.42 5.28
Prepaid Expenses 20.76 24.73
FEarnest Money Deposits 2.50 2.99
Security Deposits 206.30 245.78
Balance with Government Authorities 62.51 110.00
Total current assets (A) 2920.47 3,809.51
2 | Current Liabilities
A | Trade Payables 324.16 474.34
B | Other current liabilities
Advance from Customers 209.76 272.68
Advance received for Joint Venture Projects 6.92 8.99
Retention Money/ Security Deposits 27.07 35.19
Other statutory liabilities 17.50 17.85
Acceptances 258.79 263.77
Others 1.21 1.23
C | Short-term provisions 66.50 118.78
Total current liabilities (B) 912.36 1192.84
3 | Net working capital requirements C= (A)-(B) 2,008.12 2,616.67
4 | Source of finance
Proceeds from the Issue - 750.00
Borrowings from banks, financial institutions and non-banking 1,252.44 1,122.15
financial companies (including bill discounting) excluding fixed
deposit as margin money for working capital loan
Internal accruals / Existing Net Worth 755.68 744.51
Total source of finance 2,008.12 2,616.67

As certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.

Our Company proposes to utilize ¥750.00 million from the Net Proceeds towards funding the working capital
requirements of the Company. The balance portion of working capital requirements shall be met through internal
accruals and borrowings.

(©

Assumptions for working capital requirements

The table below contains the details of the holding levels on the basis of audited standalone financial statements
of our Company and the assumptions based on which the working plan projections has been made and approved

by our Board pursuant to its resolution dated June 14, 2025 is as under:
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Sr. Particulars Number of days for the period/Fiscal ended
No. March March March December | March 31, | March 31,
31,2022 | 31,2023 | 31,2024 31,2024 2025 2026
(Actual) | (Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Estimate) | (Estimate)
(A) | CURRENT ASSETS
1 Inventories
-Raw Material 183 198 162 223 161 160
- Work in Progress 38 41 35 37 35 35
2 Trade Receivables 31 116 117 168 110 100
3 Loans and advances 168 134 115 123 107 97
4 Other current assets 37 50 32 61 69 61
(A) | CURRENT LIABILITIES
5 Trade Payables 97 83 73 160 75 75
6 Other current 75 84 56 55 53 47
liabilities
7 | Short-term 1 1 1 2 7 9
provisions

As certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.

Key assumptions for working capital projections made by our Company:

S. No. Particulars
1 Inventories

Basis of Assumptions

Raw Material:

Our raw material primarily includes TMT Bars, Cement, concrete, electrical
items, tiles and others. Holding Period of raw material for Fiscal 2022 and
Fiscal 2023 remained at 183 days and 198 days, respectively. The increase
in holding period in Fiscal 2023 was primarily due to delay in getting
statutory approval in one of our projects and the same has been reduced to
162 days for Fiscal 2024 on account of better management and movement
of raw material. The improvement can be attributed to better monitoring
and management of procurement, stock levels, and the flow of materials to
construction sites, minimizing delays and endeavour to ensure project
timelines are met.

Considering the current holding levels and the orders in hand, the Company
projects that the raw material holding period will be at 161 days for Fiscal
Year 2025 and 160 days for Fiscal Year 2026. These projections are based
on historical trends to ensure an uninterrupted and continuous construction
process across various sites while allowing sufficient time to complete
ongoing projects. By achieving this level, our Company aims to maintain
adequate stock to prevent disruptions across ongoing projects while keeping
sufficient levels of raw material.

Work in Progress & Others

In Fiscal 2022, the WIP holding period stood at 38 days, which was
subsequently increased to 41 days in Fiscal 2023 and in 2024 the same
reduced to 35 days. Over the past three fiscal years the working capital
holding level remained in the range of 35-41 days. Therefore, our Company
has projected a WIP holding period of 35 days for Fiscals 2025 and 2026
based on its historical holding levels.

With the anticipated increase in revenue due to ongoing projects, our
Company expects increase in WIP inventory in absolute terms but the
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S. No.

Particulars

Basis of Assumptions

holding level is expected to stay the same at around 35 days due to the nature
of the business.

Trade Receivables

The increase in trade receivable cycle for Fiscal 2023, compared to earlier
years, was on account of: (i) the Company’s shift in the nature of contracts
to EPC. Earlier all our contracts were of Item Rate or Percentage Rate types,
which typically had shorter trade receivable cycles. However, post Fiscal
2022, the projects awarded were mostly EPC contracts. EPC projects
generally have a longer trade receivable cycle, as billing for executed work
is often concentrated in the later stages of the project; (ii) the Company’s
classification as a Class-1 Super contractor with the CPWD, which enables
us to tender for projects up to 26,500 million. With this eligibility to bid
higher value projects, our Company was able to secure longer duration
contracts, which generally tend to have higher milestones for revenue
recognition as compared to the shorter projects executed in earlier years. As
a result, the trade receivables holding period for Fiscal 2023 was 116 days
and it remained at a similar level of 117 days in Fiscal 2024.

Further, by streamlining the collection process, our Company expects faster
realization of outstanding amounts, which will improve its cash flow and
working capital efficiency. Our Company has estimated trade receivable
holding period to remain at 110 days for Fiscal 2025 and 100 days for Fiscal
2026 which is lower than the holding period of 117 days and 116 days
respectively for Fiscal Year 2024 and 2023.

The reduction in the trade receivable holding period is primarily attributed
to our Company’s focus on managing accounts receivables. By streamlining
the collection process, our Company expects faster realization of
outstanding amounts, which will improve its cash flow and working capital
efficiency. This approach will support our Company’s financial health and
maintain liquidity as it scales its operations to meet growing demand.

Loans and advances

The “Loans and Advances” line item includes advance to suppliers of
materials, advance to contractors and Tax recoverable. Further, “other loans
and Advances” mainly include advances for capital expenditure that are in
ordinary course of business. In line with generally accepted business
practices, the Company has to provide these advances to source
construction raw materials from the supplier. These advances ensure a
steady supply of essential raw materials, such as TMT bars, cement,
concrete, electrical items, tiles and other construction materials, enabling
the Company to maintain project progress and meet timelines.

Given the anticipated increase in the Company’s turnover and based on past
trends, the demand for raw materials is also expected to rise significantly.
To support this increase, our Company’s advances to suppliers will remain
a key factor.

In the last three fiscals, the holding period for these advances has shown a
downward trend. The holding period has reduced from 168 days in Fiscal
2022 to 115 days in Fiscal 2024. This reduction is due to our Company
securing higher value projects, which allows the Company for better
negotiated deals with the suppliers and contractors. With improvements in
supply chain management and procurement, our Company projects that this
period will reduce to 107 days in Fiscal 2025 and further to 97 days in Fiscal
2026.

Other Current Assets

The Other Current Assets line item majorly includes Security Deposits to
be kept as retention money for projects and Balance with Government
Authorities.
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S. No. Particulars Basis of Assumptions

Our “security deposits” represents a significant portion of the “Other
Current Assets” line item and are directly correlated with the growth in our
revenue from operations. As the value of projects increases, so do the
security deposits. Therefore, our Company anticipates that the holding
period will increase accordingly. Additionally, we are also undertaking
projects for PSUs other than CPWD. These PSUs require higher security
deposits (typically 5% of the project cost) as a percentage of the project cost
as compared to CPWD (typically 2.5% of the project cost), which will
further contribute to the increase in security deposits. Additionally,
“Balance with Government Authorities” is also expected to rise due to
increase in taxes paid on capital expenditure and purchases.

5. Trade Payables Our Company’s trade payable holding period has steadily decreased in
recent years, from 97 days in Fiscal 2022 to 83 days in Fiscal 2023, and
further to 73 days in Fiscal 2024. Over the past three Fiscals, our Company
has focused on reducing the trade payable days to take advantage of
favourable pricing from suppliers. Going forward, this trend is expected to
stabilize at around 75 days.

Hence, based on past trend and current holding period for fiscal year 2024,
our company has estimated holding period for fiscal year 2025 and 2026 at
75 days. The estimated stabilization at 75 days for future years reflects a
focus on timely supplier payments and maintaining uninterrupted
operations of our Company.

6. Other Current | Other Current Liabilities” includes items such as advances from customers,
Liabilities acceptances (material procured through the issuance of letters of credit),
retention money/ security deposit of sub-contractors held with us, statutory
liabilities and others (which mainly includes interest payable but not due).
In Fiscal 2024, the holding period stood at 56 days, reflecting a longer
duration for settling these liabilities. This is expected to slightly improve
over the forecast period as more funds would be available to the Company,
reducing reliance on advances from customers which is interest bearing. As
a result, the holding period is expected to decrease to 53 days in Fiscal 2025
and 47 days in Fiscal 2026. Furthermore, these line items within “Other
Current Liabilities” are typically event-based and vary depending on
specific business activities and operations.

7 Short-term provisions | We have estimated a holding period of 7 days for Fiscal 2025 and 9 days in
Fiscal 2026, primarily due to the consideration of tax provisions for the
corresponding periods.

As certified by Jagdish Chand & Co., Chartered Accountants, our Statutory Auditors, by way of their certificate dated June
14, 2025.

The aforementioned estimates for future working capital requirements, assumptions for working capital
requirements and key assumptions for working capital projections made by our Company have been approved by
the Board through their resolution dated June 14, 2025.

Although determining the exact industry growth rate is challenging, an analysis of the financial performance of
24 construction industry players reveals that their consolidated sales have recorded a CAGR of 15.2%. It is
important to note that this estimated growth rate would vary with individual companies and it may be higher or
lower in comparison to industry average for a particular company. The revenue estimation of our Company for
FY 2025 and 2026 is solely based on current orders in hand and their execution timelines.

2. Capital expenditure towards purchase of construction equipment/machineries

The scale and complexity of our projects have increased in recent years and we intend to continue focusing on
bidding for projects with higher contract values. Further, to fuel our growth and expand operations, we intend to
invest in latest equipment and technology, wherever necessary. To increase our equipment fleet, we intend to
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purchase latest equipment from reputed manufacturers and continue with our strategy of placing minimum
reliance on hired or leased equipment. Ownership of modern equipment ensures its continuous and timely
availability, thereby increasing our efficiency and cost-effectiveness, which is critical to the operations of our
business.

Accordingly, we propose to utilize ¥142.55 million out of the Net Proceeds towards such purchasing capital
equipment/machineries which includes (i) M S Standard, (ii) Shuttering material, (iii) Putzmeiser Boom Pump,
(iv) Putzmeiser MX Placing Boom etc. We do not intend to purchase second-hand or used equipment/machineries
is proposed to be purchased out of the Net Proceeds. Each of the units of capital equipment/machineries mentioned
above is proposed to be acquired in a ready-to-use condition.

While w